
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

AGENDA 

Tuesday, January 19, 2016 

  

 

This shall serve as notice that the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council 

will be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers,  

245 Washington Street, Watertown, New York. 

 

MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

 Independent Auditors’ Report for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015 

Liz Bush, CPA, Bowers & Company CPAs PLLC 

 

PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

Resolution No. 1 - Reappointment to Board of Ethics, Jean A. Bilow 

 

Resolution No. 2 -  Reappointment to Board of Ethics, Rande S. Richardson 

 

Resolution No. 3 -  Reappointment to Board of Ethics, James D. St. Croix 

 

Resolution No. 4 -  Reappointment to Board of Ethics, Arthur C. Stever III 

  

Resolution No. 5 -  Appointment to Board of Ethics, Yvonne F. Reff  

 

Resolution No. 6 -  Approving Change Order No. 8 for Watertown Municipal 

Arena Renovation, General Contractor, 

Bette & Cring 

 

Resolution No. 7 -  Approving Change Order No. 2 for Watertown Arena 

Renovation Project, Mechanical Work,  

Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. 

 



Resolution No. 8 -  Approving Change Order No. 5 for Watertown Municipal 

Arena Renovation, Plumbing/Fire Protection,  

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. 

 

Resolution No. 9 -  Approving Change Order No. 3 for Watertown Arena 

Renovation Project, Electrical Work,  

Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. 

 

Resolution No. 10 -  Approving Contract for Use of Buildings and Grounds, 

Watertown City School District 

 

ORDINANCES  

 

LOCAL LAW 

   

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

 

1. City Council Liaison to Flower Memorial Library Board of Trustees 

2. Sale of Surplus Hydro-electricity – December 2015 

3. Fiscal Year 2015-16 GASB 45 Other Post-employment Benefits Actuarial 

Valuation 

4. Fiscal Year 2014-15 Audit Report 

5. The Purpose of a Complete Streets Policy and a Model Ordinance 

6. Northern New York Builder’s Exchange 

7. 27
th
 Annual Local Government Conference 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 To Discuss Collective Bargaining 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETING IS MONDAY, 

FEBRUARY 1, 2016. 



Res Nos. 1,2,3,4 and 5 
January 12,2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Sharon Addison, City Manager 

Subject: Appointment and Reappointments to the Board of Ethics 

At the request of the City Council, the following members of the Board of 
Ethics were contacted and have agreed to serve another one-year term, such term expiring 
on December 31,2016: 

Jean A. Bilow 
Fairway West - Unit C2 
522 Weldon Drive 
Watertown, New York 

Rande S. Richardson 
269 Flower Avenue West 
Watertown, New York 

James D. St. Croix 
636 Davidson Street 
Watertown, New York 

Arthur C. Stever III 
304 Paddock Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

Additionally, I am recommending that Library Director Yvonne F. Reff 
replace Police Chief Charles P. Donoghue on this Board for a one-year term, such term 
also expiring on December 31, 2016. Resolutions are attached for City Council 
consideration. 



Resolution No. 1 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Reappointment to Board of Ethics, 
Jean A. Bilow 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

RESOLVED that the following individual is hereby reappointed to the Board of 
Ethics for a one-year term expiring on December 31,2016: 

Seconded by 

Jean A. Bilow 
Fairway West - Unit C2 
522 Weldon Drive 
Watertown, New York 13601 

YEA NAY 



 
 

 
Resolution No.  2                                                                                       January 19, 2016 
 

    RESOLUTION   

 
    Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Reappointment to Board of Ethics, 
Rande S. Richardson 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

  

 
Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

  

 
Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 

  

 

 

Introduced by 

 

 

____________________________________ 

  

 

     

 

   

 RESOLVED that the following individual is hereby reappointed to the Board of Ethics for 

a one-year term expiring on December 31, 2016: 

 

   Rande S. Richardson 

                                    269 Flower Avenue West 

                                    Watertown, New York 13601 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by 



Resolution No. 3 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Reappointment to Board of Ethics, 
James D. 8t. Croix 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

CoundIMemberHORBACZ,CodyJ. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

RESOLVED that the following individual is hereby reappointed to the Board of Ethics 
for a one-year term expiring on December 31, 2016: 

Seconded by 

James D. St. Croix 
636 Davidson Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

YEA NAY 



 
 

 
Resolution No. 4                                                                                      January 19, 2016 
 

    RESOLUTION   

 
    Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Reappointment to Board of Ethics, 
Arthur C. Stever III 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

  

 
Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A.. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

  

 
Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Mark C. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 

  

 

 

Introduced by 

 

 

____________________________________ 

  

 

     

 

   

 RESOLVED that the following individual is hereby reappointed to the Board of Ethics for 

a one-year term expiring on December 31, 2016: 

 

   Arthur C. Stever III 

   304 Paddock Street 

   Watertown, New York 13601 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by 



Resolution No. 5 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Appointment to Board of Ethics, 
Yvonne F. Reff 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

RESOLVED that the following individual is hereby appointed to the Board of 
Ethics for a one-year term expiring on December 31,2016: 

Seconded by 

Yvonne F. Reff 
621 Frontenac Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

YEA NAY 



Res Nos. 6, 7, 8,9 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

January 11, 2016 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Sharon Addison, City Manager 

Change Orders for Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, 
Bette & Cring and Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. 

On March 30, 2015, City Council approved several bids for the 
Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, for a total bid award of $9,141,000. Work is 
nearing completion on this project. The current total of all four contracts is 
$9,362,682.57. 

As detailed in City Engineer Justin L. Wood's attached report, four 
Change Orders have been submitted for no cost time extensions to March 7, 2016. 

Attached for Council consideration are the four Resolutions for these 
Change Orders as described in Mr. Wood's report. 



1869 

DATE: 10 January 2016 

CITY OF WATERTOWN 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Sharon Addison, City Manager 

FROM: Justin Wood, City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation Change Orders for Time Extension 

The two contractors who were awarded the Arena Renovation project bids, Bette Cring and 
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc, have submitted a request for time extension to complete the 
project. The General Contractor (GC) Bette Cring, has requested a no cost time extension to 
March 7,2016. The Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical Contractor (MC, PC, EC) 
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc, has requested a no cost time extension to February 29, 
2016. The original substantial completion date was January 18,2016. 

As with virtually any renovation project, many unforeseen conditions and delays have 
occurred during the course of construction. The project team, including the Designer 
(Stantec), the Construction Manager/Inspector (Bernier Carr), City Staff, and the Contractors 
have worked diligently and expediently to mitigate surprises and to overcome the challenges 
encountered along the way. It is because of this effort, that such a complex project has 
progressed this quickly, and will allow reopening of the facility much sooner than it 
potentially could have been. This is a reasonable request, and puts the project on track for a 
grand opening in March. 

Please prepare resolutions for Council consideration. 

cc: Amy Pastuf, Purchasing Manager 
Erin Gardner, Superintendent of Parks and Recreation 
Jim Mills, City Comptroller 



Resolution No. 6 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 2 

Approving Change Order NO.8 for Watertown 
Municipal Arena Renovation, General Contractor, 
Bette & Cring 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

YEA NAY 

Coundl MemberHORBACZ, CodyJ. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Coundl Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER. Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

WHEREAS on March 30, 2015, City Council of the City of Watertown approved the bid 
submitted by Bette & Cring in the amount of $6,268,000 as the General Contractor for the 
Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, and 

WHEREAS on June 15,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.1 in the 
decreased amount of $31 ,260 for changing to a hydraulic elevator, and 

WHEREAS also on June 15,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.2 in the 
increased amount of $20,543 for storm and sanitary separation, as well as removal of high hat 
channel, and 

WHEREAS on July 20,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.3 in the amount 
of $20,790.42 to cover the cost of steel support beams on the second floor and removing 
structural steel in the northeast comer of the building addition, and 

WHEREAS on September 21,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.4 in the 
amount of $21 ,236.92 to cover the cost of removal oflead paint, modifY existing concrete footer, 
relocate a column, install storm sewer pipe, relocate existing roof drains and a credit for fiber 
mesh, and 

WHEREAS on November 16,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.5 in the 
amount of $34,346.03 to cover the cost of changing the toilet partitions, shoring of roof plank in 
the Pool House, provide painted galvaneal metal wall panel, provide angle supports of West 
Gable end wall, modify structural steel to northeast addition, install structural header for an 
overhead door to the mechanical room, provide heavier duty hinges on doors, credit to reduce 
footer depth at west addition, and credit to delete benches and angle iron along the 18" ledge on 
the second floor, and 



Resolution No. 6 

RESOLUTION 

Page 2 of 2 

Approving Change Order NO.8 for Watertown 
Municipal Arena Renovation, General Contractor, 
Bette & Cring 

January 19, 2016 

YEA NAY 

Coundl Member HORBACZ, CodyJ. 

Coundl Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER. Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

WHEREAS on December 21, 2015, City Council approved Change Order No.6 in the 
amount of $48,816.05 to cover the cost of replacing main entrance doors in the pool area, 
additional support to counteract movement of the second floor balcony in the West Addition, 
replace deteriorated sidewalks adjacent to the entrance of the Pool House, provide thickset for 
tile floors in the Bathhouse, change stairs from cast-in-place concrete to steel, provide door and 
hardware off the door schedule from the elevator pit to the sprinkler room, increase the locker 
room bench size, provide weatherproof access panel on the West Addition roof and a credit to 
delete the steel condenser platform, and 

WHEREAS on December 21,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.7 in the 
amount of $28,038.05 to provide additional asphalt paving at the east entrance to the arena and to 
cover the floor finish revisions requested, bringing the total General Contractor amount to 
$6,410,510.47, and 

WHEREAS Bette & Cring has now submitted Change Order No.8 for a no cost time 
extension for building occupancy to March 7, 2016, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown 
approves Change Order No.8 to the contract with Bette & Cring for a no cost time extension for 
building occupancy to March 7, 2016, for the Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, copies of 
which are attached and made part of this Resolution, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager Sharon Addison is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign the Change Order on behalf of the City of Watertown. 

Seconded by 



Document G7011CMa™ -1992 
Change Order .. Construction Manager-Adviser Edition 

PROJECT (Name and address): 
City ofWatertowu2015-025 
245 Washington Street 
Watertown, NY 13601 

TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address).' 
Bette & Cring 
18438 US Route 11 
Watertown, NY 13601 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 1-008 
INITIATION DATE: 01107/16 

PROJECT NUMBERS: 2015-0251 

CONTRACT DATE: April 6,2015 
CONTRACT FOR: #1 - General 
Construction 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER: 0 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 0 

ARCHITECT: 0 
CONTRACTOR: 0 

FIELD: 0 
OTHER: 0 

A no cost tirae extension for building occupancy. All exterior work is to be completed when weather pennits. 

The original Contract Sum was 
Net change by previously authoriz.ed Change Orders 
The Contrdct Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be unchanged by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by forty-three (43) days. 
TIle date of Substantia! Completion as oflhe date of this Change Order therefore is March 7, 2016. 

$ 6,268,000.00 
$ 142,510.47 
$ 6,410,510.47 
$ 0.00 

$ __ --.:62.-,4'--10..:.;.5--.1..;...0._47'-

NOTE: This summary does OOf-reflect changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have been 
authorized by Construction Change Directive .. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE OWNER, CONSTRUCTION MANAGER, ARCHITECT AND CONTRACTOR. 

Bentier, Carr & Associates, Engineers, Architects, & Land 
Surveyors, PC 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Firm flame) 
327 Mullin Street. Watertown, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed Illlllle) DATE: 

Bette & Cring 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 
18438 US Route 11, Watertown, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

Stantec Consulting 

ARCHITECT (Fimlnume) 
61 Commerical Street, Rochester, NY 14614 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

City of Watertown 
OWNER (Firm name) 
245 Wa.~hjngton Street, Watertown, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

AlA Document G7011CMa'" -1992. Copyright © 1992 American Institute of Architects. All 
pro!"cttlcl by U.S. Law $!lO iatemeti<;",a' UlIlluthorized or ","if!bulf,,,, 1 
'''''U,! In sever" civil ,!lid b", I'",,,,,,,ul,,d maxl",u", <>xl""j possible ullder Ih" law. This document was produced by AlA 
software at 09:18:04 on 01/0712016 under Order No.58136802756_1 which ">:pires on 0312412016, and is not for resal". 
User Notes: (795502391) 



December 18, 2015 

Bernier Carr & Associates, P.c. 
327 Mullin Street 

Watertown, NY 13601 

Attn: Mr. Larry Colburn 

RE: Watertown Arena 

Schedule Extension Request 

Dear Mr. Colburn: 

Attached, please find an updated schedule for the above referenced project. The revised completion 

date is March 7, 2016. This time extension is the result of numerous construction changes and 

difficulties that occurred throughout the project. 

We respectfully request a no cost change order extending the contract completion date to March 7, 

2016. 

We await your decision. 

Thank-you. 

Sincerely 

Bette & (ring, LL( /" 

00 r. j}/J 
. ·~I~·J 

'" , t -
Wendell N. Matott 

Project Manager 

BETTE &. CRING, LLC 

18438 US ROUTE 11 WATERTOWN NY 13601 P 3 1 5 7 82 - 0 0 74 F 3 1 5 782· 5 1 5 9 



Resolution NO.7 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Approving Change Order No.2 for Watertown 
Arena Renovation Project, Mechanical Work, 
Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

YEA NAY 

CoundIMemberHORBACZ,CodyJ. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. r--+----j 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. [----+---1 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

WHEREAS on March 30,2015, City Council of the City of Watertown approved the bid 
submitted by Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. in the amount of$1,229,000 for the Mechanical 
Work for the Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, and 

WHEREAS on September 21,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.1 in the 
decreased amount of$7,840.00 due to changing the HVAC duct work from stainless steel to 
aluminum, bringing the total for the Mechanical Work to $1,221,160.00, and 

WHEREAS Lawman Heating and Cooling Inc. has now submitted Change Order No.2 
for a no cost time extension for building occupancy to March 7, 2016, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown 
approves Change Order No.2 to the contract with Lawman Heating and Cooling Inc. for a no 
cost time extension for building occupancy to March 7, 2016, for the Watertown Municipal 
Arena Renovation, copies of which are attached and made part of this Resolution, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager, Sharon Addison, is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign the Change Order on behalf of the City of Watertown. 

Seconded by 



AlA Document G701/CMa'" - 1992 
Change Order .. Construction Manager-Adviser Edition 

PROJECT (Name and address): 
City of Watertown 2015-025 
245 Washington Street 
Watertown, NY 1360 J 

TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address).­
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc, 
206 Ambrose Street 
Sackets Harbor, NY 13685 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 2-002 
INITIATION DATE: 01107/16 

PROJECT NUMBERS: 2015-025/ 

CONTRACT DATE: April 6,2015 
CONTRACT FOR: Mechanical 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER: 0 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 0 

ARCHITECT: 0 
CONTRACTOR: 0 

FIELD: 0 
OTHER: 0 

A no cost time extension for building occupancy. All exterior work is to be completed when weather permits. 

The original Contract Sum was 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be unchanged by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will he 

The Contract Time 'will be increased by sixty-six (66) days. 
The date of Substantial Completion as of the date ofthis Change Order therefore is February 29. 2016. 

$ __ ------=1-=-,2.-:29:'-::,0:-':-0-':-'0.-':-:00'-
$ .7,840.00 
$ 1,221,160.00 
$ 0,00 

$ __ --'-1-<-,2_21-'-,1_6_0,_00'-

NOTE: This summary does **reflect changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have been 
authorized by Construction Change Directive .. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE OWNER,CONSTRUCTION MANAGER, ARCHITECT AND CONTRACTOR. 

Bernier, Carr & Associates, Engineers, Architects, & Land 
Surveyors, PC 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Firm name) 
327 Mullin Street, Watertown, NY 1360 I 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc, 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 
206 Ambrose Street, Sackets Harbor, NY 13685 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

AlA Document G761!CMa'" -1992. Copyright © 1992 

Stantec Consulting 

ARCHITECT (Firm name) 
61 Commerica! Street, Rochester, NY 14614 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

City of Watertown 
OWNER (Firm name) 
245 Washington Street. Watertown, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

protected by U,S. law and International Unauthoriz<>1;! '''production of th1$ Oocl.lm<l"t, Of ,:>011100 of it, may 1 
r~$ult in saver" civil criminal p"naltiJl;s, and will bl> prosecuted to III" mllt~IIllUm '')It,1I11 poulbll! undl!( !h .. law, This document was prClduced by AlA 
software al 09:27:02 on 0110712016 under Order No,5866802756_1 which expires on 0312:4/2016, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (1865764705) 



HVAC, PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING 

206 AMBROSE STREET P.O. BOX 599 SACKETS HARBOR, NY 13685 (315) 646·2919 FAX (315) 646·2920 

15 December 2015 

Bernier, Carr & Associates, PC 
327 Mullin Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

Attn: larry Coburn 

Re: Watertown Municipal Arena Renovations 
Watertown, NY 
LHC #540 - HVAC 

Gentlemen: 

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. respectfully requests a "no cost" time extension to our contract 
to February 2016 due to present circumstances beyond our control. The requested date is 
contingent upon the building being ready to accept HVAC finishes no later than February 1, 2016. Upon 
receipt of the General Contractors updated schedule, this date will be adjusted accordingly. 

To date many items have been delayed, some examples are as follows: 

.. Northwest Addition has a conSiderable amount of work to complete 
III Stairs and railings are being welding & grinding is taking place 
OIl The entire building is covered with dirt and dust from the general contractor's construction 
<II Finish paint, installation of ceiling grid, flooring & initial cleaning by others needs to be 

completed prior to tHC installing grilles, registers & diffusers and performing testing, 
adjusting & balancing 

The schedule previously provided by the General Contractor demonstrates items of work 
critically behind schedule that impedes Lawman's ability to complete their work. 

If you should have any further questions, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Sincerely, 

Law~eatinv co. 0 olljj~n tnc. 

?;;~~ 
Kyle ler 
HVAC Project Manager 

-------•.... -----... ----- ---'--'--



Resolution No. 8 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Approving Change Order NO.5 for Watertown 
Municipal Arena Renovation, Plumbing/Fire 
Protection, Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

YEA NAY 

Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

WHEREAS on March 30, 2015, City Council of the City of Watertown approved the bid 
submitted by Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. in the amOlmt of $668,000 for Plumbing/Fire 
Protection for the Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, and 

WHEREAS on June 15,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.1 in the amount 
of$64,810.75 for work on the sprinkler system, surface mounted drinking fountains, PVC 
plumbing, eliminating sensor activated flush valves, and eliminating sensor activated lavatory 
faucets, and 

WHEREAS on September 21,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.2 in the 
amount of $9,388.48 to install utilities for the elevator sump pit, and 

WHEREAS on November 16,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.3 in the 
amount of$6,723.15 to enclose an area of the main walkway on the second floor, and 

WHEREAS on December 21,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.4 in the 
amount of $4,219.88 to relocated the roof drains in the bathhouse, bringing the total for the 
Plumbing/Fire Protection Work to $735,142.26, and 

WHEREAS Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. has now submitted Change Order No.5 
for a no cost time extension for building occupancy to March 7, 2016, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown 
approves Change Order No.5 to the contract with Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. for a no cost 
time extension for building occupancy to March 7, 2016 for the Watertown Municipal Arena 
Renovation, a copy of which is attached and made part of this Resolution, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager Sharon Addison is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign the Change Order on behalf of the City of Watertown. 

Seconded by 



A Document G701/CMa'" -1992 
Change Order· Construction Manager.Adviser Edition 

PROJECT (Name and address): 
City ofWatertowll 2015-025 
245 Washington Street 
Watertown, NY 13601 

TO CONTRACTOR (Name lind addressj: 
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. 
206 Ambrose Street 
Sackets Harbor, NY 13685 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 3-005 
INITIATION DATE: 01/07/16 

PROJECT NUMBERS: 2015-025/ 

CONTRACT DATE: April 6, 2015 
CONTRACT FOR: 3 - Plumbing 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER:D 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: D 

ARCHITECT: D 
CONTRACTOR: D 

FIELD:D 
OTHER:D 

A no cost time extension for building occupancy. AU exterior work is to be completed when weather permits. 

The original Contract Sum was 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be unchanged by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Conlract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by sixty-six (66) days. 

$ 668,000.00 
$ ___ -::785,.",1;-:4.:;:::2 . .:;:::26::.-
$ ___ ..:.7.:::53::!.:,1:..:4~2.~26;;-
$ 0.00 

---=--;-=-;.--;:-

$ ---.!..:!.~~ 

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29, 2016. 

NOTE: This summal"f does fl~reflect changes in the Contmct Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have been 
authorized by Construction Change Directive .. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE OWNER, CONSTRUCTION MANAGER, ARCHITECT AND CONTRACTOR. 

Bernier, Carr & Associates, Engineers, Architects, & Land 
Surveyors, .PC 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Firm name) 
327 Mullin Street, Watertown, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

LawmanH 
CONTRAC irm name} 
206 Ambrose Street, Sackets Harbor, NY 13685 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

Stantec Consulting 

ARCHITECT (Firm name) 
61 Commerical Street, Rochester, NY 14614 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signalllre) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

City of Watertown 
OWNER (Firm !lame) 
245 Washington Street, Watertown, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed /lame) DATE: 

AlA Document G7011CMan! -1992. American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. I)oeumoo! is 
protected by U.S. L_ and Unaul!1o,!ud rt<produetlon Or distribution 01 this Doeumllnt, or allY portion of ii, may 1 
resuit III '''''''lte civil criminal p,m<!lties, ""Ii wm I:;~ P,.os*cutlld to tlUI maximum ""xwnt po;os!bl$ !.1M,,' th .. law, ihls document was produced by AlA 
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HVAC. PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING 

206 AMBROSE STREET P.O. BOX 599 SACKETS HARBOR, NY 1.3685 

15 December 2015 

Bernier, Carr & Associates, PC 
327 Mullin Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

Attn: Larry Coburn 

Re: Watertown Municipal Arena Renovations 
Watertown, NY 
lHC #541- Plumbing 

Gent!emen: 

(3151646-2919 FAX (315) 646-2920 

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. respectfully requests a "no cost" time extension to our 
contract to February 29, 2016 due to present circumstances beyond our control. The requested 
date is contingent upon the building being ready to accept plumbing finishes no later than 
February 1, 2016. Upon receipt of the General Contractor's updated schedule, this date will be 
adjusted accordingly, 

To date many items have been delayed, some examples are as follows: 

• Northwest Addition has a considerable amount of work to complete 
.. Stairs and railings are being welding & grinding is taking place 
G The entire building is covered with dirt and dust from the general contractor's 

construction 
o Finish paint, installation of ceiling grid, flooring & initial cleaning by others needs to be 

completed prior to LHC installing plumbing fixtures 

If you should have any further questions, please feel free to contact the underSigned. 

Sincerely, 

lawman Heating & Cooling, Inf. 

~$~ 
Ronald L Brimmer 
Project Manager 



Resolution NO.9 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Approving Change Order NO.3 for 
Watertown Arena Renovation Project, 
Electrical Work, 
Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. 

Introduced by 

January 19, 2016 

YEA NAY 

Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

WHEREAS on March 30, 2015, City Council approved the bid submitted by Lawman 
Heating and Cooling, Inc. in the amount of $976,000 for the Electrical Work for the Watertown 
Arena Renovation Project, and 

WHEREAS on July 20,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.1 in the 
decreased amount of $1,100.74 for the transmitter for the Marquee sign, additional exterior 
lighting and to relocate the underground utility conduits, and 

WHEREAS on September 21,2015, City Council approved Change Order No.2 in the 
amount of $2,970.58 to install a dedicated electrical circuit required for the elevator equipment 
room and sump pit, bringing the total Electrical Work amount to $977,869.84, and 

WHEREAS Lawman Heating and Cooling, Inc. has now submitted Change Order No.3 
for a no cost time extension for building occupancy to March 7, 2016, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown 
approves Change Order No.3 for a no cost time extension for building occupancy to March 7, 
2016 for the Watertown Municipal Arena Renovation, a copy of which is attached and made part 
of this Resolution, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager, Sharon Addison, is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign the Change Order on behalf of the City of Watertown. 

Seconded by 



AI Document G7011CMa™ -1992 
Change Order· Construction Manager-Adviser Edition 

PROJECT (Name and address): 
City of Watertown 2015-025 
245 Washington Street 
Watertown, NY 13601 

TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address): 
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc, 
206 Ambrose Street 
Sackets Harbor, NY 13685 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 4-003 
INITIATION DATE: Oll07/16 

PROJECT NUMBERS: 2015-025 I 

CONTRACT DATE: April 6, 2015 
CONTRACT FOR: Eleotrical 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS; 

OWNER: 0 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 0 

ARCHITECT: 0 
CONTRACTOR: 0 

FIELD: 0 
OTHER: 0 

A no cos! time ext.ension for building oocupancy, All exterior work is to be completed when weather permits, 

The original Contract Sum was 
Net ohange by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be unchanged by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by sixty-six (66) days, 

$ ___ -=-9c:..76:.c:,0""0~O.0c_:0'-
$ 1,869.84 
$ 977,869.84 
$ 0.00 
$ ___ -'-9_77'-"-,8'-'.6-=-:9.-=-84'-

111e date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29,2016. 

NOTE: This summary does flffi-reflect changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have been 
authorized by Construction Change Directive .. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE OWNER, CONSTRUCTION MANAGER, ARCHITECT AND CONTRACTOR. 

Bernier, Carr & Associates, Engineers, .Architects, & Land 
Surveyors, PC 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Finn name) 
327 Mullin Street, Watertov,'Jl, NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (SiglWture) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 
206 Ambrose Street, Sackets Harbor, NY 13685 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

Stantec Consulting 

ARCHITECT (Firm name) 
61 Commerical Street, Rochester, NY .14614 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

City of Watertown 
OWNER (Firm name) 
245 Washington Street, Watertmvn. NY 13601 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signatllre) 

(Typed name) DATE: 

AlA Document G7011CMa ™ -1992. © 1992 by The American Insmute of Architects. AU 
protected by ltS. Law and Treaties. Unllluihoriz(j<! ,"production or distribution Document. or Jlny portion 01 iI, may 1 
result In sa"!!>r,, ejvii criminaII'M&a,u, <lna will be proS<.>cu!ea to the maximum eltlen! possible unali'r the law. This document was produced by AlA 
software at 09:36:10 on 0110712016 under Order No.5866802756_1 which e:q:>ires on 0312412016, and is not fO( resale. 
User Notes: (913395031) 



& 
HVAC, PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING 

206 AMBROSE STREtT P.O. BOX 599 SACKETS HARBOR, NY 13685 

15 December 2015 

Bernier, Carr & Associates, PC 
327 Mullin Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

Attn: Larry Coburn 

Re: Watertown Municipal Arena Renovations 
Watertown, NY 
LHC #542 - Electric 

Gentlemen: 

(315} 646-2919 FAX (315) 646-2920 

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. respectfully requests a "no cost" time extension to our 
contract to February 29, 2016 due to present circumstances beyond our control. The requested 
date is contingent upon the building being ready to accept electrical finishes no later than 
February 1, 2016. Upon receipt of the General Contractor's updated schedule, this date will be 
adjusted accordingly. 

To date many items have been delayed, some examples are as follows: 

• Lack of RFl responses (as noted in the meeting minutes) 

• Press box area is incomplete with no stairs in place 

.. Northwest Addition has a considerable amount of work to complete 

• Stairs and railings are being welding & grinding is taking place 
• The entire building is covered with dirt and dust from the general contractor's 

construction 
• Finish paint, installation of ceiling grid, flooring & initial cleaning by others needs to be 

completed prior to LHC instaHing sensitive electrical equipment {fire alarm devices, data 
equipment, security devices & equipment, & lighting devices) 

Fixtures and sensitive e!ectrical equipment, can not be installed until the building is 
ready for final cleaning so as not to get dirt or foreign particles in them. Allowing these devices 
to collect dirt I dust could result in reduction of the product life, improper or unsatisfactory 
operation of the equipment or failure. 

-----_._--",.,-, .. _ .... ,------------------, ------- --..,-,-- .. _---,---



Bernier, Carr 
Page 2 
11/15/2015 

We have highlighted items on the attached schedule previously provided by the General 
Contractor to demonstrate items of work critically behind schedule that impedes Lawman's 
ability to complete their work. The press box is not included in the schedule, nor does 
preliminary cleaning of major dust and debris caused by construction activities. 

If you should have any further questions, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Sincerely, 

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. 

~/' 
11-t 
Kenneth R. Vance 
Electrical Division Manager 



Res No. 10 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

January 12,2016 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Sharon Addison, City Manager 

Contract for Use of Buildings and Grounds, Watertown City School 
District 

Attached for City Council consideration is a resolution that authorizes the 
City to enter into a contractual agreement with the Watertown City School District for 
use of buildings and grounds. This contract grants the City permission to use, at no cost 
to the City, the School District's facilities for running the City's recreation program. 

The contract identifies the time frames and the properties and grounds that 
the City will utilize. The City of Watertown will submit a Letter of Understanding to the 
School District holding the District harmless for incidents that might occur at any of the 
City's programs held on District property. 



Resolution No.1 0 January 19,2016 

RESOLUTION YEA NAY 

Page 1 of 1 Coundl MemberHORBACZ, CodyJ. 

Council Member JENNINGS, Stephen A. r----t----j 

Approving Contract for Use of Buildings and Grounds, 
Watertown City School District 

Introduced by 

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. f----+----j 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ........................... . 

WHEREAS the City of Watertown desires to run a Summer Recreation Program within 
the City of Watertown, and 

WHEREAS the Watertown City School District is willing to authorize the City to use its 
facilities for said purpose, and 

WHEREAS there is no cost associated with the Agreement between the City of 
Watertown and the Watertown City School District, and 

WHEREAS the City deems the providing of a Summer Recreation Program to be a 
benefit to the citizens of the City, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown 
hereby approves the Agreement between the City and the Watertown City School District, a copy 
of which is attached and made a part of this resolution, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Joseph M. Butler, Jr., is hereby authorized 
and directed to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Watertown. 

Seconded by 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
WATERTOWN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CONTRACT FOR USE OF BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

It is agreed, understood, and covenanted as follows: 

1. The undersigned will pay the Watertown City School District - $0 - dollars 
to defray expenses for the proposed use of District property, including the opening of the 
building, lights, heat, janitorial personnel at the rate of pay under the Federal Wage and 
Hour Law, and other incidental expenses. All personnel employed for the use of District 
property will be considered special employees of the undersigned organization while 
performing their duties in conjunction with the planned activities. 

2. There will be no sale of tickets or admission beyond the seating capacity of 
N/A 

3. The undersigned will reimburse the Board of Education for loss or damage to 
school property resulting from such use. 

5. The above insurance requirements notwithstanding, the undersigned agrees to 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Watertown City School District, to the extent 
allowed by law, from any judgments against it including costs, disbursements, attorney 
fees, etc. for any liability arising from the planned activities of the undersigned on the 
School District property. 

6. The undersigned has familiarized themselves with the regulations of the Board of 
Education pertaining to the use of such property (see attached) and all said regulations are 
agreed to and will be observed. 

7. The undersigned will provide for Worker's Compensation Insurance and any 
other insurance pertaining to the activities of the undersigned as may be required by law. 

8. That the permission now applied for, if granted, is revocable at any time by the 
Board of Education. 

9. If this application is made in the name of an organization, the person signing 
below is authorized to do so and will be responsible for full compliance with the terms 
hereof and all payments hereunder. 



(City of Watertown Recreation Department) 
Erin Gardner 

BY 
(Joseph Butler Jr., City Mayor ) 

North Elementary School- Playground only. Building will be dosed. 
Last week in June 2016 until Mid August 2016. 
Hours: 9 a.m. -12:00 p.m., and 1:00 p.m. - 4:30 p.m. 

* * * * * 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Cleared with principal- Date 

Cleared with Michael Lennox - Date 

Approved by Superintendent - Date 

Approved by John Forsj1he - Date /-12-/6, 

Except for performances or events open to the general public, all buildings will remain 
locked at the end of the day. Groups that have reserved facilities for use after a building 
has been locked will gain access to the building by the building custodial staff at the 
designated time. After the first arrival(s), it is expected that the group will be responsible 
for allowing other members ofthe group, who are authorized, into the building. 



January 13,2016 

To: City Council Members 

From: Joseph M. Butler, Jr., Mayor 

Subject: City Council Liaison to Flower Memorial Library Board of Trustees 

Since July 2008, former Council Member Roxanne M. Burns has served 
as the City Council Liaison to the Flower Memorial Library Board of Trustees. 

It is my pleasure to announce that Council Member Cody J. Horbacz has 
agreed to now serve in this role. 



January 13, 2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: James E. Mills, City Comptroller 

Subject: Sale of Surplus Hydro-electricity - December 2015 

The City has received the monthly hydro-electricity production and 
consumption data from National Grid. In comparison to December 2014, the December 
2015 sale of surplus hydro-electric power on an actual to actual basis is up $167,031 or 
33.27%. In comparison to the original budget projection for the month of December, 
revenue is up $313,746 or 88.30%. 

The year-to-date actual revenue is up $76,708 or 4.19% while the year-to­
date revenue on a budget basis is up $345,584 or 22.11 %. Year-to-date revenue is at 
$1,908,623. 

The attached spreadsheet shows the monthly revenues for this year and 
last year along with the budgeted amounts. Revenues for the Fiscal Years' 2011-12, 
2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15 have been included for historical perspective. 



% Inc/(Dec)to 
Actual 20 I 0-11 Actual 2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Actual 2014-15 Actual 2015-16 Variance Prior Year 

.luly $ 155,906 $ 58,161 $ 110,698 $ 382,759 $ 286,952 $ 321,539 $ 34,587 12.05% 
August $ 93,713 $ 60,957 $ 112,473 $ 123,196 $ 293,338 $ 138,008 $ (155,330) -52.95% 
September $ 83,982 $ 269,071 $ 98,811 $ 117,122 $ 121,197 $ 125,633 $ 4,436 3.66% 
October $ 381,302 $ 271,426 $ 261,082 $ 237,797 $ 296,432 $ 260,804 $ (35,628) -12.02% 
November $ 430,619 $ 248,928 $ 108,670 $ 473,459 $ 331.977 $ 393,589 $ 61,612 18.56% 
December $ 158,011 $ 446,292 $ 356,383 $ 323,081 $ 502,018 $ 669,049 $ 167,031 33.27% 
January $ 134,314 $ 145,673 $ 179,469 $ 240,183 $ 246,137 $ 
February $ 125,485 $ 95,930 $ 160,026 $ 225,629 $ 158,920 $ 
March $ 770,412 $ 342,560 $ 338,154 $ 232,743 $ 154,182 $ 
April $ 473,927 $ 294,811 $ 551,360 $ 468,075 $ 577,742 $ 
May $ 474,816 $ 417,317 $ 324,167 $ 660,449 $ 192,410 $ 
.lune $ 239,951 $ 114,976 $ 474,813 $ 421,856 $ 638,045 $ 

YTD 3,522,437 $ 2,766,103 $ 3,076,104 $ 3,906,347 $ 3,799,350 $ 1,908,623 $ 76,708 4.19% 

Original Budget 
2015-16 Actual 2015-16 Variance % 

.luly $ 218,208 $ 321,539 $ 103,331 47.35% 
August $ 133,611 $ 138,008 $ 4,397 3.29% 

September $ 126,478 $ 125,633 $ (845) -0.67% 

October $ 309,871 $ 260,804 $ ( 49,(67) -15.83% 

November $ 419,568 $ 393,589 $ (25,979) -6.19% 

December $ 355,303 $ 669,049 $ 313,746 88.30% 

.lanuary $ 284,742 $ 
February $ 226,286 $ 
March $ 383,472 $ 
April $ 542,313 $ 
May $ 494,559 $ 
.lune $ 295,589 $ 

YTD $ 3,790,000 $ 1,908,623 $ 345,584 22.11% 

Total Budget $ 3,790,000 



January 12,2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: James E. Mills, City Comptroller 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-16 GASB 45 Other Post-employment Benefits Actuarial 
Valuation 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 45 "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers/or 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions" the City has had Armory Associates, 
LLC value the City's retirement health plan obligations. The City is required to obtain a 
full valuation on a biennial basis and prepare an interim valuation for the years in 
between the full valuation. 

The following report calculates the City's total actuarial accrued liability 
at $130,233,084. The City continues to meet its retirement healthcare obligations on a 
pay-as-you-go basis and is not required to fund the outstanding actuarially calculated 
liability. Currently New York State does not have a statute that authorizes governments 
to create trusts to set aside assets for OPEB purposes. 

FY 2015-16 (Interim Valuation) 
FY 2014-15 (Full Valuation) 
FY 2012-13 (Full Valuation) 
FY 2010-11 (Full Valuation) 
FY 2008-09 (Full Valuation) 

Actuarial Accrued Liability 
$130,233,084 
$127,195,942 
$130,841,681 
$112,726,495 
$106,599,921 

The preparation of the FY 2015-16 report completes the four-year contract 
with Armory Associates, LLC. Requests for proposals to prepare this actuarial valuation 
report, as well the required attestation report related to Medicare Part D, will be sent out 
this spring. 



 

 

 

 

 

City of Watertown 
 

 

 

 

 

GASB 45 Other Post-employment Benefits  

Interim Actuarial Valuation for Fiscal 

Year Ending June 30, 2016 
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December 1, 2015 
 
Mr. James Mills 
City Comptroller 
City of Watertown 
245 Washington Street  
Suite 203 
Watertown, NY  13601 
 
Re: Retiree Medical Expense and Liability Calculations under GASB No. 45 
 
Dear Mr. Mills: 
 
We previously prepared a valuation of the City’s retiree medical benefits as of September 1, 2014. That 
valuation was completed for the purpose of determining the obligation and cost in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standard No. 45 (GASB), Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2015. This report 
was completed by Armory Associates to be in compliance with GASB 45 based on our understanding of the 
plan provisions and does not attempt to offer any accounting opinion or advice.  
 
GASB 45 states that plan sponsors with more than 200 members must complete an actuarial valuation at 
least biennially, allowing the results of the actuarial valuation to be utilized for multiple years. An interim 
report is allowed as long as there have not been significant material changes since the actuarial valuation 
was completed. 
 
This interim year report provides the information needed to comply with GASB 45 for the Fiscal Year 
ending June 30, 2016. Based on the information provided to us by the City, it is our opinion that an interim 
valuation report utilizing the results of the prior full actuarial valuation would satisfy the GASB 45 
requirements. However, your external auditor has the final decision regarding whether any updates are 
needed.  The information in this interim report includes, but not limited to, the following information: 
 

 Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 
 Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
 Annual OPEB Cost (AOC) 
 Projected Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) 
 20-Year Cash Flow Projections 
 Summary of Plan Provisions 

 
The results presented in this report are based on the employee data, methods and assumptions described in 
the actuarial valuation report completed for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2015. We will need to perform 
a new valuation as of September 1, 2016 to determine the ARC for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2017 
and June 30, 2018. 
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Mr. James Mills 
City of Watertown 
December 1, 2015 

Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
Please keep in mind that future actuarial valuation results may differ significantly from the current 
measurements presented in this report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from 
that anticipated by the economic or demographic assumptions, changes in economic or demographic 
assumptions, increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for 
these measurements, and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.  
 
I, the undersigned, am a Consulting Actuary for Armory Associates, LLC, am a member of the American 
Academy of Actuaries and meet the Qualification Standards of the Academy to render the actuarial opinion 
contained herein. To the best of my knowledge and belief, this report is complete and accurate and has been 
prepared in accordance with generally recognized and accepted actuarial principals which are consistent 
with the principles prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board and the Code of Professional Conduct and 
Qualification Standards for Public Statements of Actuarial Opinion of the American Academy of Actuaries.  
 
  
Respectfully submitted, 
 

     
__________________________________ 
Damon R. Hacker, ASA, MAAA 
Executive Vice President 
Armory Associates, LLC 
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SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

City of Watertown provides medical and prescription drug insurance benefits for retirees, spouses, and their covered 

dependents while contributing a portion of the expenses.  Such postemployment benefits are an included value in the 

exchange of salaries and benefits for employee services rendered.  An employee’s total compensation package includes 

not only the salaries and benefits received during active service, but all compensation and benefits received for their 

services during postemployment. Nevertheless, both types of benefits constitute compensation for employee services. 

 

Based on GASB 45 guidelines an employer with more than 200 participants must complete a full actuarial valuation at 

least biennially. However, a new valuation is required if significant changes have occurred since the previous actuarial 

valuation.   City of Watertown has chosen to do biennial valuations, therefore, the contents of this interim valuation is 

based on the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) from the September 1, 2014 Actuarial Valuation. The summary 

below identifies the value of the postemployment health care benefits for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016: 

 

 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) Government Sewer Water Total

Retirees & Dependents $78,755,173 $2,784,021 $3,104,003 $84,643,197
Actives 36,118,347 4,704,135 4,767,405 45,589,887
Deferred Vesteds 0 0 0 0
Total Actuarial Accrued Liability $114,873,520 $7,488,156 $7,871,408 $130,233,084
Additional Obligation attributable to future service 20,682,517 1,110,807 1,134,447 22,927,771
Present Value of Total Future Liability $135,556,037 $8,598,963 $9,005,855 $153,160,855

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

Normal Cost for Fiscal Year $1,743,255 $131,332 $134,612 $2,009,199
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 4,534,868 295,611 310,740 5,141,219
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $6,278,123 $426,943 $445,352 $7,150,418

Annual OPEB Cost

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $6,278,123 $426,943 $445,352 $7,150,418
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 560,078 43,138 63,027 666,243
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (535,049) (41,210) (60,210) (636,469)
Annual OPEB Cost $6,303,152 $428,871 $448,169 $7,180,192

Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year $14,001,963 $1,078,439 $1,575,665 $16,656,067
Annual OPEB Cost 6,303,152 428,871 448,169 7,180,192
Expected Employer Contributions (3,824,178) (167,881) (188,945) (4,181,004)
Expected Net OPEB Obligation - end of year $16,480,937 $1,339,429 $1,834,889 $19,655,255

Postretirement Health Care Benefits Program
City of Watertown

* These projections are based on the results of the September 01, 2014 valuation using a discount rate of 4%.

Actuarial Accrued Liability and Annual OPEB Cost
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016
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SECTION 2: INTRODUCTION 
 

Armory Associates, LLC is very pleased to be working with City of Watertown.  City of Watertown contracted with 

Armory Associates, LLC to assist in the determination of the present liability for postemployment medical insurance 

costs for the entire medical plan membership of City of Watertown. This analysis has been completed in accordance with 

GASB Statement No. 45; Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits other than 

Pensions.  

 

One of the most important foundational concepts to keep in mind throughout this analysis is that postemployment 

liabilities are being impacted by the fact that people are retiring earlier in life and living longer lives. With the average 

retirement age being approximately fifty-five (55) years old in the public sector and with people routinely living into 

their nineties (90’s), employers are having to utilize a greater portion of their operating budget each year to account for 

the extending periods of time in which benefit expenses are incurred. 

 

The motives behind such identification and funding of this liability is threefold: 

 

 It is prudent that your business’ annual budget recognizes the future financial obligations and/or liabilities 

associated with all benefits promised to both employees and retirees; 

 

 Awareness of the expected liabilities prevents future budgets from being overburdened with the financial 

obligations associated with the cost of retiree benefits; and 

 

 A sufficient system for funding postemployment benefits safeguards retirees in the unlikely event that the 

employer becomes no longer a viable entity. 

 

The goal of this process is not necessarily to fund the liability today, but rather to accurately identify the liability and 

establish a plan to effectively and efficiently manage the liability over time. This process will prepare City of Watertown 

for the financial impact associated with the pressures of providing sufficient postemployment benefits to the employees 

and retirees. 

 

Armory Associates, LLC will be available to answer all questions regarding this report or any other issues concerning 

City of Watertown. Should you have any additional questions regarding the information contained herein, please feel 

free to contact us at our offices by phone at (315) 752-0060. 

 

We would like to thank City of Watertown for this opportunity to serve as your consultant and we look forward to 

continuing a mutually beneficial relationship for many years to come. 
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SECTION 3: 20-YEAR PAYOUT PROJECTION 
 

 
The table below is a 20-year pay-as-you-go cash flow projection from last year’s full actuarial valuation for the OPEB 

plan and does not include the cost of benefits for currently employed members.  The projections are broken down into 

current retiree cost projections and future retiree cost projections.  For purposes of this interim valuation, the 2015 and 

2016  pay-as-you-go cost was used as the expected employer contributions. 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending Total

2015 $3,982,618
2016 $4,181,004
2017 $4,413,163
2018 $4,654,569
2019 $4,927,837
2020 $5,165,192
2021 $5,473,685
2022 $5,682,898
2023 $5,952,599
2024 $6,232,746
2025 $6,520,381
2026 $6,858,918
2027 $7,148,702
2028 $7,513,559
2029 $7,734,788
2030 $7,910,761
2031 $8,320,576
2032 $8,725,181
2033 $9,069,794
2034 $9,480,031

20-Year Pay-As-You-Go Projection
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SECTION 4: PLAN PROVISIONS 
 
Health Plans:   City of Watertown provides healthcare coverage to its retiree’s through its own self-funded 

plan, administered by POMCO. A summary of health benefits under this plan is as follows:   

    

   

In-Network Out-of-Network

Deductible

Coinsurance 100% after copay/deductible
80% UCR for first $500, 
100% UCR thereafter 
($100/$300 limit)

Inpatient Hospitalization

Office Visits
Non-Management: $7
Management: $4

Non-Management: $15
Management: $8

Emergency Room
Maximum Benefit

30 Day Supply

90 Day Supply

Covered in full
Unlimited (Organ Transplant Exception)

Prescription Drugs

Police & Fire: $5/$20/$35
CSEA/Management: $5/$10/$30
Police & Fire: $5/$15
CSEA/Management: $2.50/$7.50

City of Watertown Health Plan Benefit Summary

$120 Individual
$360 Family

Covered in full

 
     

Premium Rates:  The following are the monthly premium equivalent rates for both medical and prescription 

drug effective July 1, 2014. The premium equivalent rates are calculated based on the 

experience and demographic of the City and include administration and stop loss fees. 

   

Individual $583.26 

Family $1,306.50 

IBEW $1,155.00 

2014-2015 Monthly Medical Plan 
Premium Equivalent Rates

 
    

Monthly Administration & Stop Loss fees for 2014 are as follows: 

 

Administration Fees   Stop Loss Fees 

   Pomco: $25.58 per member per month Single: $21.13 

   ProAct: $.29 per claim (ends 1/1/2015) Family: $60.01 

        Aggregate: $4.40 per member per month 
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Retiree Eligibility & Contribution Requirements   

 

All active employees and retirees are subject to the following eligibility and contribution requirements: 

 

 Watertown Police Benevolent Association 

 

  Total Active Members: 63 

 

  Total Retired Members: 77 

 

Eligibility:  Members must be eligible to retire under the New York State Police & Fire 

Retirement System (PFRS) to be eligible for postemployment benefits from the 

City. A minimum of twenty (20) years of service is required for eligibility in PFRS.  

 

Contributions: Retiree contributions to medical coverage are based on the retiree’s hire date as 

follows: 

 

 Hired before June 30, 1983: Retirees receive 100% paid coverage from the City 

for individual or family coverage. 

 Hired between July 1, 1983 & June 9, 1998: 13% of the premium for individual 

or family coverage. 

 Hired after June 9, 1998: 13% of the premium for pre-65 individual or family 

coverage, 100% of the premium for post-65 individual or family coverage. 

 

 Surviving spouses may continue coverage at 100% of the individual premium cost. 

 

Medicare Part B:   The City of Watertown reimburses the full Medicare Part B premium rates to 

retirees, spouses, and surviving spouses. 

 

Length of Coverage: Lifetime. It has been assumed for this valuation that members would 

terminate coverage at 65 years of age if required to contribute greater than 

80% of premiums for post-65 coverage. 
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Management Employees 

 

  Total Active Members: 35 

 

  Total Retired Members: 32 

 

Eligibility:  Members must be eligible to retire under the New York State Employees 

Retirement System (ERS) to be eligible for postemployment benefits from the City. 

A minimum age of fifty-five (55) with a minimum of five (5) years of service for 

Tier 1-4 members or ten (10) years of service for Tier 5 members is required for 

eligibility in ERS.  

 

Contributions: Retiree contributions to medical coverage are based on the retiree’s hire date and 

Management level as follows: 

 

 Hired before July 1, 1983: Retirees receive 100% paid coverage from the City 

for individual or family coverage. 

 Hired between July 1, 1983 & January 1, 1996:  For single coverage, retiree 

pays $25 less than the contribution for family coverage on a bi-weekly basis. 

For family coverage, retiree pays 25% of the difference in premiums between 

individual and family coverage on a bi-weekly basis. 

 Hired on/after January 1, 1996: For pre-65single coverage, retiree pays $25 less 

than the contribution for family coverage on a bi-weekly basis. Post-65 single 

coverage requires retirees to pay 100% of the premium. For pre-65 family 

coverage, retiree pays 25% of the difference in premiums between individual 

and family coverage on a bi-weekly basis. Post-65 family coverage requires 

retirees to pay 100% of the premium. 

 Management promoted to Upper-Level on/after August 12, 2000: For pre-

65single coverage, retiree pays $25 less than the contribution for family 

coverage on a bi-weekly basis. Post-65 single coverage requires retirees to pay 

20% of the premium. For pre-65 family coverage, retiree pays 25% of the 

difference in premiums between individual and family coverage on a bi-weekly 

basis. Post-65 family coverage requires retirees to pay 20% of the premium. 

 Hired on/after January 1, 2012: 25% of the premium for individual coverage, 

19% of the premium for family coverage, with coverage ending at 65 years of 

age. 

 

 Surviving spouses may continue coverage at 100% of the individual premium cost. 

 

Medicare Part B:   The City of Watertown reimburses the full Medicare Part B premium rates to 

retirees, spouses, and surviving spouses. 

(cont.) 
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Management Employees (cont.) 

 

Length of Coverage: Lifetime for members hired prior to January 1, 2012. Members hired on/after 

January 1, 2012 covered until age 65. It has been assumed for this valuation 

that members would terminate coverage at 65 years of age if required to 

contribute greater than 80% of premiums for post-65 coverage. 

 

Watertown Professional Fire Fighters’ Association (Local 191) 

 

  Total Active Members: 74 

 

  Total Retired Members: 89 

 

Eligibility:  Members must be eligible to retire under the New York State Police & Fire 

Retirement System (PFRS) to be eligible for postemployment benefits from the 

City. A minimum of twenty (20) years of service is required for eligibility in PFRS.  

 

Contributions: Retiree contributions to medical coverage are based on the retiree’s hire date as 

follows: 

 

 Hired before June 30, 1983: Retirees receive 100% paid coverage from the City 

for individual or family coverage. 

 Hired between July 1, 1983 & October 9, 1997: 12% of the premium for 

individual or family coverage. 

 Hired after October 9, 1997: 12% of the premium for pre-65 individual or 

family coverage, 100% of the premium for post-65 individual or family 

coverage. 

 

 Surviving spouses may continue coverage at 100% of the individual premium cost. 

 

Medicare Part B:   The City of Watertown reimburses the full Medicare Part B premium rates to 

retirees, spouses, and surviving spouses. 

 

Length of Coverage: Lifetime. It has been assumed for this valuation that members would 

terminate coverage at 65 years of age if required to contribute greater than 

80% of premiums for post-65 coverage. 
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Civil Service Employees Association (Local 1000) 

 

  Total Active Members: 137 

 

  Total Retired Members: 107 

 

Eligibility:  Members must be eligible to retire under the New York State Employees 

Retirement System (ERS) to be eligible for postemployment benefits from the City. 

A minimum age of fifty-five (55) with a minimum of five (5) years of service for 

Tier 1-4 members or ten (10) years of service for Tier 5 members is required for 

eligibility in ERS.  

 

Contributions: Retiree contributions to medical coverage are based on the retiree’s hire date as 

follows: 

 

 Hired before July 1, 1983: Retirees receive 100% paid coverage from the City 

for individual or family coverage. 

 Hired between July 1, 1983 & December 23, 1993:  Retirees receive 100% paid 

coverage from the City for individual coverage. Retirees who wish to receive 

family coverage must contribute 12% of the difference in premiums between 

individual and family coverage. 

 Hired between December 23, 1993 & March 1, 1999: Retirees contribute 12% 

of the premium for individual or family coverage. 

 Hired on/after March 1, 1999: For pre-65coverage, retirees contribute 12% of 

the premium for individual or family coverage. Upon turning 65 years of age, 

retirees must contribute 100% of the premium for individual or family coverage. 

 

 Surviving spouses may continue coverage at 100% of the individual premium cost. 

 

Medicare Part B:   The City of Watertown reimburses the full Medicare Part B premium rates to 

retirees, spouses, and surviving spouses. 

 

Length of Coverage: Lifetime. It has been assumed for this valuation that members would 

terminate coverage at 65 years of age if required to contribute greater than 

80% of premiums for post-65 coverage. 
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IBEW (Local 1249) 

 

  Total Active Members: 3 

 

  Total Retired Members: 0 

 

Eligibility:  Members must be eligible to retire under the New York State Employees 

Retirement System (ERS) to be eligible for postemployment benefits from the City. 

A minimum age of fifty-five (55) with a minimum of five (5) years of service for 

Tier 1-4 members or ten (10) years of service for Tier 5 members is required for 

eligibility in ERS.  

 

Contributions: Retiree contributions to medical coverage are based on the retiree’s hire date as 

follows: 

 

 Hired before July 1, 2003: Retirees contribute 15% of the premium for 

individual or family coverage. 

 Hired between July 1, 2003 & June 30, 2007:  For pre-65coverage, retirees 

contribute 15% of the premium for individual or family coverage. No coverage 

is granted past age 65. 

 Hired on/after July 1, 2013: Retirees contribute 25% of the premium for 

individual or family coverage. No coverage is granted past age 65. 

 

 Surviving spouses may continue coverage at 100% of the individual premium cost. 

 

Medicare Part B:   The City of Watertown reimburses the full Medicare Part B premium rates to 

retirees, spouses, and surviving spouses. 

 

Length of Coverage: Lifetime for members hired before July 1, 2003. Members hired after July 1, 

2003 are covered until age 65. 
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SECTION 5: GASB OPEB SUMMARY 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45 for the recognition and disclosure of 

municipal employers’ (Counties, Cities, Towns, Villages, School Districts, etc.) postemployment benefit plans other than 

pensions. Postemployment benefits include health care benefits, life insurance benefits, dental insurance benefits, and in 

some cases unused sick day credits. These benefits arise from an exchange of salaries and benefits for employee services 

rendered and constitute part of the compensation for those services. 

 

Every Municipal employer will be required to conduct an actuarial analysis and provide a financial disclosure relative to 

the accrued liabilities of the postemployment benefit plans and the funded status of those liabilities. It is important to 

note that Statement No. 45 does not require the funding of this liability only the acquisition and disclosure of the data. 

 

 

Implementation Dates 

 

Phase 1: 

 Employers with annual revenues which exceed $100,000,000 

 Fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 

 

Phase 2: 

 Employers with annual revenues which exceed $10,000,000, but whose revenues are less than 

$100,000,000.00 

 Fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007 

 

Phase 3: 

 Employers with annual revenues which are less than $10,000,000 

 Fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 

 

 

 

Valuation Frequency 
For financial reporting purposes, a full actuarial valuation should be performed at the following minimum frequency: 

 a) Biennially for plans with a total membership of 200 or more 

 b) Triennially for plans with a total membership of fewer than 200  
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GASB 45 Terminology 

 

Actuarial Present Value of Total Projected Benefits: Total projected benefits include all benefits estimated to be 

payable to plan members (retirees and beneficiaries, terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them, 

and current active members) as a result of their service through the valuation date and their expected future service. The 

actuarial present value of total projected benefits as of the valuation date is the present value of the cost to finance 

benefits payable in the future, discounted to reflect the expected effects of the time value (present value) of money and 

the probabilities of payment. Expressed another way, it is the amount that would have to be invested on the valuation 

date so that the amount invested in addition to investment earnings will provide sufficient assets to pay total projected 

benefits when due. 

 

 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL): The AAL is the portion, as determined by a particular Actuarial Cost Method, 

of the actuarial present value of the total future benefits based on the employees’ service rendered to the measurement 

date. 

 

 

Annual Required Contributions (ARC): The employer’s periodic required contributions to a defined benefit 

OPEB Plan, calculated in accordance with the parameters.  

 

 

Annual OPEB Cost: An accrual-base measure of the periodic cost of an employer’s participation in a defined benefit 

OPEB plan. 

 

 

Net OPEB Obligation: The cumulative difference since the effective date of this Statement annual OPEB cost and the 

employer’s contributions to the plan, including the OPEB liability (assets) at transition, if any, and excluding (a) short-

term differences and (b) unpaid contributions that have been converted to OPEB-related debt. 

 

 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL): The excess of the Actuarial Accrued Liability over the Actuarial 

Value of Assets. For an unfunded plan the UAAL is equal to the AAL. 
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SECTION 6: YEAR-END DISCLOSURE ACCOUNTING INFORMATION 
 

 

Required Information FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014
Annual required contribution $7,150,418 $6,952,705 $7,614,417
Interest on net OPEB obligation 666,243 546,462 402,202
Adjustment to annual required contribution (636,469) (522,042) (384,228)
   Annual OPEB cost (expense) 7,180,192 6,977,125 7,632,391
Contibutions made (expected) (4,181,004) (3,982,618) (4,025,882)
   Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,999,188 2,994,507 3,606,509
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 16,656,067 13,661,560 10,055,051
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $19,655,255 $16,656,067 $13,661,560

Annual OPEB Cost 7,180,192 6,977,125 7,632,391
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 58.2% 57.1% 52.7%
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year 19,655,255 16,656,067 13,661,560

Required Supplementary Information
Actuarial Value of Assets 0 0 0
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 130,233,084 127,195,942 134,515,815
Unfunded AAL 130,233,084 127,195,942 134,515,815
Funded Ratio 0% 0% 0%

Covered Payroll* N/A N/A 18,459,558
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll* N/A N/A 729%

Discount rate at end of year 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected Return on plan assets N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

* Required disclosure at adoption of standard.

City of Watertown - Total
Year-End Disclosures under GASB #45

For the Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Program
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Required Information FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014
Annual required contribution $6,278,123 $6,111,573 $6,817,233
Interest on net OPEB obligation 560,078 461,284 338,101
Adjustment to annual required contribution (535,049) (440,671) (322,992)
   Annual OPEB cost (expense) 6,303,152 6,132,186 6,832,340
Contibutions made (expected) (3,824,178) (3,662,353) (3,752,755)
   Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,478,974 2,469,833 3,079,585
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 14,001,961 11,532,128 8,452,543
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $16,480,935 $14,001,961 $11,532,128

Annual OPEB Cost 6,303,152 6,132,186 6,832,342
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 60.7% 59.7% 54.9%
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year 16,480,935 14,001,961 11,532,128

Required Supplementary Information
Actuarial Value of Assets 0 0 0
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 114,873,520 112,365,064 120,695,891
Unfunded AAL 114,873,520 112,365,064 120,695,891
Funded Ratio 0% 0% 0%

Covered Payroll* N/A N/A N/A
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll* N/A N/A N/A

Discount rate at end of year 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected Return on plan assets N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

* Required disclosure at adoption of standard.

City of Watertown - Government
Year-End Disclosures under GASB #45

For the Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Program
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Required Information FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014
Annual required contribution $426,943 $411,184 $335,035
Interest on net OPEB obligation 43,138 32,414 24,946
Adjustment to annual required contribution (41,210) (30,965) (23,831)
   Annual OPEB cost (expense) 428,871 412,633 336,151
Contibutions made (expected) (167,881) (144,536) (149,451)
   Increase in net OPEB obligation 260,990 268,097 186,700
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 1,078,440 810,343 623,643
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $1,339,430 $1,078,440 $810,343

Annual OPEB Cost 428,871 412,633 336,150
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 39.1% 35.0% 44.5%
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year 1,339,430 1,078,440 810,343

Required Supplementary Information
Actuarial Value of Assets 0 0 0
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 7,488,156 7,217,703 6,017,152
Unfunded AAL 7,488,156 7,217,703 6,017,152
Funded Ratio 0% 0% 0%

Covered Payroll* N/A N/A N/A
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll* N/A N/A N/A

Discount rate at end of year 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected Return on plan assets N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

* Required disclosure at adoption of standard.

City of Watertown - Sewer
Year-End Disclosures under GASB #45

For the Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Program
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Required Information FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014
Annual required contribution $445,352 $429,948 $462,149
Interest on net OPEB obligation 63,027 52,764 39,155
Adjustment to annual required contribution (60,210) (50,406) (37,405)
   Annual OPEB cost (expense) 448,169 432,306 463,900
Contibutions made (expected) (188,945) (175,729) (123,676)
   Increase in net OPEB obligation 259,224 256,577 340,224
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 1,575,666 1,319,089 978,865
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $1,834,890 $1,575,666 $1,319,089

Annual OPEB Cost 448,169 432,306 463,899
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 42.2% 40.6% 26.7%
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year 1,834,890 1,575,666 1,319,089

Required Supplementary Information
Actuarial Value of Assets 0 0 0
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 7,488,156 7,613,175 7,802,772
Unfunded AAL 7,488,156 7,613,175 7,802,772
Funded Ratio 0% 0% 0%

Covered Payroll* N/A N/A N/A
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll* N/A N/A N/A

Discount rate at end of year 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected Return on plan assets N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

* Required disclosure at adoption of standard.

City of Watertown - Water
Year-End Disclosures under GASB #45

For the Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Program
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SECTION 7: SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE SS-2 - OPEB 
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

 

 Type of Other Post Employment Benefit Plan (OPEB): Single Employer Defined Benefit Plan 

 

 Annual Required Contribution:      $7,150,418  

 

 Interest on Net OPEB Obligation:      $666,243  

 

 Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution:    (636,469) 

 

 Annual OPEB Expense:       $7,180,192  

 

 Less: Actual (Expected) Contribution Made:     (4,181,004) 

 

 Increase in Net OPEB Obligation:      $2,999,188  

 

 Net OPEB Obligation – beginning of year:     $16,656,067  

 

 Net OPEB Obligation – end of year:     $19,655,255  

 

 Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed:   58.2% 

 

Funded Status and Funding Process 
 

 Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL):     $130,233,084  

 

 Less: Actuarial Value of Plan Assets:     $0 

 

 Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability:     $130,233,084  

 

 Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL):    0% 

 

 Annual Covered Payroll*:       N/A 

 

 UAAL as Percentage of Annual Covered Payroll*:    N/A 

 

*Required disclosure at adoption of standard.
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Other OPEB Information 
 

 Date of Most Recent Actuarial Valuation (mm/dd/yyyy):  09/01/2012 

 

 Actuarial Method Used:       Entry Age Normal 

 

 Assumed Rate of Return on Investments Discount Rate:   4% 

 
 Assumed Salary/Payroll Growth Rate:    3% 

 

 Amortization Period of UAAL (in years):     30.00  
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ADDENDUM: GASB 45 RESULTS BY LABOR DIVISION 
 
The following tables display the results of the Interim Valuation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 by the City’s 

five labor divisions- CSEA, Fire, IBEW, Management, and Police- and the results broken down by the City’s two 

subdivisions- Sewer and Water. The employees in the Sewer and Water subdivisions are members of the CSEA 

bargaining unit. Sewer and Water Management are included in the Management bargaining unit and thus are not 

included in the bottom table. 

 

Division Actives Retirees

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability Normal Cost

Amortization 
Payment

Annual Required 
Contriubtion

CSEA 137 107 41,083,876$             642,618$                  1,621,870$               2,264,488$               

Fire 74 89 35,725,798$             630,249$                  1,410,349$               2,040,598$               

IBEW 3 0 1,126,362$               28,874$                    44,465$                    73,339$                    

Management 35 32 13,835,561$             140,251$                  546,188$                  686,439$                  

Police 63 77 38,461,487$             567,207$                  1,518,347$               2,085,554$               

Total 312 305 130,233,084$           2,009,199$               5,141,219$               7,150,418$               

Subdivisions Actives Retirees

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability Normal Cost

Amortization 
Payment

Annual Required 
Contriubtion

Sewer 25 10 7,488,156$               131,332$                  295,611$                  426,943$                  

Water 28 13 7,871,408$               134,612$                  310,740$                  445,352$                  

* These projections are based on the results of the September 01, 2014 valuation using a discount rate of 4%.

City of Watertown
Postretirement Health Care Benefits Program

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016
Actuarial Accrued Liability and Annual Required Contribution by Division

 
 



January 13,2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: James E. Mills, City Comptroller 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2014-15 Audit Report 

Attached for your review is a copy of the independent audit report for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 as prepared by Bowers & Company CPAs PLLC. The 
audit report is also available on the City Comptroller's web page. 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 
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BOWERS ~ MPAN Y 
CPAs PLLC 

CERTIF IED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actJvltles, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, incl uding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Watertown, New York as of June 30, 2015, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2015 the City adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -
Amendment to GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4-20, the schedule of the funding progress of the 
post employment healthcare benefit plan on page 75, budgetary comparison schedule - general 
fund on page 76, and the Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability -
NYSLRS Pension Plan on page 77, and the Schedule of the City's Contributions - NYSLRS 
Pension Plan on page 78 to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquilies of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Watertown, New York' s basic financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 84 is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-I33, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. The infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards on page 84 is fairly stated, in all matelial respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Governmellt Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 21, 2015, on our consideration of the City of Watertown, New York's internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Watertown, New York' s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Watertown, New York 
December 21, 2015 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA nON 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June30, 2015 

As management of the City of Watertown (the "City") we offer this overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the City of Watertown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 5. This 
discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial 
issues, (b) provide an overview of the financial activity, (c) identify changes in the City's 
financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (d) identify any 
material deviations from the approved budget, and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns. 
Since management's discussion and analysis is designed to focus on the current year's activities, 
resulting changes, and known facts, readers are encouraged to consider the infonnation presented 
here in conjunction with the financial statements that follow. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at 
June 30, 2015 by $85,093 ,120 (net position). 

• The City's total net position decreased $3,086,641 in fiscal year 2014-15, which does not 
include a prior period adjustment of ($2,865,943) related to the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 68, a prior period adjustment reducing the governmental activities' 
compensated absences liability by $592,273 and a prior period adjustment of $224,048 from 
business-type activities to governmental activities for reclassifying reimbursements and 
expenditures related to the Factory Street reconstruction project. 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of$25,047,342. 

• General Fund revenues of $40,472,364 on a budgetary basis fell short of budgeted revenues 
by $370,915 or 0.92% while budgetary basis expenditures finished $1,698,124 lower than 
budgeted expenditures. These results reduced the need to use the full $1 ,607,857 in 
appropriated fund balance budgeted for in the 2014-15 General Fund budget. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$9,827,180 or 24.11 % of total General Fund expenditures. 

• The City issued $10,000,000 in serial bonds dated June 25, 2015 maturing June 15,2040 at 
interest rates ranging from 3.00% through 3.50% (priced to yield 3.43%) to provide financing 
for the Arena rehabilitation project. 

• The City issued $5,810,000 in serial bonds dated June 25,2015 maturing June 15,2030 at 
interest rates ranging from 2.00% through 3.125% (priced to yield 2.80%) to provide 
financing for various capital projects. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic 
financial statements. The City' s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 
(I) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the 
financial statements. The financial statements' focus is on both the City as a whole (govemment­
wide) and on the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) 
allow users to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (inter-period or 
intergovernmental) and enhance the City' s accountability. This report also contains 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements, which further explains 
and supports the infonnation presented in these statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the activities of the 
City, except of a fiduciary nature, are included in these statements. The govenunent-wide 
statements provide short-tenn and long-tenn infonnation about the City's financial status as a 
whole. 

The Statement of Net Position presents infonnation on all of the City' s assets (including capital 
assets) and liabilities (including long-term debt), with the difference between the two reported as 
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall 
health of the City, other indicators, including non-financial indicators like the City 's property tax 
base, bond ratings, the condition of its infrastructure, and the County's sales tax base, should also 
be considered. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City' s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. Since full accrual accounting is used for the government-wide 
statements, all changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and interest payments on debt). This statement also focuses on 
both the gross and net costs of the various functions of the City, based only on direct functional 
revenues and expenses. This is designed to show the extent to which the various functions are 
self-supporting and/or dependent on general taxes and other revenues for support. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30,2015 

Government-Wide Financial Statements - Continued 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include most of the 
City's basic services such as the City' s fire and police services, public works, parks and 
recreation, the bus system, library and general government support. Sales tax, property taxes, 
and State Aid finance most of these services. The business-type activities of the City include the 
water and sewer utilities. User fees support these activities. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Watertown itself (known 
as the primary government), but also the Watertown Empire Zone as a blended component unit 
as it is not a legally separate entity and the Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library Board of 
Trustees as a discretely presented component unit. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related 
accounts, which are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives. These statements provide more detailed information about the 
City ' s most significant funds (major funds) and not the City as a whole. All of the funds of the 
City can be divided into three categories: (I) governmental funds, (2) proprietary funds and (3) 
fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near­
tenn sources and uses of available resources. These funds are reported using the modified accrual 
method of accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily 
converted to cash. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAL YSrS 
June 30, 2015 

Fund Financial Statements - Continued 

The governmental funds statements provide a more detailed short-term view that helps determine 
whether there are more or fewer fmancial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
the City's programs. Because the focus (current financial resources) of governmental funds is 
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements (total economic resources), it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information 
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, 
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near term financing decisions. 
Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the govenunental fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Watertown maintains numerous individual governmental funds. lnformation is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General, Capital Projects and 
Community Development Funds, which are considered to be the City's major governmental funds. 
Data for the other governmental funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. To demonstrate 
compliance with the budget, a Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund has been 
provided as Required Supplemental lnformation following the Basic Financial Statements. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers 
(both external and internal). These funds use accrual accounting, which is the same method used 
by the private sector. The City of Watertown has two proprietary or enterprise funds. The City's 
proprietary funds are the Water and Sewer Funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information as shown in the govenunent-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The 
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the enterprise funds, 
both of which are considered to be major funds of the City. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the City, these assets are 
restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the City. Therefore, these assets 
are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements. These funds are reported using the 
accrual accounting method. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund fmaneial statements. 

Other Information 

Following the basic fmancial statements is additional required supplementary information that 
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. This section includes 
the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government' s 
financial position. At June 30, 2015, the City's assets exceeded liabilities by $85,093,120 
compared to $91,045,704 at June 30, 2014. By far the largest portion of the City's net position 
(89.61 %) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, building, equipment, improvements, 
construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that 
is still outstanding. Capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets are 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must 
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. 

The City' s total net position decreased by $3,086,641, which did not include a prior period 
adjustment of ($2,865,943) related to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 and a prior 
period adjustment of $592,273 to restate the government activities' compensated absences 
liability. 

An additional $11,464,755 or 13.47% of the net position represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. Currently, the amount of restricted net position 
represents the net position of the Watertown Empire Zone, Alex T. DuffY Fairgrounds Stadium 
Repair Reserve Fund, Capital Reserve Fund, Tourism Fund, Community Development Fund, 
Capital Projects Fund, Workers Compensation Fund, Insurance Liability Fund and Debt Service 
Fund. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 20 15 

Government-wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

City of Watertown's Net Position 
Governmental Activities Business-!J:::Qe Activities 
6/30115 6/30114 6/30115 6/3011 4 

Current and other $32,793,756 $24,272,742 $10,59 1,786 $9,326,473 
assets 
Capital Assets 69,471,35 1 69,656, 171 42,040,006 38,476,8 19 
Total Assets $102,265, 107 ~93,928,9 13 ~52 ,63 1 ,792 ~47,803,292 

Deferred Outflows 658,084 11 7,958 72,667 -

Long-tenn $39,176,839 $25, 150,855 $17,356,06 1 $12,774, 133 
liabilities 
outstanding 

Other liabilities 10,373,589 9,853,967 3,351,081 3,025,504 
Total liabilities ~49,550,428 ~35,004,822 $20,707, 142 $ 15,799,637 

Deferred Inflows 259,918 - 17,042 --

Net Position: 
Invested in Capital $46,563,475 $55,321,873 $29,688,076 $29,530,552 
Assets, net of 
related debt 

Restricted 11 ,429,370 3,635,806 35,385 13 ,913 
Unrestricted (4,880,000) 84,370 2,256,814 2,459, 190 
Total Net Position $21 11 28~5 $52 Q42 Q42 $31 ,280 215 $32 Q03 655 
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Total 
6/30115 6130/ 14 

$43,385,542 $33,599,2 15 

111 ,51 1,357 108,132,990 
$154,896,899 ~ 141 ,732,205 

730,75 1 11 7,958 

$56,532,900 $37,924,988 

13,724,670 12,879,47 1 
$70,257,570 $50,804,459 

276,960 -

$76,25 1,55 1 $84,852,425 

11 ,464,755 3,649,719 
(2,623,186) 2,543,560 

$85 Q23 L2Q $2 1 0~5 10~ 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 201 5 

Government-wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

The fo llowing table provides a summary of the City's operations for the year ended June 30, 20 15. 

City .fW._wa'l C ..... if! ia Net POIItioa 
Governmental Activities Business-tv: e Activities Total 

Revenues: 6130115 6130114 6130115 6130114 6130115 6130114 
Promm Revenues: 
Charges for services $8, 123,073 $8,056,136 $10,915,386 $10,194,269 $ 19,038,459 $18,250,405 
Operating grants and contributions 3,079,796 2,078,42 1 · · 3,079,796 2,078,42 1 
Capital grants and contributions 517,382 887,561 324,801 617, 105 842,183 1,504,666 
General revenu(."'S: 
Property taxes 8,422,399 7,917,421 · · 8,422,399 7,917,421 
Sales tax 17, 129,685 17,0 17,000 · · 17, 129,685 17,0 17,000 
Uti li ties gross receipts tax 304,468 350,345 · · 304,468 350,345 
Franchise tax 383,828 388,550 · · 383,828 388,550 
Mortgage tax 254,595 363,701 · · 254,595 363,70 1 
Hotel occupancy tax 231,784 24 1,395 · · 23 1,784 24 1,395 
Grants and Entitlements not restricted 4,703,208 4,703,208 · · 4,703,208 4,703,208 
to specific programs 
Investment earnings 15,698 106,337 13.097 50,323 28,795 156.660 
Total revenues $43 1659 16 $42 110075 $ 11 ,253,284 $ 10,86 1,697 $54,419,200 $52,971,772 
Ex penses: 
General government support $ 14,843,228 $ 13,926,627 · · $14,843,228 $ 13,926,627 
Hvdroelectric production 850,845 634,045 · · 850,845 634,045 
Fire 8, 13 1,314 8,882,262 · · 8, 13 1,3 14 8,882,262 
Police 7,788,701 7,653,938 · · 7,788,701 7,653,938 
Other Pub lic Safety 614,248 349,786 · · 614,248 349,786 
Public Works 6,5 11 ,279 7,09 1,270 · · 6,51 1,279 7,09 1,270 
Bus 867,278 9 10,460 · · 867,278 9 10,460 
Watertown Empire Zone 4,46 1 4,376 · · 4,461 4,376 
Other Economic Assistance 94,563 106,008 · · 94,563 106,008 
Library 1,203, 175 1,208,378 · · 1,203, 175 1,208,378 
Other Culture and Recreation 1,845,979 2,006,903 · · 1,845,979 2,006,903 
Refuse and Recyclin~ 888,860 883,759 · · 888,860 883,759 
Other Home and Community Servo 2,762,6 15 2,462,697 · · 2,762,6 15 2,462,697 
Interest on Debt Service 549,226 576,237 · · 549,226 576,237 
Water . . 5,230,657 5, 152,941 5,230,657 5,152,941 
Sewer . . 5.3 19,412 4,925,776 5,3 19,412 4,925,776 
Total Expenses t46 955 772 $46,696,746 $ 10,550,069 ~ I 0,078,717 ~57,505,841 $56,775,463 
Excess of Revenues over Expenses (3,789,856) (4,586,67 1 ) 703,2 15 782,980 (3,086,64 1 ) (3,803,691) 
Transfers 30,000 30000 (30000) (30000) . : . 

Change in Net Position (3,759,856) (4,556,67 1 ) 673,2 15 752,980 (3,086,641 ) (3,803,69 1 ) 
Net Position Be~innin~, Restated 56,872,701 63 ,598,720 3 1 307060 31 250675 88 17976 1 94849395 
Net Position - Endin~ $.illl2.H5. $29M2..JM2 $31 28Q 2.25. lli.Qlll.li.iS $.8.i,Q2l.l2fl $.llM.i.1M 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Government-wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City's net position by a total 
$3,759,856 compared to last year's decrease of$4,556,671. 

The major factors contributing to the overall revenue increase of $1 ,055,841 were: 

• Charges for services increased minimally by $66,937 primarily due to an increase of 
$40,776 in property sales, an increase of $79,155 in prescription rebates received for 
the City 's health plan spending, and an increase of $23,917 for the City' s refuse 
stickers and tote service. Offsetting these increases was a decrease of $106,997 or 
2.74% in the sale of the City's excess hydro-electricity. 

• Revenue from the City's sales tax distribution agreement with Jefferson County is the 
City' s largest revenue source. Sales tax totaled $17,129,685 for the year which was 
an increase of only $112,685 or 0.66% over last year' s total of$17,017,000. Sales tax 
revenue represented 39.68% of the governmental activities' revenue in FY 14115 
compared to 40.41 % in FY 13/14. 

• Revenues from property tax related items increased $504,978 or 6.38% primarily due 
to the levy being increased $78 1,896 or 10.40%. Offsetting that increase was an 
increase over the prior year to the property tax reserve account of $210,527 to 
increase the allowance for uncollectible property taxes on certain parcels that were in 
bankruptcy or slated to be demolished. 

• Operating grants increased by $1 ,001,375 primarily due to an increase of $900,377 
over last year for grants received for our Community Development projects such as 
the Restore NY grant for the redevelopment of the Woolworth Building downtown. 
This year's funding for that project totaled $1 ,490,443. The base level of New York 
State Aid to Municipalities (AIM) remained unchanged from the FY 2013-14 level of 
$4,703,208. 

• Capital grants received by the City decreased by $370,179. The City did receive 
$517,382 in Federal and State Aid for various projects. Some of the major capital 
projects receiving aid include the Consolidated Local Street and Highway 
Improvement Program for various streets ($218,317), former Ogilivie site 
environmental rehabilitation ($165,891), Gaffney Drive sidewalk project ($63,424) 
and the Factory Street reconstruction project ($23,498). 

• Revenues received from the mortgage tax decreased by $109, I 06 or 30.00% from last 
year to $254,595. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Government-wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

The major factors contributing to the overall expense increase of $259,026 were: 

• General government support increased $916,601 primarily due to an increase in the 
City' s health insurance plan claim costs of $1,377,879 which was offset by the 
decreases in the OPEB obligation of $339,362 and net pension obligation of $164,974 
for the City 's general government support. 

• Fire expenses decreased $750,948 due to a reduction in the liability for workers 
compensation claims by $117,937, a decrease in the fire department's OPEB 
obligation by $104,934 and a decrease in the department's net pension obligation by 
$320,090. 

• Public works expenses decreased $579,991 due to a reduction in the liability for 
workers compensation claims by $150,257, a decrease in the capital project 
expenditures not capitalized by $162,083, a decrease in the departments ' OPEB 
obligation by $36,445 and a decrease in the departments ' net pension obligation by 
$121,942. 

• Expenses related to the City 'S hydro-electric production increased $216,800 due to an 
increase of $57,952 in workers compensation claim costs and a loss on disposal of 
assets of $154,662. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City' s net position by $673,215 
compared to $752,980 last year. Key elements for this year are as follows: 

• Water operating revenues increased by $41 ,181 or 0.82% to $5,075,308 while 
operating expenses increased by $92,083 or 1.84% to $5,110,095. Revenues related 
to City customers increased $78,493 or 5.58%. 

• The City has a contract with the Development Authority of the North Country to 
produce and deliver treated fresh water to Fort Drum as well as other outside water 
districts connected to the Development Authority of the North Country' s water 
distribution line. In the current fiscal year the revenue derived from this agreement 
was $679,426 or a decrease of $44,235 or 6.11% over last year' s total of $723,661. 
Water revenues from this agreement accounted for 14.26% of the total water revenues 
compared to 14.38% last year. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Government-wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

• Total revenues from water sales to outside of the City customers such as the 
Development Authority of the North Country and Town of Watertown water districts 
was $1 ,485,689 or an increase of $78,493 or 5.58% over last year's total of 
$1,407,196. Water revenues to outside of the City customers represented 29.27% of 
the water operating revenues compared to 27.95% last year. 

• Sewer operating revenues increased by $679,936 or 13.18% to $5,840,078 and 
operating expenses increased by $332,486 or 6.97% to $5,103,669. Revenues related 
to City customers increased $148,241 or 6.14%. Debt service costs increased 
$380,222 or 67.13% due to the first debt service payment of$415,123 related to the 
disinfection system project. 

• The City has a contract with the Development Authority of the North Country to 
provide wastewater treatment services to Fort Drum as well as other outside sewer 
districts. In the current fiscal year the revenue derived from this agreement was 
$1,060,453 or an increase of$371,912 or 54.01% over last year's total of $688,541. 
The debt service portion of the annual sewer revenues from the Development 
Authority of the North Country increased $160,644 due to the debt service increase 
related to the waste water disinfection system. Sewer revenues from this agreement 
accounted for 18.16% of the total sewer revenues compared to 13.34% last year. 

• Total sewer revenues from outside of the City customers such as the Development 
Authority of the North Country and Town of Watertown districts was $2,038,975 or 
an increase of $380,817 or 22.97% over last year's total of $1 ,658,158. Sewer 
revenues to outside of the City customers represented 34.91 % of the sewer operating 
revenues compared to 32.13% last year. 

$6,000,000 

$5,500,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,500,000 

Business-type Activities - Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Water r=",----=c;::----, 
o Revenues • Expenses 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

The focus of the City' s governmental funds is to provide infonnatiQD on near-tenn inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City 's 
financing requirements. [n particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At June 30, 2015 the City' s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$25,047,342 representing an increase of$8,323,604 or 49.77% in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 39% or $9,827,180 represents the unassigned fund balance which is available for 
spending at the City'S discretion. The remainder of fund balance is 1) lIoll-spelldable to indicate 
that it is not available for new spending because it must be maintained intact for prepaid 
expenditures ($19,580), and 2) restricted to indicate limitations on its use imposed by grants, 
debt or legislation ($11 ,429,370). 

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $9,827,180, while the total 
General Fund balance equaled $16,202,052 compared to $15,908,061 in the prior year. As a 
measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund 
balance and total fund balance to total expenditures and other financing uses. Unassigned fund 
balance represents 24.11 % of total General Fund expenditures and other financing uses compared 
to 22.57% last year, while total fund balance represents 39.76% of that same amount compared 
to 39.42% last year. 

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City'S General Fund decreased by 
$280,648 compared to last year's decrease of$330,346. 

Capital projects fund. The capital projects fund accounts for the construction and acquisition of 
the capital assets of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was 
$8,260,988 compared to $327,377 in the previous year. Within the current year $8,143,774 is 
considered restricted due to debt financing and $117,214 is considered assigned due to the 
funding being from operating fund transfers. 

Proprietary funds. The City'S proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year of the Water Fund was $815,140 compared 
to $1 ,163,798 in the prior fiscal year. The water fund had a decrease in net position in the amount 
of $160,041 compared to a decrease of $62,542 in the previous year. 

14 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds - Continued 

Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year of the Sewer Fund was $1,441 ,674 
compared to $1,295,392 in the prior year. The Sewer Fund had an increase in net position in the 
amount of $833,256 compared to an increase of $815,522 in the prior fiscal year. Other factors 
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the 
City 's business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The General Fund budget was not re-adopted during the fiscal year. However other routine 
budget amendments between departmental expenditure accounts did occur. 

General Fund revenues of $40,472,364 on a budgetary basis fell short of final budgeted revenues of 
$40,843,279 by $370,915 or 0.92% while budgetary basis expenditures of $40,753,012 were 
$1 ,698,124 or 4.00% lower than the final budgeted expenditures of $42,451,136. The shortage of 
actual revenues to budgeted revenues is primarily due to the lower than anticipated sales tax 
revenue ($360,315), mortgage tax ($120,405), stop loss insurance on the City's health plan 
($66,819), utilities gross receipts tax ($35,532) and Federal transportation assistance ($234,000) 
due to the transition of the City's bus system from a Section 5311 program (0 a Section 5307 
program. Revenues that did exceed budgetary expectations were the sale of hydro-electric power 
($199,350), prescription rebates ($106,577), and inter-fund transfers ($81,887). Actual 
expenditures were lower than the budgeted expenditures due mostly to health insurance premiums 
($225,001), retirement costs ($336,562), materials and supplies ($224,469) and utilities ($98,877). 
These combined results reduced the use of $1 ,607,857 in appropriated fund balance that was 
budgeted in the 2014-15 General Fund original adopted budget to $280,648. 

15 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 20 15 

Capital Assets and Debt Adminjstration 

The City 's investment in capital assets, net of related debt, for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2015, amounts to $76,251 ,551. This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, traffic signals and other infrastructure. 

CUy orWater1own'. Capital Assets. Net or AceumuIated Deprecladon 
Govenunental Activities Business-tv e Activities Total 
6/30115 6/30114 6/30/15 6/30114 6/3011 5 6/30/14 

Land $2,62 1,285 $2,60 1,285 $ - $ - $2,62 1,285 $2,601 ,285 
Construction in Progress 3,860,046 2,574,983 7,911 ,516 4,917,543 11 ,771 ,562 7,492,526 

Land Improvements 3,156,129 3,416,095 58 177 3,156,187 3,416,272 
Building and 19,427,114 19,553,982 11 ,388 ,947 11 ,935,264 30,816,061 31,489,246 
Improvements 
Infrastructure 36,4 14,055 38,034,061 19,317,888 18,306,261 55 ,731 ,943 56,340,322 
Machinery and 2,546,645 2,141 ,614 3,160,057 2,747,050 5,706,702 4,888 ,664 
Equipment 
Vehicles 1,446.077 1,607,539 261,540 297,136 1,707.617 1,904,675 
Total Capital Assets ~~q471 35.1 $.62. I?q "q H2.o'lO QQ1i llJ8.203,43J $11 'ill 1,' $IOR 11:' qqo 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following projects: 

• Completed the dosing station downstream dam rehabilitation project at a cost of $446,967. 

• Completed the construction of the parallel water transmission main to the Thompson Park 
reservoirs at a cost of $945,421. 

• Completed masonry restorations at the Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library at a cost of 
$335,780. 

• Replaced trickling filter distributor assemblies at the waste water treatment facility at a cost 
of$582,633. 

• Acquired and constructed a pre-engineered metal building behind the Arena to use as a storage 
facility for the Parks and Recreation Department at a cost of $275, 188. 

• Continued design of the Factory Street reconstruction project which is estimated to cost 
approximately over $12,900,000 and include the reconstruction of 2,600 linear feet of street 
as well as the replacement of the sidewalks, curbs, water main and sanitary sewer. 
Construction in progress at year-end was $2,406,638. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration - Continued 

• Began rehabilitation of the Thompson Park water tower tank. The project is estimated to cost 
$ I ,005,000. Construction in progress at fiscal year-end was $832,277. 

• Continued the construction of a disinfection system for both treatment outfalls at the 
wastewater treatment plant. The system is mandated in the renewed State Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) permit provided by the New York State Department 
of Environmental Conservation. The estimated cost of the project IS $6,100,000. 
Construction in progress at fiscal year-end was $5,927,538. 

• Began construction on the Arena rehabilitation project which is estimated to cost over 
$10,500,000 and include the roof repair, floor replacement, fire suppression system upgrade, 
locker and restroom renovations and vestibule and office expansions. Construction in 
progress at year-end was $1,793,989. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can he found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$38,465,000. This entire amount is backed by the full faith and credit of the City of Watertown. 
Following is a comparative statement of outstanding debt: 

City or Watertown's Outstanding Debt 
Governmental Activities Business-tXQe Activities Total 

6/30115 6/30/ 14 6/30/ 15 6/30114 6/30115 6/30/14 

General obligation bonds $23,010,176 ~ 14,452,258 $15,454,824 $ 11 ,567,742 $38,465,000 $26,020,000 

$23 QIQ 116 $1'1452258 .$15454,824 $11,561 H2 .$18.,465 QQQ .$26 Q2Q QQQ 

The New York State Constitution restricts the City's level of indebtedness to an amount no greater than 
7% of the average full valuation of taxable real property for the most recent five years. Water debt, 
sewer debt, self-sustaining debt and refunded debt are excluded from the debt limit calculation. 
Accordingly, as of June 30, 2015, the City's NYS Constitutional debt limit was $78,460,975 with total 
net indebtedness of $18,685,426 after statutory exclusions thus exhausting 23.81% of the City's debt 
limit. 

The City issued $10,000,000 in serial bonds dated June 25, 2015 maturing June 15,2040 at interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% through 3.50% (priced to yield 3.43%) to provide financing for the Arena 
rehabilitation project. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration - Continued 

The City issued $5,810,000 in serial bonds dated June 25, 2015 maturing June 15, 2030 at 
interest rates ranging from 2.00% through 3.125% (priced to yield 2.80%) to provide financing 
for various capital projects. 

Additional information on the City's capital debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when adopting the fiscal year 
2015-16 budget, most importantly the state and local economy. 

The City of Watertown is the county seat of Jefferson County. The unemployment rates in June 
2015 were 5.9% for the Watertown-Fort Drum area, 5.9% for Jefferson County, 5.2% for New 
York State and 5.3% for the United States. The unemployment rates in June 2014 were 5.9% for 
the Watertown-Fort Drum area, 6.8% for Jefferson County, 6.2% for New York State and 6.1 % for 
the United States. 

Budget factors considered during the preparation of the FY 2015-16 budget included the national 
and state economies, low interest rates, high unemployment and high NYS Retirement System 
contribution rates. With the continued uncertainties overseas, as has been the case for over the 
past ten years it was difficult to predict how many of the 17,269 soldiers of the loth Mountain 
Division at Fort Drum would be deployed and for how long they would be gone fighting the War 
on Terrorism. 

The City decreased its estimate for sales tax revenue, the largest General Fund revenue source, by 
only $85,000 or 0.49% over the FY 2014-15 budgeted anlOunt due to uncertainties with the 
Federal Budget and its affect on Fort Drum as well as a decreasingly favorable exchange for 
Canadian shoppers. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates - Continued 

Like most local governments, the City's 2015-16 budget continued to be impacted by the high 
costs for retirement benefits although FY 2015-16 was the second year in a row that saw the 
retirement rates decrease. The contribution to the Employees' Retirement System will range 
from 10.6% to 23.1 % of salaries, down from a range of 11.0% to 25.3% in the previous year. The 
contribution rate for the Police and Fire Retirement System will range from 14.3% to 24.7% of 
salaries, down from 15.4% to 27.3% of salaries in the previous year. Due to the dramatic drop in 
the stock market from April 2008 to April 2009 the State Pension Fund lost approximately 40% 
of its value. Due to the NYS Retirement System's smoothing techniques the retirement rates are 
now starting to decline after years of increases to keep the pension fund adequately funded. 

Due to the better than expected claims history over the last few years the self-insurance fund was 
able to appropriate $225,000 of fund balance to keep the premium rate increase to only 4.72% 
over the FY 2014-15 premiums. 

The City saw an increase of $3,574,650 or 0.35% in taxable assessed value. The residential tax 
burden has decreased slightly to 60.60% from 60.69% last year. The average assessment for a 
single-family home in Watertown increased slightly to $107,293 from $107,061 in FY 2014-15 . 

The City's FY 2015-16 General Fund operating costs increased by $1,363,334 or 3.43% to 
$41,085,325 due to significant increases to the retirees health insurance contributions, debt 
service with the addition of the Arena rehabilitation debt and transfers to the Capital Fund for 
pay-as-you-go projects funded by the General Fund's capital reserve. The City appropriated 
$1,173,496 of fund balance, an increase of $573,496 over FY 2014-15. The sales tax revenue 
budget was increased to $17,575,000 which represented an increase of only $85,000 or 0.49% 
above the sales tax budget for FY 2014-15 due to its recent sluggish performance. The State Aid 
revenue budget remained at the City' s base amount of $4,703,208. The increase in the real 
property tax levy of $155,079 or 1.88% which was within the limits of the New York State 
Property tax cap and the increase in taxable assessed values resulted in a 1.57% increase to the 
property tax rate. 

Appropriations for the Water Fund increased by $237,790 or 4.75%. The Water Fund 
appropriated $174,290 of fund balance. The Sewer Fund appropriations increased $543,741 or 
9.75% while revenues increased $520,000 or 9.42%. Revenues from other governments 
increased $479,700. The Sewer Fund appropriated $75,393 of fund balance of which $2,340 was 
from the debt reserve fund to pay for the Algonquin Street sanitary sewer reconstruction debt 
service. The water and sewer rates were not modified. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2015 

Requests for Information 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those 
with an interest in the govenunent's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
City Comptroller, City of Watertown, Municipal Building, 245 Washington Street, Watertown, 
New York 13601. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
AUDITED BASIC FINANCI AL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2015 

Prim ary Gonromcnl Component Unit 

Tbe T rustees of the 

Governmental Business-Type Roswell P. Flower 

Activilin ArtiYities Total Memorial Libra!1 

ASSETS 
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents S 14,6 15,273 S 4 ,378,667 $ 18.993,940 $ 124, 195 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,59 1,204 3,667,231 15,258,435 153,523 

Investments 57.328 

Receivables (Nel of Allowance for Uncollcctibles) 
Ac<:ounts 2,962,677 1.435 ,732 4,)98.409 75 

Taxes 197.803 197,803 
Due from Other Governments 1,868,582 385.432 2,254.014 

Stale and Federal Aid Receivables 1,550,925 710,906 2,261.831 

Prepaid Expenses 19,580 19,580 2.325 

Intemal Balances (12,288) 13,8 18 1,530 
32.7931756 1°1591 ,786 431385,542 337,446 

Capital Assets 
Non-Depreciable 6,48 1,331 7,911.516 14,392,847 14_516 

DcpTe1:iable_ Net 62,990,020 34, 128,490 97.118,510 48,024 

Total Capital Assets 69.471,351 42,040,006 111 ,5 11 ,357 62,540 

TOTAL. ASSETS 102.265,107 52,63 1.792 154.896.899 399,986 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Amount from Refundings 102,300 102.300 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Pensions 555.784 72,667 628.45 1 
TOTAL D Et< ~:RREO OUTFLOWS or RESOURCF.S 658.084 72.667 730.751 

LIABILITI ES 
ACCOtulls Payable S 2,007,996 S 980.599 S 2,988,595 S 368 

Accrued Interest Payable 142.890 88,072 230,962 

Accrued Liabilities 2,833,829 237.825 3,071,654 

Retainage Payable 64,291 289,0 17 353,308 

Current Debt Obligations Due Within One Year 2.4 19,994 1,563,006 3.983,000 

Compensated Absences 4.937 114,923 119.860 

Workers Compensation Liability 1,653,544 456,868 2, 110.4 12 

Other Liabilities 8,685 10,453 19.138 

Due to Other Govenmlents 50,813 181 50,994 

Due to Retirement System 655,888 67,005 722,893 

Uneamed Revenue 2,184,266 2,184,266 

Accrued Post Employment Benefits 14.001,963 2.654. 104 16,656,067 

Other Long-Tenn Debt [,203,5 10 1,203,5 10 

Net Pension Liability 1.679,640 353.271 2,032,9 11 

Serial Bonds Due and Payable After One Year 20.638.182 13.891,818 34,530,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 49,550.428 20.707. 142 70,257.570 368 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOU RCES 
Deferred Inflows of Resources. Pensions 259,918 17.042 276.960 

TOTAL. DF.FERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 259.918 17,042 276,960 

NET POSITION 
Nel lnvesunenl in Capital Assets 46.563,475 29.688,076 76.251,55 1 

Restricted for 
Capital Reserves 1.813,402 1.813,402 

Workers Compensation Reserve 229,960 229,960 

Insurance Reserve - General 486,746 486.746 

Tourism Reserve 49,970 49.970 

Economic I)cvelopment and Assistance 227,018 227.018 

Community Development 230,050 230.050 

Capital Projects 8, 143,774 8.143,774 

Debt SelVicc 248,450 35,385 283,835 

libraI)' 178,523 

Unrtstricted (4,880,OOO~ 2.256,814 ~2,623, 1 861 221,095 

TOTAL NET I'OSITION I 53.112845 I 31980275 $ 85.093 120 S 399 618 
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

fUNCTIONSlP ROGRAMS 
Govemtne!ltal Activities 

Go:neB1 Go.-munenl SupflOn 
General Government Suppon 
H)'droelectric. Production 

Public Safety 
Fire 
Polict 
Other Pub~c Safety 
Public Work, 

Transportation 
B~ 

Economic Opponun;1y and Development 
Otller Eoonomie AsIlislilllce 
En'pireZone 

Culture and Recreation 

L""" OlherCu ll ure and Recreation 
Home WId Commun~ S¢f"as 

Refuse and RCC)\:1e 
O1bcr Home and Community Services 

Interest on Ikbt 
Total GovCTT1mcnml Activities 

Businc:ss--T)-peAaTvities 
Waler 

"".~ 
T Dial Business-Type AClivilics 

T", . I Primal')' Gonrnmenl 

Component Unit 
The Troslccs of the R.P. Flower Mcmori.lll..ibrary 

Total Componall Unit 

14.843,228 
8~O.8 4 5 

8.I3U14 
7.788.701 

614.248 
U II .219 

867.278 

94,56) 

4,46 1 

1.203,175 
1.845.979 

888,860 
2.762.6 15 

549.226 
46,955.772 

5.230.657 

5,319 41 2 
IO,5SO,Q69 
~7 ~05 841 

85.856 

S 85856 

Ntl (Erpena) Re.'t nut Ind Ching" In Ntl l'osUlon 8rough t FOI""lrd 

Chlrgts for 
Sn-vltH 

2.542.290 
3.799.350 

109.606 
60.108 

133.432 

166.023 

22507 
336.016 

847.616 
106.125 

8. 123.073 

5,075,308 
5.840,078 

10.915,386 
19038 4W 

Prea ... m Rt'UUH 
OpUll lng 

Grant~ I nd 
Contributions 

133.328 

151.726 

129.200 

253.342 

46. 105 

2.366.095 

3.079.796 

3079 796 

64.041 

.,,'" 
GENERAL REVEN UES 

f'ropenyTaMs 
S~les TaJcs 

s 

Ulililies Gross ReoeiplS TaJ< 
Frandlis<: Ta..; 
Hottl O«:upancy Tu 
Mong;age Tu 

C.pllll 
Gnnts and 

Conlrlbutlons 

7.888 

313.693 

II'. 
1.055 

28.755 
165.891 

517.382 

3.622 
321.179 
324.801 
842183 

Grllnts and Entitlements Not Resrncled 
to Spc<::iflC Programs 

Total General Re-'enues 
Tnmsfc:rs 
Ciwlge ., Nel Position 

Total Ntt Position. Beginning of Year. Restated 

TOlll Nfl P05II I011' End of Year 
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Ntl n :_pt nse) Rtnnut . nd 
Cr.lng" In Nt l P05l1lon 

Busln t5$-
GO'o'trn"' t nl ll T)'p~ 

Adh·lties AttM II" 

( 12. 159.722) 
2.948.m 

(8.1)1.31 4) 
(7.S2B69) 

(554.140) 
('.934.954) 

(447.913) 

(94.563) 
(4.461) 

(1.134.463) 
(1.5OS.9OS) 

( 12.489) 
(124.504) 
(549.226) 

m.23S52 1) 

135.235.52 1) 

llS .23S52 I) 

8.422.399 
17.1 29,6S!i 

304.465 
383.828 
23 1.784 
25<1,595 

4.703.208 
15.698 

.11 .445.665 
)().ooo 

IJ.7S9.8S6) 
56.872,701 

53 11 2 &45 

(151.721) 
&41.845 
690.11 8 

690.11 8 

690.1 18 

31980275 

Totl l 

~ 12.159.722) 
2.948.505 

(8. U1 ,314) 
(1.521.369) 

(554.140) 
(5,934.954) 

1'141.9U) 

(94.563) 
(4.461) 

(1,]34.463) 
( l .508.908) 

(12,489) 
( 1 24.5~) 

/549.2261 
m.23552 1) 

(I~ I .727) 

841.845 
690.118 

(34.54M03) 

134.545.403) 

8.-122.399 
17.129.685 

304.468 
383.828 
23 1.784 
2.54.595 

4.703,208 
28.195 

31.458.762 

0.086.6411 
88.179.761 

85093 120 S 

Component 
UAlt 

Tht TruJlet'S offht 
R05"'f ll P. t 'lowtr 
Memorl.1 Uhrin' 

12 1.8151 
(21.815) 

(21.815) 

H' 
731 

(21 ,OSAI 
420.702 

399 618 



BALANCESHEET-GOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
June 30, 2015 

General 

ASSETS 
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Eq ui valents $ 14,350,88 1 $ 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equi va lents 1,845 ,919 
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectiblcs) 

Accounts 1,108,413 
Taxes 197,803 

Due from Other Governments 1,822,873 
State and Fedcl'"dl Aid Receivablcs 121 ,089 
Prepaid Expenses 19,580 
Due from Other Funds 635,244 

TOTAL ASSETS ~ 201 0 1802 ~ 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 1,041 ,346 S 
Accrued Liabilities 1,702,029 
Compensated Absences 4,937 
Other Liabi litie; 8,685 
Due to OUler Funds 159,984 
Due to Other Governments 50,809 
Due to Retirement System 640,774 
Unearned Revenue 29 1.1 86 

Tolal Liabilities 3,899,750 

Nonspendable 
Prepa id Expenses 19,580 

Restricted for 
Capital Reserve - Gcncml 1,793,309 

Capital Reserve - Fairgrounds 20,093 
Workers Compensation Reserve 229,960 
Insurance Reserve ~ General 486,746 
Tourism Res<..'fVe 49,970 
Debt Service Reserve 225,159 
Community Development Reserve 
Economic Development Reserve 
Capital Projects 

Assigned to 
Sclr~Funded Health Insurance Plan 1,994,046 
General Government Support 26,328 
Fire 82,990 
Police 29,238 
Other Public Sarety 1,127 
Public Works 194,470 
Bus 31,305 
Other Culture and Rooreation 13,723 
Refuse and Recycle 2, 152 
Other Home and Community Services 1,180 
Library 
Capi tal Projects 
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 1,173,496 

Unassigned 9,827, 180 

Total Fund Balances 16,202,052 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES S 20 101 ~02 ~ 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Non Tolal 
Capital Community Major Governmental 
Pro jects Dcvcloement Funds Funds 

$ $ 264,392 $ 14 ,6 15,273 
9,484,534 237,460 23,291 11 ,59 1,204 

1,854,264 2,962,677 
197,803 

45 ,709 1,868.582 
298,792 1,131,044 1,550,925 

19,580 
150,000 785,244 

9183 l26 ~ 3268477 ~ 437683 $ 3322 1 288 

865, 130 $ 82,382 $ 19,138 $ 2,007,996 
8,360 1,074,738 48 ,702 2,833,829 

4,937 
8,685 

610,032 27,039 477 797,532 
4 50,813 

15,114 655,888 
38,8 16 1,854,264 2,184,266 

1,522,338 3,038.427 83,431 8.543,946 

19,580 

1,793,309 
20,093 

229,960 
486,746 

49,970 
23 ,29 1 248,450 

230,050 230,050 
227,0 18 227,018 

8, 143,774 8, 143,774 

1,994,046 
26,328 
82,990 
29,238 

1, 127 
194,470 
3 1,305 
13,723 
2, 152 
1,180 

8 8 
11 7,2 14 117,2 14 

103,935 1,277,43 1 
9,827,180 

8,260,988 230,050 354,252 25,047,342 

9783 p§: S J 268 477 S 437683 ~ lJ59 1 2§8 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30,2015 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
assets in governmental funds: 

The Cost of Capital Assets is 
Accumulated Depreciation is 

Deferred Amount on Advance Refunding of Bonds 

Deferred Outflows of Resources, Pensions 

Long-term liabilities, including serial bonds and other 
Long-teml debt, are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore not reported as liabilities in the 
funds. Long-ternl liabilities at year-end consist of: 

Bonds Payable 
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable 
Retainage Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Workers Compensation Liability 
Landfill Post-Closure Liabi li ty 
Pension Liability 
Accrued Post-Employment Benefits 

Deferred Inflows of Resources. Pensions 

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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$ 25,047,342 

141 ,689,380 
(72,218,029) 
69,471 ,35 1 

102,300 

555 ,784 

(23,010,176) 
(142,890) 

(64,291) 
(1 ,089,510) 
(1 ,653 ,544) 

(162,000) 
(1 ,679,640) 

(14,001,963) 
(41,804,014) 

(259,918) 

$ 53,112,845 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Capital Community 

General Projects Development 

REVENUES 

Real Propclty Taxes $ 8, 131 ,382 $ S 
Real Propclty Tax Items 298,906 

Nonproperty Taxes 18,049,764 

Departmental Income 5,432,977 

lntcrgovemmcntal Charges 144,533 

Use of Money and Property 75,242 7,324 5 

Licenses and Pennits 66,820 

Fines and Forfeitures 117,475 

Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss 114,9 19 

Miscellaneous Local Sources 969,5 15 1,670 103,525 

Intcrfulld Revenue 1,013,989 

State Sources 5,440,692 253 ,872 1,490,443 

Federal Sources 401 ,763 246,75 1 866,896 

Total Revenues 40,257 ,977 509.617 2.460,869 

EXPENDITURES 

General Government Suppon 5,094,415 27,663 

Public Safety 15,514,6 12 

Transportation 4,439,130 1,53 1,337 

Economic Assistance and Opportuni ty 94,563 

Culture and Recreation 1,532,341 1,76 1,92 1 

Home and Community Services 1.045,566 378,541 2,360,20 1 

Employee Benefits 8,708,452 

Debt Service 2,588,778 

Total Expenditures 39,0 17,857 3,699,462 2,360,20 1 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expend itures 1,240,120 (3 ,189,845) 100,668 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) 

Serial Bond Proceeds 10,110,000 

Inlerfund Transfers In 2 14,387 550.806 

lnterfund Transfers Out ( 1,735,155) (88,010) (7,402) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ( 1,520,768) 11 ,112,796 (7,402) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (280,648) 7,982,95 1 93,266 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, Restated 16,482,700 218,037 136,784 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 16,202.052 $ 8.260,988 $ 230.050 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Non Total 

Major Govern mental 

Funds Fu nds 

$ $ 8, 13 1,382 

298,906 

18,049,764 

5,432,977 

144,533 

1,212 83,783 

66,820 

18,669 136,144 

3,839 11 8,758 

46,105 1,120,8 15 

1,0 13,989 

7.185,007 

1,5 15,4 10 

69,825 43,298 ,288 

5,122,078 

15,514,6 12 

5,970,467 

4,461 99.024 

823,054 4,1 17,3 16 

3,784,308 

38 1,719 9,090 ,17 1 

58,863 2,647 ,641 

1,268,097 46,345,6 17 

( 1,198,272) (3,041,329) 

10,7 10,000 

1.299. 188 2,064,38 1 

( 11 5,8 14) (1,946,381 ) 

1,183,374 10,828,000 

( 14.898) 7,780,671 

369,150 17,266,611 

S 354,252 S 25,047.342 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

RECONCILIATlON OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTlVITlES 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
the depreciation expense exceeded the capital outlays in the period. 

Capital Outlays 
Depreciation Expense 

Govenunental funds report bond principal as an expenditure. However, in the 
Statement of Net Position, the principal payments reduce the liability and do not 
result in an expense in the Statement of Activi ties. 

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as a source of funding. However bond 
proceeds are not revenues in the Statement of Activities, but long-term liabilities 
in the Statement of Net Position. 

Decrease in proportionate share of net position/liability reported in Statement of 
Activities do not provide for or require the use of current financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported as revenues or expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Loss on Disposal of Assets 

Employees' Retirement System 
Police and Fire Employees' Retirement System 

Amortization of advanced refunding issuance costs 

Interest expenditures are reported when paid in the govenunental funds, however, 
the total amount of interest incurred for the period is accrued and recognized in 
the government-wide fmancial statements. The net change in accrued interest is 
recognized as interest expense in the Statement of Activities. 

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences 
(vacations and sick pay), special early termination benefits (early retirement) and 
OPEB costs - are measured by the amounts earned during the current period. In 
the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by 
the amount of current financial resources used. 

Long-tenn portions of accrued claims and judgments, and landfill monitoring 
liability are included in the outstanding liability in the Statement of Net Position. 
Accordingly, the net cbange in the long-term portion is reported as a reduction to 
that liability rather tban an expense in the Statement of Activities. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

$ 

$ 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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3,694,504 
4,027,579 

416,187 
593 ,436 

$ 7,780,671 

(333,075) 

2,152,082 

(10,710,000) 

1,009,623 

(189,425) 

(15,658) 

(38,009) 

(2,759,396) 

(656,669) 

$ (3,759,856) 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2015 

Water 
ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equiva lents $ 2,489,999 
Accounts Receivable, 

Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 793,436 
Due from Governmental f unds 12,723 
Due from Other Govemments 
State and Federal Aid Receivables 3,401 

Total Current Assets 3,299,559 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,428,660 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 19,697,904 

Total Non-Current Assets 21,126,564 

TOTAL ASSETS 24,426,123 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 
Deferred Outflow of Resources, Pensions 38, 163 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 38, 163 
LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 830,955 
Accrued Interest Payable 35,795 
Rctainage Payable 37,555 
Accrued Liabil ities 122,594 
Compensated Absences 55,3 15 
Due to Retirement System 35,079 
Due to Governmental Funds 88, 120 
Due to Other Governments 181 
Other Liabilities 10,453 
Current Portion of Long-tcnn Liabi lities 675,610 

Total Current Liabilities 1,891,657 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Workers Compensation Liabi lity 337,887 
Net Pension Liability 185,530 
Other Post Employment Benefits Liability 1,575,665 
Serial Bonds Payable 5,267,327 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 7,366,409 

Total Liabilities 9,258,066 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pensions 8,950 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,950 

NET POSITION 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 14,366,449 
Restricted for Debt 15,68 1 
Unrestricted 815, 140 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 15,197,270 

Business - Type Activities 
Entererise Funds 

Sewer 

$ 1,888,668 

642,296 
95,53 1 

385,432 
707,505 

3,7 19,432 

2,238,57 1 
22,342, 102 
24,580,673 

28,300,105 

34,504 
34,504 

$ 149,644 
52,277 

25 1,462 
115,231 
59,608 
3 1,926 

6,3 16 

887,396 
1,553,860 

11 8,98 1 
167,741 

1,078,439 
8,624,491 
9,989,652 

11,543,5 12 

8,092 
8,092 

15,32 1,627 
19,704 

1,44 1,674 

$ 16,783,005 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 4,378,667 

1,435,732 
108,254 
385,432 
7 10,906 

7,018,99 1 

3,667,231 
42,040,006 
45,707,237 

52,726,228 

72,667 
72,667 

$ 980,599 
88,072 

289,017 
237,825 
114,923 
67,005 
94,436 

181 
10,453 

1,563,006 
3,445,5 17 

456,868 
353,27 1 

2,654, I 04 
13,89 1,8 18 
17,356,06 1 

20,80 1,578 

17,042 
17,042 

29,688,076 
35,385 

2,256,814 

~ 31,980,275 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Business - Type Activities 
Entererise funds 

Water Sewer 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Cbarges for Services $ 3,571 ,304 $ 3,747,304 
Intergovernmental Charges 1,485,689 2,038,975 
Other Operating Revenue 18,3 15 53,799 

Total Operating Revenues 5,075,308 5,840,078 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 2,525,723 2,07 1,361 
Contractual Services 1,847,703 2,430,709 
Depreciation 733,785 60 1,599 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset 2,884 0 

Total Operating Expenses 5,110,095 5,103,669 

lncome from Operations (34,787) 736,409 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Revenue 6,686 6,411 
Interest Expense ( 120,562) (2 15,743) 

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) (113,876) (209,332) 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers (148,663) 527,077 
Capital Contributions 3,622 321 ,179 
Transfers Out ( 15,000) (15,000) 

Change in Net Position (160,04 1 ) 833 ,256 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, Restated 15,357,3 11 15,949,749 

Net Position, End of Year ~ 15, 197,270 ~ 16,783,005 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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$ 

~ 

Total 

7,3 18,608 
3,524,664 

72, 114 

10,9 15,386 

4,597,084 
4,278,412 
1,335,384 

2,884 

10,2 13,764 

701,622 

13,097 
(336,305) 

(323,208) 

378,4 14 
324,801 
(30,000) 

673 ,2 15 

31 ,307,060 

31 ,980,275 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Business - Type Activities 

Entererisc Funds 

Water Sewer 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Cash Received from Providing Services $ 4,992,635 $ 5,332,264 

Cash Payments for Conlractual Expense ( 1,809,499) (2,392,754) 

Cash Payments for Personal Services and Benefits (2, 179,753) (1,868,66 1) 

Other Operating Revenue 18,3 15 53 ,798 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Acti viti es 1,02 1,698 1, 124,647 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities 
Transfers to Other funds (15,000) ( 15.000) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Proceeds of Capita l Debt 2,700,000 2,400,000 

Premium Received on Bond Refunding 5,426 4,823 

Principal Paid 011 Capital Debt (488 ,034) (724,884) 

Interest Paid on Capita l Debt (108,423) (22 1,697) 

Capital Grants 16,895 321 ,179 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital 
and Related Financing Activities 2, 125,864 1.779,42] 

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activiti es 
Purchase of Capital Assets (1,667,973) (3,603,8 16) 

Intc..-rest Income 1,260 1,588 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities ( ] ,666,7 13) (3,602,228) 

Nt!t Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,465 ,849 (7 13, 160) 

Cash and Cash Equ ivalents. Beginning of Year, Restated S 2,452,8 10 $ 4,840,399 

Cash and Cash Equi valents, End of Year S 3,9 18.659 $ 4.127,239 

Reconciliation of Income from Operations to Net 
Cash Provided By Operating Activities 
Income from Operations $ (34,787) $ 736,409 

Depreciation 733,785 601,599 

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset 2.884 

Change in Operating Assets 
Accounts Receivable 5,50 1 (191 ,82 1) 

Due from Other Goverruncnts (67,759) (218.585) 

Due from Other Fuods (319) (44,878) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources, Pensions (38, 163) (34,504) 

Change in Operat ing Liabilities 
Accounts Payable (2, 121 ) 38,9 12 

Accrued Liabilities 32,927 38,284 

Compensated Absences (5,629) 1] ,270 

Due to Retirement System (24,896) (20,047) 

Due to Other Governments (669) 

Other Liabi lities 178,846 (1 1,858) 

Net Pc..'tlsion Liability (62,642) (56,636) 

OPEB Liability 256.577 268,097 

Customer Deposits and Overpayments ( ] ,78]) 

Due to Other Funds 40,994 313 

Deferrc..'d Inflows of Resources, Pensions 8,950 8,092 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Acti vities $ ],02 1,698 $ 1,124,647 

Reconciliation ofTatal Cash and Cash Equivalents 
CUTTent Assets· Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,489,999 $ 1,888,668 

Non-Curreut Assets - Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,428 ,660 2,238 ,571 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,9 18,659 $ 4, 127,239 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 10,324,899 

(4,202,253) 

(4,048,414) 

72,113 

2,146,345 

(30,000) 

5. 100 ,000 

10,249 

(1,212,918) 

(330, 120) 

338,074 

3,905,285 

(5,27 1,789) 

2,848 

(5,268,94 1 ) 

752,689 

$ 7,293,209 

S 8.045.898 

$ 701,622 

],335,384 

2,884 

( ]86,320) 

(286,344) 

(45, 197) 

(72,667) 

36,79 1 

7 1.21 1 
5,64 ] 

(44,943) 

(669) 

166,988 

( 119,278) 

524,674 

(1,78 1) 

4 1,307 

17,042 

$ 2,146,345 

S 4,378,667 

3,667,23 1 

$ 8,045.898 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Private 
Purpose Al!ency 
Trusts 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 45.859 $ 
Due From Other Governments 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 45859 $ 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Governmental Funds $ $ 
Deposits Held and Due to Others 
Cafeteria Plan 
Other Accrued Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Held in Trust for Other Purposes 15.942 
Held in Trust for Scholarships 29,917 

Total Net Position 45,859 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ ~5 852 $ 

See notes to audited basic financial statements, 
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Funds 

241.915 

241 915 

1.530 
209.877 

26.603 
3.905 

241,915 

2~1 215 

Total 

$ 287.774 

$ 287774 

$ 1.530 
209.877 

26,603 
3,905 

241,915 

15.942 
29,917 

45,859 

$ 28:Z :z:z~ 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

ADDITIONS 
Interest Revenue 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Scholarships Awarded 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Position 
Net Position, Beginning of Year 

Net Position, End of Year 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 
Trusts 

22 

22 

22 
45,83 7 

45,859 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Watertown, New York (the City) have been prepared in 
confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The City's reporting entity applies all relevant 
Govenunental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The Goverrunental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
govenunental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

Proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and 
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless 
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB 
prevails. 

Although the City has the option to apply F ASB pronouncements issued after that date to its 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City has not chosen to do so. The more 
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

The City was incorporated in 1869. The Charter of the City of Watertown, City law and other 
general laws of the State of New York, govern the City. The City Council, which is the 
governing body of the City, consists of the Mayor and four Council persons. The City Manager 
serves as Chief Executive Officer of the City and is appointed by the Council. The City 
Comptroller serves as the Chief Fiscal Officer of the City and is appointed by the City Manager. 

The City provides the following basic services: public safety (police and fire) , water and sewer, 
library, recreation, refuse collection, economic assistance, street maintenance, snow removal, and 
general administrative services. 

The financial reporting entity consists of: 

I. The primary govenunent which is the City of Watertown. 

2. Orgaruzations for which the primary govenunent is financially accountable. 

3. Other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth in GASB Statement 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by both GASB Statement 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units and GASB Statement 61 , The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Financial Reporting Entity - Continued 

Based on the forgoing criteria and the significant factors presented below, the following 
organizations are included in the reporting entity: 

Watertown Empire Zone 

Portions of the City of Watertown were designated as an Economic Development Zone on 
July 27, 1994. The program is designed to attract new businesses to the area and to enable 
existing businesses to expand and create jobs by offering a variety of financial incentives and 
economic benefits. The City Council appoints a voting majority of the Program's governing body 
and significantly influences the activities of the Watertown Empire Zone Program. The City 
includes the Watertown Empire Zone as a blended component unit. 

The Trustees of Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library 

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, provides additional 
guidance to detennine whether certain organizations for which the City is not financially 
accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the City. The decision to include a potential component unit in the City's 
reporting entity is based on several criteria including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and 
financial accountability. Based on the application of these criteria, the Trustees of the Roswell P. 
Flower Memorial Library is included as a discretely presented component unit. Copies of their 
financial statements may be obtained at 229 Washington Street, Watertown, New York 13601. 

Only footnote disclosures relating to the primary government are included in the basic financial 
statements. The footnote disclosures relating to the Trustees of the Roswell P. Flower Memorial 
Library are not included. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Changes in Accounting Principles 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - Amendment to GASB Statement No. 27 and 
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date. The implementation of the Statements requires the City to report as an asset 
and/or liability its portion of the collective net pensions asset and liability in the New York State 
Employees' Retirement System and Police and Fire Retirement System. The implementation of 
the Statements also requires the City to report a deferred outflow and/or inflow for the effect of 
the net change in the City's proportion of the collective net pension asset and/or liability and 
difference during the measurement period between the City' s contributions and its proportionate 
share of total contributions to the pension systems not included in the pension expense. See 
Note 15 for the financial statement impact of the implementation of the Statements. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The City's basic financial statements include both goverrunent-wide (reporting the City as a 
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government­
wide statements and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either 
govenunental or business-type. The City'S police and fire protection, parks, library and 
recreation, public works, sports arena, and general administrative services are classified as 
governmental activities. The City'S water and sewer services are classified as business-type 
activities. 

The government-wide statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities. These statements present summaries of activities for the primary government 
(governmental and business-type). The focus of the government-wide statements addresses the 
sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City's net position resulting from the 
current year's activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a 
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as 
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City's net position is reported in three parts -
investment in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net 
position. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Fund FinanCial Statements - Continued 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
special revenue sources that are legally restricted for specified purposes. The City 
maintains the following special revenue funds : 

Community Development Fund - to account for the use of Federal monies 
received under Community Development Act and any other economic 
development project. 

Public Library Fund - to account for the operation of the Roswell P. Flower 
Memorial Library. 

Debt Service Fund - to account for the accumulation of resources for and the 
payment of general long-term debt principal and interest for the mandatory reserve 
fund. The debt service fund also accumulates interest earned on borrowed money. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial 
resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital expenditures. 

2_ Proprietary Fnnds 

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, 
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The 
following is a description of the proprietary funds of the City: 

Enterprise Funds - used to account for water and sewer operations. 

Water Enterprise Fund - established by law to account for revenues derived 
from charges for water consumption and the application of such revenues toward 
related operating expenses and revenues derived from benefitted assessments used 
for debt retirement. 

Sewer Enterprise Fund - established by law to account for revenues derived 
from charges for sewer usage and benefited assessments, and the application of 
such revenues toward related operating expenses and debt retirement. 
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NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Fund Financial Statements - Continued 

3. Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others 
and therefore are not available to support City programs. The reporting focus is on net 
position and changes in net position and is reported using accounting principles similar to 
proprietary funds. 

The City's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type 
(private purpose or agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit 
of a third party (other local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to 
address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into 
the government-wide statements. 

Basis of Accounting I Measurement Focus 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures and the related assets and 
liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus. 
Measurement focus is the detennination of what is measured, i.e., expenditures or expenses. 

Accrual Basis - The govenunent-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund 
financial statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities, 
including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets and long-tenn liabilities, are 
included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities 
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Modified Accrual Basis - The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period . . 
Material revenues that are accrued include real property taxes, state and federal aid, sales 
tax, and certain user charges. Expenditures are recorded when incurred except for prepaid 
expenditures and inventory items, which are recognized at the time of purchase; principal 
and interest on indebtedness, which are not recognized as expenditures until due; and 
compensated absences, such as vacation, which vests or accumulates and is charged as 
expenditures when paid. 
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Property Taxes 

Real property tax levies are fully accrued at the beginning of the fiscal year and are received and 
accounted for in the general fund. Accruals for "due other funds" are recorded in the general fund 
for the portion of the tax revenue allocated to other funds. The current year's property taxes are 
levied and the prior year's unpaid water and sewer bills are re-Ievied on a WaITant to collect taxes 
due as of July 5 based on the assessed value of real property within the City. The City also levies 
and collects property taxes on behalf of Jefferson County, which become due as of January 15, 
and enforces collection of unpaid City school taxes traIlsmitted by the scho,?1 district to the City 
in December of each year. 

Uncollected property taxes assumed by the City as a result of the settlement proceedings are 
reported as receivables in the general fund to maintain central control and provide for tax 
settlement and enforcement proceedings. The amount owed to the School District for uncollected 
school taxes is $6,181 and is included in "Due to other Governnlents". A portion of the 
receivable, $198, 176, is considered available aIld is included in liabilities as unearned revenues. 

An allowance for uncollectible taxes of $716,915 has been included in the General Fund 
accounts receivable balance at June 30,2015. Amounts considered to be uncollectible are based 
on historical trends and specific knowledge related to particular parcels. 

Budget Policies 

The budget policies are as follows: 

1. Prior to April 30 of each year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July I. The operating 
budget includes proposed expendi tures and the sources of financing. 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments. 

3. At the last regular or special meeting in May the budget is adopted by the City Council 
through the adoption of various resolutions. 

4. City taxes included in the budget are levied on July 5. The collection period is July 5 
through August 5. 
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Budget Policies - Continued 

5. The Comptroller is authorized to approve certain budget transfer requests within 
departments or within a fund; however, any revisions that alter total expenditures of any 
department or fund must be approved by the City Council. 

6. For year-end financial reporting, adjustments are made to actual results to conform to 
modified budget classifications and reflect year-end encumbrances. 

The City prepares a legally adopted annual operating budget for the General Fund. The City's 
budget is adopted using a basis of accounting consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). The City's actual amounts in the financial statements are presented on a 
GAAP basis; therefore, no reconciliation is necessary. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term investments with original maturities of three months 
or less. 

Receivables 

Receivables are stated net of the estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. Amounts 
considered to be uncollectible are based on collection experience. Amounts due from state and 
federal governments represent amounts owed to the City to reimburse it for expenditures incurred 
pursuant to state and federal programs. Other receivables represent amounts owed to the City, 
which include sewer rents, water rents, rehabilitation loans, and assessments. 
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Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as 
of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend 
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Water and Sewer System 
Machinery and Equipment 
Building Improvements 
Land Improvements 
Other Infrastructure 

Compensated Absences 

50 years 
60 - 65 years 

5 - 30 years 
5 - 25 years 

20 - 50 years 
10- 50 years 

Employees are granted the following compensated absences each year: 

Sick Leave 
Vacation 

12 days 
10 - 30 days 

Sick leave may be accumulated from year-to-year, up to 180 days. Upon retirement or other 
termination, no payment is made for accumulated sick time except for police, firemen and 
electrical workers who may receive a portion of their sick leave at retirement. The liability for 
sick leave is recorded in the Statement of Net Position since it is anticipated that none of the 
liability will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Vacation time vests and 
may be accumulated from year-to year up to 10 days for management, civil service employees 
association members, police and electrical workers and 5 days for all other employees. The 
liability will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources; therefore, it is 
accounted for in the respective govemmental fund type. The non-current portion (the amount 
estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) for govenunental funds is maintained separately 
and represents a reconciling item between the fund and govemment-wide presentations. 
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Insurance and Risk Management 

In accordance with New York State guidelines and GASB 10, "Accounting and Financial 
Reports for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues ", the City self-insures for the 
following: 

I. General Liability - The City has a self-insurance program for general liability insurance. 
The reserved fund balance is recorded within the General Fund. 

2. Workers' Compensation - On May 10, 1920 the City became self-insured for the purposes 
of providing benefits under the Workers Compensation Law of the State of New York. 
The City recognizes workers compensation expenditures when paid. Annual estimates are 
appropriated from the General and Enterprise funds, as determined by the City Council. 
An estimated liability of $2, II 0,412 as of June 30, 2015 has been recorded on the 
Statement of Net Position representing the long-term liability of open workers 
compensation cases. 

3. Unemployment Insurance - The City has a self-insurance program for unemployment, but 
has not established a reserve for claims. Expenditures are recorded as claims are 
submitted. Total unemployment insurance expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2015 
were $16,599. 

4. Health Care Benefits - On July 1, 1992, the City became self-insured for health care 
benefits for all eligible City employees and retirees. A third-party administrator selected 
by the City manages this self-insurance plan. A stop loss policy was also purchased to 
protect and insure this plan against major claims in excess of $175,000. The City has 
calculated a monthly premium equivalent based upon historical experience and projected 
costs that are billed to the respective funds on a monthly basis. An estimated liability of 
$629,075 has been recorded in the self-insurance fund for claims incurred as of June 30, 
2015 but not reported based upon historical experience. 

Operating Revenue and Expenses 

The City'S proprietary funds distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the City' s water and sewer funds consist of 
charges for services and the costs of providing those services, including depreciation and 
excluding interest costs. All other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating. 
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Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not 
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has two 
items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is the deferred charge on refunding 
reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. A deferred charge on refunding 
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over the Ii fe of the refunding debt. The second item is related 
to pensions reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. This represents the 
effect of the net change in the City' s proportion of the collective net pension asset or liability and 
difference during the measurement period between the City' s contributions and its proportion 
share of total contributions to the pension systems not included in pension expense. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate statement element, def erred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in 
this category. The item is related to pensions reported in the government-wide Statement of Net 
Position. This represents the effect or the net change in the City 'S proportion of the collective net 
pension asset or liability and difference during the measurement periods between the City's 
contributions and its proportion share of total contributions to the pension systems not included 
. . 
111 pensIOn expense. 
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Fund Balance 

The City previously implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) Statement 
No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. GASB Statement 
No. 54 is intended to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements prepared by 
governmental entities specifically with regard to their reporting of fund balances. The standard 
establishes a hierarchy of fund balance classifications based primarily on the extent to which a 
government must observe spending constraints imposed upon how resources reported in 
governmental funds can be used. The City Council adopted a fund balance policy on June 20, 
2011. 

Fund balance is the excess of assets over liabilities in a governmental fund. There are five 
separate components of fund balance, each of which identifies to what extent the City is bound to 
honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts can be spent. The five components 
are: 

I. Nonspendable Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that cannot be spent because 
they are either: (a) not in a spendable form, such as prepaid items, inventories of supplies, 
or loans receivable; or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such 
as the principal portion of an endowment. 

2. Restricted Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that has constraints placed on the 
use of resources that are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Committed Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that can 
only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the 
City Council and remain binding unless removed in the same manner. 

4. Assigned Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that are 
constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific purposes, but that are 
neither restricted nor committed. Such intent needs to be established either by the City 
Counci I or by an official designated for that purpose. 

5. Unassigned Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that do 
not fall into one of the above four categories. 
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Fund Balance - Continued 

The City considers restricted fund balances to have been spent first when an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. 
Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the 
unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the City considers committed amounts 
to be used first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts. 

The City does not currently have a formal minimum fund balance policy. The City Council shall 
approve all commitments by fonnal action. The action to commit funds must occur prior to fiscal 
year-end to report such commitments in the balance sheet of the respective period, even though 
the amount may be determined subsequent to fiscal year-end. A commitment can only be 
modified or removed by the same formal action. 

When it is appropriate for fund balance to be assigned for items such as encumbrance amounts, 
the City Council delegates the responsibility to assign funds to the City Comptroller. 
Assignments may occur subsequent to fiscal year-end. 

NOTE 2 -CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

State statutes govern the City investment policies. In addition, the City has its own written 
investment policy. City monies must be deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks or trust 
companies located within the state. The City Comptroller is authorized to use demand accounts, 
certificates of deposits and permissible investments. Pennissible investments include obligations 
of the U.S. Government and its agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State of 
New York, obligations issued by any municipality, school district or corporation other than the 
City of Watertown and obligations of public authorities, public housing authorities, urban 
renewal agencies and industrial development agencies where the State authorizes such 
investments. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the City limited its investments to 
demand and savings accounts and certificates of deposit. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned to it. While the City does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York 
State statutes govern the City's investment policies, as discussed above. 

The City does not typically purchase investments and is not exposed to material interest rate risk. 
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The City does not typically purchase investments denominated in foreign currency and is not 
exposed to foreign currency risk. 

Collateral is required for demand and savings deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits 
not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are 
obligations of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State, its municipalities and 
school districts, treasury strips and other obligations as outlined in the City'S investment policy. 

Separate bank accounts are not maintained for all City funds. Instead, the majority of the cash is 
deposited in pooled checking and savings accounts with accounting records maintained to show 
the portion of the balance attributable to each fund. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Deposits - Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be 
disclosed as to custodial risk if they are not covered by depository insurance, and the deposits are 
either: 

a) Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held by the 
City or by the City'S agent in the City's name; or 

b) Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust 
department or agency in the entity's name; or 

c) Uncollateralized. (This includes any bank balance that is collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution, its trust department, or agent but not in the 
entity's name.) 

Total financial institution (bank) balances at June 30, 2015 per the banks were $34,559,318. 
These deposits are categorized as follows: 

(a) (b) (c) 

$ 786,211 $ 33,773,107 $ 
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As of June 30, 2015, the City had the following investments: 

Certificates of Deposit-Trust & Agency FWlds 
State and Local Government Series Securities 

Total 

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

25,943 
23,206 

49,149 

A summary of the changes in capital assets for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2015 follows: 

Restated 
Balance Balance 

June 30, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015 

Governmental Activities 

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 
Land $ 2,60 1,285 $ 20,000 $ $ 2,621 ,285 
Construction in Progress 2,574,983 3,8 10,025 (2,524,962) 3,860,046 

Total 5, 176,268 3,830,025 (2,524,962) 6,481,33 1 

Depreciable Capital Assets 
Land Improvements 9,564,403 9,564,403 
Buildings and Improvements 32,922,064 820,161 (265,945) 33,476,280 
Infrastructure 68,596,3 13 435,583 69,03 1,896 
Machinery and Equipment 11 ,795 ,7 14 847, 140 (39,23 1) 12,603,623 
Vehicles 10,333,993 350,849 (152,995) 10,531 ,847 

Total 133,212,487 2,453,733 (458,171) 135,208,049 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Land Improvements 6, 148,308 259,966 6,408,274 
Buildings and Improvements 13,368,082 759,067 (77,985) 14,049,164 
Infrastructure 30,562,252 2,055 ,590 32,617,842 
Machinery and Equipment 9,654,100 440,645 (37,766) 10,056,979 
Vehicles 8,726,454 512,3 11 (152,995) 9,085,770 

Total 68,459, 196 4,027,579 (268,746) 72,2 18,029 

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 64,753,29 1 (1 ,573,846) (189,425) 62,990,020 

Total $ 69,929,559 $ 2,256, 179 $ (2,7 14,387) $ 69,47 1,351 
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General Government Support 
Hydroelectric Production 
Police 
Fire 
Public Works 
Bus 
Library 
Other Culture and Recreation 
Refuse and Recycling 

Total 

Restated 
Balance 

June 30, 2014 Increases Decreases 

Business-Type Activi ties 

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 
Construct ion in Progress $ 4 ,9 17,543 $ 5,336,617 $ (2,342,644) 

Total 4,917,543 5,336,617 (2,342,644) 

Depreciable Capital Assets 
Land Improvements 250,568 
Buildings and Improvements 27,5 16,297 
Infrastructure 24,884,783 1,392,387 
Machinery and Equipment 16,544,16 1 752,166 (228 ,966) 
Vehicles 9 19,867 36,3 17 

Total 70,1 15,676 2,180,870 (228,966) 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Land Improvements 250,391 11 9 
Buildings and Improvements 15,581 ,033 546,3 16 
Infrastructure 6,578,522 380,761 
Machinery and Equipment 13,797,111 336,275 (226,082) 
Vehicles 622,731 71,913 

Total 36,829,788 1,335 ,384 (226,082) 

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 33,285,888 845,486 (2,884) 

Total $ 38 ,203,431 $ 6,182,103 $ ~2,345 ,528) 
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$ 122,476 
260,911 
104,378 
260,842 

2,616,509 
83,02 1 

135,334 
371,046 

73,062 

$ 4,027,579 

Balance 
June 30, 2015 

$ 7,9 11 ,516 
7,9 11 ,5 16 

250,568 
27,516,297 
26,277,170 
17,067,361 

956,184 
72,067,580 

250,510 
16,127,349 
6,959,283 

13 ,907,304 
694,644 

37,939,090 

34,128,490 

$ 42,040,006 
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NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 

Water 
Sewer 

Total 

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS 

$ 733,785 
601 ,599 

$ 1,335,384 

Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Restricted assets consist of cash, cash equivalents and investments for the following funds: 

Restricted 
Fund Balance 

General - Cash $ 20,093 

General - Cash $ 1,793,309 

General - Cash $ 32,517 

Special Revenue - Cash $ 237,460 

Special Revenue - Cash $ 23,291 

Capital - Cash $ 9,484,534 

Water - Cash $ 1,412,979 

Water - Cash $ 15,681 

Sewer - Cash $ 2,218,867 

Sewer - Cash $ 19,704 

Restriction 

Reserve for Duffy Fairgrounds Stadium repairs 

Reserve for capital projects 

Reserve for special assessment sidewalk program 
debt 

Federal and State community development grants 

Reserve for airport debt service 

Reserve for capital project acquisitions and 
construction 

Reserve for capital project acquisitions and 
construction 

Excess debt proceeds reserved for debt service 

Reserve for capital project acquisitions and 
construction 

Excess debt proceeds reserved for debt service 
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To assist in the rehabilitation of homes and apartments of low and moderate-income persons, the 
City has been awarded various grants for its "Housing Improvement Program" from the CDBG 
Small Cities Program and the North Country HOME Consortium. The purpose of this program 
is to improve living conditions in Watertown by promoting repair and rehabilitation of the local 
housing stock. The primary objective is to eliminate conditions that might become hazardous to 
the health or safety of local residents. Energy conservation improvements, historic preservation 
and other necessary repairs will also be encouraged whenever assistance is provided under this 
program. Grants are subject to repayment if the owner moves or sells the property within the 
number of years established by the grant, prorated equally per year. Loans are repaid in monthly 
installments ranging from five to thirty years and are subject to immediate repayment if the 
owner moves or sells the property. The loans are collateralized by a mortgage on the home. The 
grants are not collateralized. The balance ofthe grants subject to repayment at June 30, 2015 was 
$99 1,948. The balance of the loans subject to repayment at June 30, 2015 was $ 862,317. 

The following table summarizes notes receivable at June 30, 2015: 

Grant Source Grant Purpose Grant Loan Terms Loan 
Balance Balance 

NYS Rental Rehabilitate apartment $0 Loan is subordinate to existing $ 71,500 
Rehabilitation building mortgages, maturing 2024 and bearing 
Section 17 interest at 6.25%. All accrued interest 
Program -1989 and principal are payable at maturity. 

Deferred revenue has also been 
recorded equivalent to the amount of 
the loan outstanding 

CDBG Small Single purpose home $0 Loans not to exceed $20,000 to be $ 249,732 
Cities - 2005 ownership repaid at 0% interest in monthly 

installments over 20 - 30 years 
CDBG Small Single purpose housing $0 Over 5 years in monthly installments at $3,715 
Cities - 2006 rehabilitations a rate 0[$18 per $1 ,000 
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 37,105 Over 5 to 10 years in monthly $ 84,025 
Cities - 2008 downtown apartments installments at a rate of$18 per $1,000 
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 37,187 Up to 20 years at 0% interest for $ 132,625 
Cities - 2009 downtown apartments downtown apartments and up to 10 

years at 0% for rental rehabilitations 
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 16,078 Up to 20 years at 0% interest for newly $ 144,687 
Cities -2011 downtown apartments developed rental apartments and up to 

10 years at 0% for rental rehabilitations 
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 190,732 Up to 20 years at 0% interest for newly $ 176,033 
Cities - 2012 downtown apartments developed rental apartments and up to 

10 years at 0% for rental rehabilitations 
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CDBG Small City-wide housing $192,205 5 years - 20 years at 0% interest for 
Cities - 2013 rehabilitations newly developed rental apartments and 

5 - 10 years at 0% for City-wide 
rehabilitations 

North Country Repair and rehabilitate the $ 328, 136 N/A 
HOME local housing stock 
Consortium -
2007 - 2014 
Program Repair and rehabilitate the $ 190,505 Loan repayments received from 
lncome- local housing stock recipients of previous CDBG Small 
CDBG Small Cities grant awards 
C ities 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Total $ 991 ,948 Total $ 862,3 17 

NOTE 6 - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

The City did not issue or retire any short-tenn debt during the fi scal year and had none 
outstanding at June 30, 20 IS. 

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations: 

Governmental Activities 

Balance Balance Due Within 
July I, 2014 Additions Reductions JUDe 30,2015 One Year 

General Obligation Bonds $ 14,452,258 $ 10,710,000 $ (2,152,082) $ 23,010,176 $ 2,3 71 ,994 
Compensated Absences 799,948 289,562 1,089,510 30,000 
Landfill Monitoring 180,000 (1 8,000) 162,000 18,000 

Total $ 15,432,206 $ 10,999,562 $ ~2 , 170,082) $ 24,26 1,686 $ 2,41 9,994 

The Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2015 includes a deferred amount of $102,300 on the 
advance refunding of bonds. 
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Business-Type Activities 

Balance Balance Due Within 
July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 One Year 

General Obligation Bonds: 
Water $ 3,730,971 $ 2,700,000 $ (488,034) $ 5,942,937 $ 675 ,610 
Sewer 7,836,771 2,400,000 (724,884) 9,511 ,887 887,396 

Total $ 11,567,742 $ 5,100,000 $ (I,212,918) $ 15,454,824 $ 1,563,006 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge tbe full faith and credit of the City. 
These bonds generally are issued as 10 to 30 year serial bonds with equal amounts of principal 
maturing each year. General obligation bonds at June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

tnterest Original Paid Outstanding Maturity 
Rat. Amount June 30,2015 June 30, 2015 Oat. 

Sanitary and Storm Sewers 9.60% $ 2,330,000 $ 50,000 $ 125,000 12/2017 
Public Improvements 4.00-5.00% 2,310,000 10,000 30,000 5/2021 
Public Improvements 4 .00-4.375% 5,700,000 400,000 11 /2020 
Public Improvements 4.625-7.5% 250,000 25,000 25,000 11120 15 
Public Improvements 3.25-4.00% 7,345 ,000 475,000 3,050,000 2/2023 
Public Improvements 2.50-3.25% 3,220,000 325,000 1,300,000 9/2018 
Public Improvements 3.125-4.00% 2,225,000 225,000 1,125,000 12/2024 
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.A 2.00-4.00% 2,175,000 125,000 1,685,000 11 /2025 
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.B 2.00-3 .75% 1,635 ,000 165,000 325,000 5/2020 
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.e 2.00-6.00% 3,695 ,000 275 ,000 2,665,000 11 /2022 
Public Improvements 2.00-3.00% 2,035,000 225,000 1,100,000 6/2021 
Public Improvements 3.00-3.50% 1,645 ,000 125,000 1,375 ,000 1012027 
Public Imp. Refunding 1.00- 2.625% 4,485,000 515,000 3,970,000 1112022 
Public Improvements, Ser.A 1.50-2.75% 1,195,000 145,000 1,050,000 4/2024 
Public Improvements, Ser.B 2.00-3.25% 5,110,000 280,000 4,830,000 4/2029 
Public Improvements, Ser.A 3.00-3.50% 10,000,000 10,000,000 612040 
Public Improvements, Ser.B 2.00-3.125% 5,810,000 5,8 10,000 6/2030 

Total Serial Bonds $ 3,365 ,000 $ 38,465,000 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

General Obligation Bonds - Continued 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds for fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Principal Interest Total 

2016 $ 2,371,994 $ 743,113 $ 3,115,107 
2017 2,192,872 685,393 2,878,265 
2018 2,130,357 620,246 2,750,603 
2019 2,009,112 556,912 2,566,024 
2020 1,543,941 498,184 2,042,125 
2021 - 2025 5,264,400 1,755,614 7,020,0 14 
2026 - 2030 2,402,500 1,118,541 3,521 ,041 
2031 - 2035 2,320,000 735,350 3,055,350 
2036 - 2040 2,775,000 298,375 3,073,375 

Totals $ 23,010,176 $ 7,011 ,728 $ 30,021,904 

Business-type Activities 

Principal Interest Total 

2016 $ 1,563,006 $ 423,777 $ 1,986,783 
2017 1,542,128 386,066 1,928,194 
2018 1,519,643 346,155 1,865,798 
2019 1,450,888 307,434 1,758,322 
2020 1,291 ,059 272,647 1,563,706 
2021 - 2025 4,765,600 903,978 5,669,578 
2026 - 2030 3,322,500 281 ,466 3,603,966 
2031 - 2035 
2036 - 2040 

Totals $ 15,454,824 $ 2,921 ,523 $ 18,376,347 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

Airport Debt 

The City transferred ownership of the Watertown International Airport to Jefferson County on 
March 1, 2006. In accordance with the transfer agreement, Jefferson County provided the City 
with the necessaty funds to retire all outstanding general obligation bonds as they mature. The 
City invested $30 1,168 in State and Local Goverrunent Series securities with the proceeds 
received from Jefferson County in various atnounts and at various interest rates, which will 
produce the funds necessary to meet the principal and interest obligations of the outstanding 
airport debt. The outstanding principal balance of airport debt at June 30, 2015 was $ 22,750. 

Advance Refunding 

On April IS, 20 II, the City issued $2,175,000 in general obligation bonds (Series A) with an 
average interest rate of 3.64% to advance refund $2,140,000 of outstanding November 15,1997 
serial bonds with an average interest rate of 5.03%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem all of the outstanding 1997 series bonds on May IS, 2011. A difference in cash flow 
requirements of $225,831 and a net present value savings of $175,826 were a result of this 
advance refunding by the City. 

On April IS, 2011 , the City issued $1 ,635,000 in general obligation bonds (Series B) with an 
average interest rate of 2.37% to advance refund $1 ,575,000 of outstanding April 15, 2000 serial 
bonds ($1,015,000) with an average interest rate of 5.19% and May 15, 2002 serial bonds 
($560,000) with an average interest rate of 4.30%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem the 2000 and 2002 series bonds on May IS, 2011. All but $40,000 of the April IS, 
2000 serial bonds and $23,750 of the May 15, 2002 serial bonds were redeemed on May IS, 
2011. A difference in cash flow requirements of $91,825 and a net present value savings of 
$84,907 were a result of this advance refunding by the City. 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

Advance Refunding - Continued 

On April 15, 2011 , the City issued $3 ,695,000 in general obligation bonds (Series C) with an 
average interest rate of 5.19% to advance refund $3,625,000 of outstanding November 15, 1997 
taxable serial bonds with an average interest rate of 7.09%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees , insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited io an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem the 1997 series bonds on May 15, 2011. Additionally, the City used $1,000,000 of 
General Fund Balance to increase the amount of outstanding November 15, 1997 taxable serial 
bonds redeemed to $4,625,000. Accordingly all of the outstanding 1997 taxable serial bonds 
were redeemed on May 15, 2011. A combined difference in cash flow requirements of 
$2,552,088 and a net present value savings of $543,580 were the result of the advance refunding 
and use of fund balance by the City. 

On June 18, 2014, the City issued $4,485,000 in general obligation bonds with an average 
interest rate of 1.29% to refund $2,400,000 of outstanding January 15, 2005 serial bonds with an 
average interest rate of 3.67% and an advance refund $2,100,000 of outstanding November 15, 
2005 serial bonds with an average interest rate of 4.15%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem all of the outstanding January 2005 series bonds on July 21 , 2014 and the November 
2005 series bonds will be refunded on November 15, 2014. A difference in cash flow 
requirements of $346,783 and a net present value savings of $327,420 were a result of this 
advance refunding by the City. 

NOTE 8 - UNEARNED REVENUE 

General Fund 
Unearned Property Tax Revenue, Refuse Tote Revenue 
and Prepaid Interest Installments 00 Special Assessments 

Capital Projects Fund 
Unearned State Aid and Other Miscellaneous Sources 

Special Revenue Fund 
Notes Receivable Funded from Grant Proceeds 
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description 

The City of Watertown participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement 
System (ERS) and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) 
which are collectively referred to as New York State and Local Retirement System (the System). 
These are cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement 
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the System is held in the 
New York State Common Retirement Fund, which was established to hold all net assets and 
record changes in plan net position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New 
York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the System. The 
Comptroller is an elected official determined in a direct statewide election and serves a four year 
term. Thomas P. Dinapoli has served as Comptroller since February 7, 2007. In November 
2014, he was elected for a new term commencing January I, 2015. System benefits are 
established under the provisions of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law 
(RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. 
The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship 
and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members 
only by enactment of a State statue. The City of Watertown also participates in the Public 
Employees' Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life 
insurance. The System is included in the State's financial report as a pension trust fund. That 
report, including information with regard to benefits provided, may be found at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/pubJications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State 
and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244. 

Funding Policy 

The ERS system is contributory except for employees who joined the New York State and Local 
Employees' Retirement System before July 26, 1976. Employees hired between July 27, 1976 
and December 31 , 2009 contribute 3% of their salary and after ten years of service become 
noncontributory as well . Employees hired between January 1, 2010 and March 31, 2012 
contribute 3% of their salary for all years of public service and there is a limitation on the amount 
of overtime that can be included as ·wages. Employees hired after April 1,2012 contributed 3% 
of their salary through March 31, 2013 and thereafter the percentage of salary contributed ranges 
from 3.0% to 6.0% depending on annual wages. 
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Funding Policy - Continued 

The PFRS system is contributory except for employees who joined the New York State and 
Local Employees' Retirement System before June 30, 2009. Employees hired between July I, 
2009 and January 8, 2010 contribute 3% of their salary for 25 years or until retirement. 
Employees hired between January 9, 2010 and March 31, 2012 contribute 3% of their salary for 
all years of public service and there is a limitation on the amount of overtime that can be 
included as wages. Employees hired after April I , 2012 contributed 3% of their salary through 
March 31, 2013 and thereafter the percentage of salary contributed ranges from 3.0% to 6.0% 
depending on annual wages. 

Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates expressed 
as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the contributions 
required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. 

The City of Watertown is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required 
contributions for New York State's current year ended March 31, 2015 and two preceding years 
were: 

Employer Contributions 
ERS 
PFRS 

Employee Contributions 
ERS 
PFRS 

FYE 6/30/15 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

1,657,173 $ 
2,494,595 $ 

118,259 $ 
26,724 $ 

FYE 6/30/14 FYE 6/30/13 

1,748,158 $ 
2,516,571 $ 

115,471 $ 
13,678 $ 

1,535,739 
2,423 ,515 

104,819 
8,954 

The City'S contributions made to the Systems were equal to 100 percent of the contributions 
required for each year. Each retirement system issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and supplementary information. The reports may be obtained by 
writing to: New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System, 1 10 State Street, Albany, 
NY 12244. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2015 the City of Watertown reported a liability of $1,193,889 for its proportionate 
share of the Employees' Retirement System net pension liability and a liability of $839,022 for 
its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Employees' Retirement System net pension 
liability. The new pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2015, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
April 1, 2014. The City 's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
City' s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions 
of all participating members, actuarially determined. 

At June 30, 2015, the City'S proportionate share was 0.0353405 percent for the Employees' 
Retirement System and 0.3048112 percent for the Police and Fire Employees ' Retirement 
System. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized a pension expense of $1 ,066,083 for the 
Employees' Retirement System and a pension expense of $1,901 ,685 for the Police and Fire 
Employees' Retirement System. At June 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Employees' Retirement System 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Changes of Assumption 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 
Pension Plan Investments 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between City 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 

City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 

Total 

57 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

38,21 8 

207,364 

245,582 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

57,591 

57,591 
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions - Continued 

Police and Fire Employees' Retirement System 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Changes of Assumption 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 
Pension Plan Investments 

Changes in Proportion and Di fferences Between City 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 

City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

101 ,181 

281,688 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

219,369 

382,869 ...;;$_ .......;;;.2.;;,;;19"",3",,6,;-.9 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
Thereafter 
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$ 

Employees' 
Retirement 

System 

46,998 
46,998 
46,998 
46,998 

Police and Fire 
Retirement 

System 

$ 46,784 
46,784 
46,784 
46,784 

(23,636) 
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June 30, 20 IS 

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability at March 31, 2015 was detennined by using an actuarial valuation as 
of April I, 2014, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to 
March 31, 20 IS. The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions. 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2014 valuation were as follows: 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases 

Investment Rate or Return (Net ofInvestment 
Expense Including Inflation) 

ERS 

2.7% 

4.9% 

7.5% 

PFRS 

2.7% 

6.0% 

7.5% 

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April I , 2005 - March 31, 2010 system experience with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on MP-20 14. 

The actuarial assumption used in the April I , 2014 valuation are based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period April I, 2005 - March 31, 20 I O. 

The long tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was detennined using a 
building block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long tenn expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the target asset allocation as of March 31, 2015 are summarized below. 
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Actuarial Assumptions - Continued 

Asset Type 
Domestic Equity 
International Equity 
Private Equity 
Real Estate 
Absolute Return 
Opportunistic Portfolio 
Real Assets 
Bonds and Mortgages 
Cash 
Inflation - Indexed Bonds 

Discount Rate 

Long-Term 
Expected 
Real Rate 

7.30% 
8.55% 

11 .00% 
8.25% 
6.75% 
8.60% 
8.65% 
4.00% 
2.25% 
4.00% 

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to detennine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members 
will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made 
at statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the System's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Therefore the long tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate 
Assumption 

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as the City'S proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower (6.5 
percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate: 
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate 
Assumption - Continued 

Employees' Retirement System 

City's Proportionate Share ofthe 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Police and Fire Employees' 
Retirement System 

City's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

1% Decrease 
(6.5%) 

$ 7,957,786 

10
/0 Decrease 

(6.5%) 

$ 11 ,171,137 

$ 

$ 

Current 
Assumption 

(7.5%) 

1,193,889 

Current 
Assumption 

(7.5%) 

839,022 

1% Increase 
(8.5%) 

$ (4,516,518) 

1% Increase 
(8.5%) 

$ (7,819,914) 

The components of the current- year net pension liability of the employers as of March 31 , 2015, 
were as follows: 

Employers' Total Pension Liability 
Plan Net Pension 

Employers' Net Pension Liability 

Ratio of Plan Net Position to the 
Employers' Total Plan Pension Liability 

Employees' 
Retirement 

System 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
Police and Fire 

Retirement 
System Total 

$ 164,591 ,504 
(161,213,259) 

$ 28,474,417 
(28,199,157) 

$ 193,065,921 
(189,412,416) 

$ 3,378,245 $ 275,260 $ 3,653,505 

97.9% 99.0% 98.1% 

61 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Bonus Retirement Plan 

Under the terms of the police and fire union contracts, the City also made available a bonus 
retirement plan to all eligible employees. To be eligible, the employee must have accumulated 20 
years of service within the retirement system and must retire within 3 years from that date. The 
following is a schedule of the benefits paid based upon the retirement date: 

1st Year 
2nd Year 
3rd Year 

$ 
$ 
$ 

5,000 
4,000 
3,000 

The City has reported $34,000 relating to this bonus retirement plan as part of the accrued 
compensated absences balance in the General Fund. 

NOTE 10 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City adopted Governmental Standards Board Statement 
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other 
than Pensions, on a prospective basis. This statement establishes standards for the measurement, 
recognition, and display of other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expenses/expenditures and 
related OPEB assets and liabilities, note disclosures, and required supplementary information. 
The objective of this statement is to improve the faithfulness of representations and usefulness of 
information included in the financial reports of state and local governments regarding OPEB. 

Plan Description 

The City administers its Health Plan (the plan) as a single-employer, self-insured benefit plan. 
The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits to certain employees that are eligible to 
retire under the New York State Retirement Systems. The plan provides medical and prescription 
drug coverage to certain retirees and their dependents based upon the City's collective bargaining 
agreements with its various unions. The financial information for the City's plan is contained 
solely within these basic financial statements. 
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NOTE 10- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of the members and the City are established by the City's 
collective bargaining agreements with its various unions. The required contribution rate of the 
City and the members varies depending on the applicable agreement covering the retiree and 
retiree's date of hire. Contribution rates for retirees range from 0% to 25% of the monthly 
premium cost. The City currently pays for postemployment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you­
go basis. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City contributed approximately $6,985,703 to the 
plan for its share of the health insurance premiums while plan members receiving benefits 
contributed $612,866. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation 

The City's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of 
the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and the amortized amount of any unfunded actuarially 
accrued liabilities (UAAL) over a period of thirty years. The following table shows the 
components of the City'S alillual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the 
plan, and the changes in the City's net OPEB obligation. 

Annual Required Contribution 
(ARC) 

Interest on Net OPE8 Obligation 
Adjustmenlto ARC 

Annual OPEB Cost 
Contributions Made 

Cbange in Net OPE8 Obligation 

Net OPEB Obligation-
8egilming of Year 

Net OPEB Obligation -
End of Year 

Business-type 
Governmental Activities -

Activities Water Fund 

Business-type 
Activities -

Sewer Fund Total 

$ 6,111,573 
461 ,284 

(440,671) 

$ 429,948 $ 411 ,184 $ 6,952,705 
546,462 

(522,042) 

6,132,186 
(3 ,662,353) 

2,469,833 

11 ,532, 130 

$ 14,001 ,963 

63 

52,764 
(50,406) 

432,306 
(175,729) 

256,577 

1,3 19,088 

$ 1,575,665 

32,414 
(30,965) 

412,633 
(144,536) 

268,097 

810,342 

$ 1,078,439 

6,977,125 
(3 ,982,618) 

2,994,507 

13,661 ,560 

$ 16,656,067 
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NOTE 10- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation - Continued 

The City'S annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB obligation was as follows: 

FYE 6/30/15 
Governmental Activities 
Business-type Activities - Water Fund 
Business-type Activities - Sewer Fund 

FYE 6/30/14 
Governmental Activities 
Business-type Activities - Water Fund 
Business-type Activities - Sewer Fund 

FYE 6/30/13 
Governmental Activities 
Business-type Activities - Water Fund 
Business-type Activities - Sewer Fund 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

Annual 
OPEB Cost 

$ 6,132,186 
$ 432,306 
$ 412,633 

$ 6,832,342 
$ 463 ,899 
$ 336,150 

$ 
$ 
$ 

6,623,794 
443,903 
324,557 

Percentage 
of Annual 

OPEBCost NetOPEB 
Contributed Obligation 

59.72% $ 14,001 ,963 
40.65% $ 1,575,665 
35.02% $ 1,078,439 

54.93% $ 11 ,532,530 
26.66% $ 1,319,088 
44.46% $ 810,342 

53 .34% $ 
23.80% $ 
42.12% $ 

8,452,543 
978,865 
623,643 

As of September I , 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City's actuarial accrued 
liability for benefits was $127,195,942 and there were no plan assets. Actuarial valuations of an 
ongoing plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about tbe probability of 
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortali ty, and the bealthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 
plan and tbe annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the 
notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about tbe value of plan 
assets relative to the actuarial accrued liability. 
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NOTE 10- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and the plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-tenn 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long­
tenn perspective of the calculations. 

In the September I, 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry age nonnal actuarial cost method was 
used. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years as a level 
percentage of projected payrolls on an open basis. The actuarial assumptions include 4.0% 
investment rate of return and an inflation rate of 3.0%. The annual heaIthcare cost trend rate was 
estimated at 7.5% for the next fiscal year and decreasing each fiscal year thereafter until reaching 
6.10% for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The rate was then adjusted every five years 
through 2084 at 4.40%. 

NOTE 11- FUND BALANCES 

Nonspendable Fund Balances 

Non-spendable fund balances consist of prepaid stop loss msurance on the City'S health 
insurance plan. 

Restricted Fund Balances 

Restricted fund balances consist of the following: 

General Fund 

Capital Reserve - Pursuant to Section 6-c of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York the City established a capital reserve fund to finance future capital improvement projects. 

Workers Compensation - An amount reserved to pay workers' compensation claims. 

Insurance - An amount reserved to pay claims and judgments for the City's general liability and 
the cost of providing health care benefits to eligible employees and retirees. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 11 - FUND BALANCES - Continued 

Restricted Fund Balances - Continued 

Tourism - Balance of City's share of the hotel occupancy tax enacted by Jefferson County which 
must be used to promote and develop tourism in the City. 

Debt Service - Balance of debt issued on behalf of property owners who elected to participate in 
the City's ten-year special assessment program for sidewalk replacements. 

Other Governmental Funds 

Mandatory Reserve for Indebtedness - Pursuant to Section 165.00 of the Local Finance Law of 
the State of New York, the proceeds, which will not be used for the specific purpose of the 
borrowing, plus any interest earned or capital gain realized on these proceeds must be used only 
for payment of principal and/or interest from which these proceeds were derived. The total 
amount reserved for principal and interest at June 30, 2015 was $248,450. 

Proprietary Funds 

Mandatory Reserve for Indebtedness - Pursuant to Section 165.00 of the Local Finance Law of 
the State of New York, the proceeds, which will not be used for the specific purpose of the 
borrowing, plus any interest earned or capital gain realized on these proceeds must be used only 
for payment of principal and/or interest from which these proceeds were derived. The total 
amount reserved for principal and interest in the sewer fund at June 30, 2015 was $35,385. 

Other Fund Balance Disclosures 

Deficit Fund Balance 

There were no funds with a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2015. 

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

The Health Insurance Fund had excess appropriations of $353 ,940 over appropriations due to 
higher than expected health claims. 
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NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 12 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Operating Transfers 

During the course of normal operations, the City records numerous transactions between funds 
including expenditures for services as well as transfers to finance various projects and debt 
payments. 

Inter-fund receivable and payable balances arising from these transactions as of June 30, 2015 
were as follows: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 
Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 
Library Fund 
Health Fund 
Capital Project Funds 
Trust & Agency Fund 

Total 

Interfund Eliminations 

$ 

Inter-fund 
Receivable 

635,244 

12,723 
212,531 
150,000 

$ 1,010,498 

Inter-fund 
Payable 

$ 159,794 
27,039 
88,120 

6,316 
477 
190 

727,032 
1,530 

$ 1,010,498 

For financial statement purposes, the following inter-fund balances have been eliminated: 

Revenues 
Expenditures 

Total 
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General Fund 

$ 
6,985,703 

$ 6,985,703 

Self-funded 
Health 

Insurance 
Fund 

$ 6,985,703 

$ 6,985,703 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASES 

State Street Parking Lot 

The City leases a parking lot located at 250-270 State Street from Wilson Rusho and Terry 
MacAdam. The term of the original lease is for a five-year period from October 22,2011 through 
October 21,2016. The annual rent for the current fiscal year is $2,800. The lease payment is 
payable in advance by September 15th of the previous year. On October 17,2011, the City 
Council approved a new lease for the period from October 22, 2011 through October 21,2016. 

Minimum future rentals to be paid over the term of the lease for fiscal year ended June 30 are as 
follows: 

2016 $ 2,900 

Total $ 2,900 

Fairgrounds Property Lease 

The City is the lessor of a portion of the Fairgrounds property to the Watertown Family YMCA. 
The lease dated July 9, 2009 is for a term of twenty-five years with an option to renew by 
Watertown Family YMCA for an additional fifteen years if such renewal is approved by the New 
York State Legislature. 

Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
Thereafter 

Total 
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$ 

$ 

25,800 
25,800 
25,800 
26,768 
27,735 

406,404 

538,307 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2015 

NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASES - Continued 

Public Safety Building Lease 

The City has entered into an amended Inter-municipal Agreement with the County of Jefferson, 
New York, for the joint operation and maintenance of a County/City Public Safety Building. 
Minimum annual lease payments are calculated on a pro rata basis of square footage utilized by 
the City and consist of the costs incurred for debt service, operation and maintenance expenses. 
These lease payments are offset by a percentage of the costs incun'ed by the City for the 
construction of the facility. Furthermore, the City is liable for a portion of the debt regardless of 
the City continuing the lease or not. Total rental expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2015 
were $250,377. The final debt service payment on the initial construction was made in the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

Equipment Leases 

The City is the lessor of certain office equipment. The lease dated August 13 , 2013 is for a term 
of five years. Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Total 

$ 

$ 

2,606 
2,606 
2,606 

434 

8,252 

The City is the lessor of certain office equipment. The lease dated November 2, 2011 is for a 
term of five years. Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows: 

2016 
2017 

Total 
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$ 

$ 

1,164 
675 

1,839 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 

The City has been named in several claims arising out of the conduct of its business, including 
claims for property damage, personnel practices, personal injury, false arrest, and disputes over 
contracts and suits contesting assessments. These claims, in the opinion of City officials, will not 
result in material judgments against the City, and, therefore, are not expected to have a material 
effect on the general-purpose financial statements. Additionally, as of June 30, 2015, the 
financial impact of these claims, if any, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the general-purpose 
financial statements have not been adjusted to reflect the potential result of these claims. 
However, the City has accumulated a reserve of $486,746 as of June 30, 2015 for un-funded 
general liability claims. 

Grant Programs 

The City participates in a number of Federal and State grant programs. These programs are 
subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors of their representatives. The City 
believes, based upon its review of current activity and prior experience, the amount of 
disallowances resulting from these audits, if any, will not be significant to the City'S financial 
position or results of operations. 

Environmental Concerns 

On April 27, 2007, the City acquired several parcels of property from Black Clawson known as 
Sewall's Island. On December 26, 2006, the City received a grant under the Environmental 
Restoration Program (ERP) from the New York State Department of Conservation for the 
investigation of the Sewall's Island project site. The ERP grant will provide $705,540 towards the 
investigation phase of the project. The City's local share to the ERP grant will be funded from a 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Brownfields Pilot Program grant. The City Council has 
spent $900,545 for a professional services contract with Lu Engineers to prepare the investigation 
phase of the Environmental Restoration Program. As of June 30, 2015, the City is not expected 
to have any liability for this potential environmental clean-up due to the "safe harbor" provisions 
of the ERP grant. 

The City is engaged in many activIties (i.e. water and sewer service, refuse collection, and 
gasoline storage) in the nonnal course of operations that are potentially hazardous to the 
environment. As of June 30, 2015, the City is not aware of any significant envirornnental 
problems that should be disclosed in the financial statements. 
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NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Landfill Closure 

State and federal laws and regulations required the City to close its landfill site in 1993 . Although 
the closure has been completed, the City must continue to perform certain maintenance and 
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. The costs incurred during the 
closure were expensed as incurred. The post-closure monitoring occurs three times a year at an 
estimated annual expenditure of $18,000. At June 30, 2015, an estimated $162,000 in post­
closure care cost will be incurred over the remaining 9-year period. This liability is recorded as 
long-term debt in the Statement of Net Position and is amortized in the General Fund at 
approximately $18,000 each year. 

The current landfill-monitoring contract expired in 2000. The estimated total liability was 
computed assuming future contracts monitoring costs would be comparable. 

Black River Fund 

The City of Watertown owns a hydroelectric facility on the Black River. On November 21 , 
1994, the City Council approved an agreement between the City and New York Rivers United, 
an environmental group, for the establishment of a Black River Fund. On June 16, 1995, the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Agency (PERC) issued the City a hydroelectric generation license. 

This Fund is established in consideration of the immitigable impacts of the Watertown Project 
and for the purpose of financing projects and facilities that enhance the natural resources and 
human values of the Black River within the City's boundaries. This Fund will be used to finance 
projects and facilities which conserve and enhance the fish, plant and wildlife resources of the 
Black River, improve water quality, educate the public about the river and its uses, and provide 
for recreation. 

Tlus Fund is being administered by a Black River Fund Committee, which shall determine the 
distribution of funding each year. If able to demonstrate that their proposal provides a clear 
public benefit, governmental agencies, non-profit orgruuzations, education institutions, and 
individuals shall be eligible to receive funding from the Black River Fund. On December 16, 
2006, the Committee allocated $20,000 to New York Rivers United to document the river's 
ecology in terms of quality, water quantity, general biodiversity and ecological status since the 
passage of the 1977 Federal Clean Water Act. The Committee contributed $80,000 to the City for 
its Hold Brothers Access Improvement Project between 2008 and 2009. 
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June 30, 2015 

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Black River Fund - Continued 

Under the tenns of the agreement, within sixty (60) days of the City's acceptance ofa new FERC 
license, the City agreed to contribute $30,000 to cover the first three (3) years of the license's 
forty (40) year tenn. The City started to contribute $10,000 annually beginning in the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2003, for a total agreed contribution of $400,000. The balance in the fund as of 
June 30, 2015 was $68,079 

Additionally, the City agreed to establish a replacement reserve to accumulate funds towards the 
anticipated cost of repairing, replacing, or retiring of energy generation equipment at the facility. 

Electrical Distribution System Agreement 

The City approved a sale of its Electrical Distribution System in March 1991. In connection with 
the sale, the parties agreed to the following: 

). National Grid was to operate the existing municipal hydro plant at no cost to the City 
beginning January I, 1991 and extending until removal of the plant from service for 
reconstruction. 

2. The City would proceed in the process of undertaking re-licensing of the hydro plant in 
accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) rules and 
regulations, and would undertake the refurbishing of the plant. 

3. The City will lease all of its surplus power to National Grid for a tenn not exceeding forty 
years. 

The City commenced reconstruction of the hydroelectJic plant on June 2, 1997. The project, 
which cost $9,075,000, was completed in January 2000. 
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Metropolitan Planning Organization 

After the 20 10 Census was completed, the U.S. Census Bureau delineated an Urbanized Area 
that includes the City of Watertown. The Urbanized Area designation set in motion changes to 
the City' s relationship with several federal programs. 

A Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was fonned to plan for the expenditure of federal 
highway and transit funds within a Metropolitan Planning Area (MP A) that was delineated 
around the Urbanized Area. The Watertown-Jefferson County Transportation Council was 
designated as the MPO on September 19, 2014 by the Commissioner of the NYS Department of 
Transportation on behalf of the Governor. The MPO is governed by a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City, Jefferson County and NYS Department of Transportation. 

The federal Office of Management and Budget used the Urbanized Area to create the Watertown­
Fort Drum, NY Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) on February 28, 2013. As a Principal City 
in the MSA, Watertown became an Entitlement Community under U.S. Housing and Urban 
Development's Community Development Block Grant program. This means the City will be 
receive an annual allocation of community development funds. 

The City will also become responsible for enforcing U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 
stonn water regulations under the Municipal Separate Stonn Sewer System (MS4) program. 

NOTE IS - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION / FUND BALANCE 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 
Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Pensions - Amendment to GASB Statement No. 27. The 
implementation of Statement No. 68 resulted in the reporting of a liability related to the City'S 
participation in the New York State Employees' Retirement System and Police and Fire 
Retirement System. 

A restatement was also made to reclassify capital project construction costs between 
governmental type activities and business type activities. 

Finally a prior period adjustment was made to reclassify tbe long tenn portion of the 
compensated absences liability in the governmental funds to the government wide long tenn 
debt. 
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NOTE 15 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE - Continued 

Governmental - Type Activities 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Previously Stated 

Reclassification of capital project costs 

GASB Statement No. 68 Implementation 
Beginning System Liability - Employees' Retirement System 
Beginning System Liability - Police and Fire Retirement System 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Restated 

Business - Type Activities 

Water 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Previously Stated $ 15,658,748 

Reclassification of capital project costs (53,265) 

GASB Statement No. 68 Implementation 
Beginning System Liability - Employees' Retirement 

System (248,172) 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Restated $ 15,357,311 

Governmental Funds 
Capital 

General Projects 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year, $ 15,908,061 $ 327,377 
As Previously Stated 

$ 59,042,049 

224,048 

(1 ,124,438) 
(1,268,958) 

$ 56,872,701 

Sewer 

$ 16,344,907 

(\ 70,783) 

(224,375) 

$ 15,949,749 

Non Major 

$ 351 ,516 

Reclassification of capital project costs (49,340) 
Reclassification of Compensated Absences 574,639 17,634 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as Restated $ 16,482,700 $ 278,037 $ 369,150 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE FUNDING PROGRESS OF THE POST EMPLOYMENT HEAL THCARE 
BENEFIT PLAN 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

6/3012015 $ 
6/30/2014 
6/30/2013 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability 
Value of (AAL) - Eutry Unfuuded Covered 
Assets Age AAL(UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll 

(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) 

$127,195,942 $127,195,942 0% $18,105,641 
134,515,815 130,841 ,68 1 0% 18,459,558 
130,841,681 98,650,932 0% 17,877,626 

See paragraph on supplemental schedules included in auditor's report. 
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UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
«b-a)/c) 

729.00% 
732.00% 
547.00% 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Actual 

Budgeted Amounts Amounts 

Budgetary 

Original Final Basis 

Resources (Inflows) 
Real Property Taxes $ 8,280,726 $ 8,280,726 $ 8,131 ,382 
Real Property Tax Items 289, 125 289,125 298,906 
Non-Property Taxes 18,474,000 18,474,000 18,049,764 
Departmental Income 5,127,200 5,127,200 5,432,977 
Intergovernmental Charges 136,170 136,170 144,533 
Use of Money and Property 91 ,810 91,810 75 ,242 
Licenses and Pennits 83,350 83,350 66,820 
Fines and Forfeitures 145,000 145,000 11 7,475 
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss 161 ,100 161,100 114,919 
Miscellaneous Local Sources 805 ,128 805,128 969,515 
Illterfund Revenue 1,133,435 1,133,785 1,013,989 
State Source 5,545,960 5,545,960 5,440,692 
Federal Sources 525,425 525,425 401 ,763 
Transfers from Other Funds 44,500 44,500 2 14,387 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 40,842,929 40,843,279 40,472,364 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
General Government Support 6,207,000 5,506,900 5,094,415 
Public Safely 15,709,865 15,940,665 15,514,6 12 
Transportation 4,977,342 5,102,042 4,439,130 
Economic Assistance and Development 112,500 112,600 94,563 
Culture and Recreation 1,587,717 1,724,592 1,532,34 1 
Home and Community Services 1,233,757 1,279,707 1,045,566 
Employee Benefits 8,240,705 8,402,105 8,708,452 
Debt Service 2,6 13,235 2,613,860 2,588,778 
Transfers to Other Funds 1,768,665 1,768,665 1,735, 155 

Total Charges to Appropriations 42,450,786 42,451,136 40,753,012 

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over 
Charges to Appropriations (1 ,607,857) (1 ,607,857) (280,648) 

Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance 1,607.857 1,607,857 

Excess I (Deficiency) of Resources Over 
Charges to Appropriations $ $ (280,648) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 16,482,700 
Fund Equity Transfer 

Fund Balance, End of Year ~ 16.202.052 

See paragraph on supplemental schedules included in auditor's report. 
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Variance With 

Final Budget 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (149,344) 
9,78 1 

(424,236) 
305 ,777 

8,363 
(16,568) 
(16,530) 
(27,525) 
(46,181) 
164,387 

(119,796) 
(105,268) 
(123,662) 
169,887 

(370.9 15) 

412,485 
426,053 
662,912 

18,037 
192,25 1 
234, 141 

(306,347) 
25,082 
33,510 

1,698,124 

1,327,209 

(1,607,857) 

~ (280,648) 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION 
LIABILITY - NYSLRS PENSION PLAN 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

City's Covered Payroll 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of its Covered Employee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 

Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) 

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

City's Covered Payroll 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of its Covered Employee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 

See paragraph on supplemental schedules included in auditor's report. 
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0.03534050% 

$ 1,193,889 

$ 8,549,403 

13.96% 

97.9% 

0.30481 120% 

$ 839,022 

$ 9,556,238 

8.78% 

99.0% 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS - NYSLRS PENSION PLAN 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

Contractually Required Contribution 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

City's Covered Employee Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 

Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) 

Contractually Required Contribution 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

City's Covered Employee Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 

See paragraph on supplemental schedules included in auditor's report. 
78 

$ 1,657,173 

1,657,173 

$ 

$ 8,549,403 

19.4% 

$ 2,494,595 

2,494,595 

$ 

$ 9,556,238 

26.1% 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

We have audited, in accordance witb the auditing standards generally accepted in tbe United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively compl1se City of Watertown, New 
York' s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 21 , 2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Watertown, New York' s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine 
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Watertown's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Watertown, New York's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity 's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

120 Madison Street, 1700 AXA Tower II, Syracuse, NY 13202 Phone: 315 .234 .1100 
11 20 COllllllerce Park Dri ve East, Watertown, NY 13601 Phone: 315.788.7690 

www.bcpl lc.colll 

Fax: 315.234.1111 
Fax: 315.788.0966 



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Watertown, New York' s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and matelial effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity 's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Watertown, New York 
December 21 , 2015 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Watertown, New York' s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-i33 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the City of Watertown, New York's major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2015 . The City of Watertown, New York' s major federal programs 
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Watertown, 
New York ' s major federa l programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Watertown, New 
York's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

120 Madison Street, 1700 AXA Tower II, Syracuse, NY 13202 Phone: 315 .234.1100 Fax: 315.234.1111 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major program. However, our audit does not provide legal determination of City of Watertown, 
New York's compliance. 

Opinion 011 Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, City of Watertown, New York, complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have direct and material effect on each 
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of City of Watertown, New York is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Watertown, 
New York' s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Watertown, New York' s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness ill internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Watertown, New York 
December 21,2015 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

US Department of Housing & Urban Development 

Direct Award: 
Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grant 14.218 

Passed Through New York State Homes & Community Renewal: 
Community Development Block Grant I State's Loan 14.228 
Community Development Block Grant I State's Loan 14.228 
Community Development Block Grant I Program Income 14.228 

Total Community Development Block Grant I State's Loan 

Passed Through Development Authority of the North Country: 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 

Total HOME Investment Partnership Program 

Total Department of Housing & Urban Development 

US Department of Transportation 
Passed Through New York State: 

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 

Total Department of Transportation 

US Department of Homeland Security 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance Presidentially Declared Disasters 97.036 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 

US Department of Environmental Protection Agency 
Passed Through New York State: 

Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 66.818 

US Department of Justice 
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 

(JAG) Program I Grants to Units of Local Govemment 
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership 16.607 

Total Department of Justice 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 
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B-14-MC-36-0121 $ 303 ,378 

I 207HR75-1 2 243,307 
1207HRII -13 215,644 

2,862 
461 ,813 

M14-DC360512 62,198 
M 12-DC360512 36,776 
M 13-DC360512 85 ,725 

184,699 

949,890 

PD-OO 140-(023) 8,679 

PIN7753.15 .121 20,471 

29,150 

FEMA 4204 DRNY 28,462 
CI90329 58 ,435 
CI90319 24,462 
CI90349 46,270 

157,629 

BF-97211311 165,891 

2014-DJ-BX-0737 10,430 

3,450 
13,880 

$ 1,316.440 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of federal 
award programs administered by the City, which is described in Note I to the City's 
accompanying financial statements, using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Federal 
awards that are included in the schedule may be received directly from federal agencies, as well 
as federal awards that are passed through from other government agencies. The information is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 

Matching costs (the City's share of certain program costs) are not included in the reported 
expenditures. 

The amounts reported as federal expenditures were obtained from the federal financial reports for 
the applicable programs and periods. The amounts reported in these reports are prepared from 
records maintained for each program, which are reconciled with the City's financial reporting 
system. 

NOTE 2 - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT LOANS 

Loan activity for the Cornmunity Development Block grant loans is as follows: 

CFDA# 
Balance at 

July 1, 2014 Issuance Forgiveness 
Balance at 

June 30, 2015 

14.228 $ 764,809 $ 441 ,395 $ 214,256 ....;.$ __ 9;...;9....;.1.:;..,9_48,-

NOTE 3 - SUBRECIPIENTS 

No amounts were provided to subreceipients. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

I. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of City of 
Watertown, New York. 

2. No significant deficiencies related to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Perfonned in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements ofthe City of Watertown, 
New York were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are 
reported in the Independent Auditor' s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-I33. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs of the City of 
Watertown, New York expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 51 O(a) of OMB 
Circular A-133 are reported in this Schedule. 

7. The programs tested as major federal programs were - Community Development Block 
Grant Program/State' s Loan - CFDA #14.228 and Community Development Block Grant! 
Entitlement Grant - CFDA # 14.218. 

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $300,000. 

9. The City of Watertown, New York was detennined to be a low-risk auditee. 

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT FINDINGS 

There were no findings to report. 

NOTE C - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS FINDINGS AND 
QUESTIONED COSTS 

There were no findings to report. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
June 30, 2015 

There were no prior year audit findings. 
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BOWERS &, MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER ST ATE TRANSPORT A TION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Report on Compliance For Each State Transportation Assistance Program Tested 

We have audited the compliance of City of Watertown, New York with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the preliminary Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of 
Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) that are applicable to each state transportation assistance 
program tested for the year ended June 30, 2015. The programs tested are identified in the 
summary of audit results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
for state transportation assistance expended. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to its state assistance programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Watertown, New York's compliance for 
each state transportation assistance program tested based on our audit. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Draft Part 43 ofNYCRR. 
Those standards and Draft Part 43 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above, that could have a direct and material effect on the state transportation assistance programs 
tested, has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of 
Watertown, New York's compliance with those requirements and performing other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion on compliance for each state transportation assistance program tested. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Watertown, New York's 
compliance with those requirements. 

120 Madison Street, 1700 AXA Tower II , Syracuse, NY 13202 Phone: 315.234.11 00 Fax: 315.234.1111 
1120 Commerce Park Drive East, Watertown, NY 13601 Phone: 315.788.7690 Fax: 315.788.0966 

www.bcp ll c.com 



Opinion on Each State Transportation Assistance Program Tested 

In our opinion, City of Watertown, New York complied, in all material respects, with the 
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its state transportation assistance 
programs tested for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of City of Watertown, New York is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to state transportation assistance programs tested. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Watertown, New York's 
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on state transportation assistance programs tested in order to determine our auditing procedures 
that are appropriate for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each state 
transportation assistance program tested and to test and report on the internal control over 
compliance in accordance with Draft Part 43 of NYCRR, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Watertown, New York's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management of employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a state transportation assistance program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a state transportation assistance program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a state transpoliation assistance program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended 

We have audited the financial statements of City of Watertown, New York as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated December 21 , 2015, which 
contained an unmodified opinion on those fmancial statements. Our audit was conducted for the 
purpose of forming an opinion on City of Watertown, New York's financial statements taken as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of state transportation assistance expended is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by Draft Part 43 ofNYCRR, and is not a required part 
of the financial statements. Such information is tbe responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of 
America. in our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state transportation assistance expended 
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of Draft Part 43 of NYSCRR. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Watertown, New York 
December 21 , 2015 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 
June 30, 2015 

Program Title 

Consolidated Local Street and Highway Improvement 
Program Capital - Reimbursement / CHIPS 

Marchiselli Match For Federal Aid Highway Projects 
Bus Transit Operating Assistance 

Total 

Ref. Number 

732059 
D032467 

Expenditures 

$ 328,225 
3,027 

247,742 

$ 578,994 

See accompanying notes to schedule of state transportation assistance expended. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORT A nON ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 
June 30, 2015 

NOTE A - GENERAL 

The Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended of the City of Watertown, New York, 
presents the activity of all major financial assistance programs provided by the New York State 
Department of Transportation. 

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended is presented using the accrual basis 
of accounting. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR STATE 
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 
June 30, 2015 

Summary of Audit Results 

Internal control over state transportation assistance expended: 

Material weaknesses identified 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
Program tested: 

Summary of Audit Findings: 

Identification of State Transportation Assistance 
Programs tested: 

Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs 

No matters were reported. 
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None reported 

None reported 

Unmodified 

N/A 

Consolidated Local 
Street & Highway 
Improvement Program 
Capital Reimbursement­
CHIPS Contract# 732059 



January 13,2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Geoffrey Urda, Planner 

Subject: The Purpose of a Complete Streets Policy and a Model Ordinance 

At its January 4,2016 meeting, several City Council members expressed 
interest in pursuing a Complete Streets policy for the City of Watertown and requested 
that Staff describe what such a policy would entail. This memo briefly discusses the 
purpose of adopting a Complete Streets policy and includes an example of such a policy 
that a nearby community recently adopted. 

Many traditional streets built over the last 50 years prioritize automobiles 
to the detriment of other users. Complete Streets are streets that are designed for all 
users, instead of being designed solely for private automobiles. The National Complete 
Streets Coalition, which is a part of Smart Growth America, defines Complete Streets as 
"designed and operated to enable safe access for all users, including pedestrians, 
bicyclists, motorists and transit riders of all ages and abilities." This includes people with 
disabilities. 

In recent years, communities across the country have begun adopting 
Complete Streets policies. These policies range from ordinances and resolutions to 
rewrites of design manuals. The purpose of a Complete Streets policy is for a community 
to formalize its intent to make its streets safer for all users, regardless of age ability, or 
mode of transportation, and to initiate implementation of Complete Streets principles in 
the community, treating new projects as opportunities to put them into practice. 

A Complete Streets policy sets the goals and objectives that a community 
seeks to achieve by adopting that policy, identifies the design criteria and standards that 
the community will use to work towards those goals, and directs the community'S staff to 
apply those standards when feasible to current and future projects. It also establishes a 
scope of applicability, makes appropriate exceptions, and lays out clear steps to 
implementation. 

In February 2014, the City of Ogdensburg, NY adopted a Complete 
Streets ordinance, and Smart Growth America identified that policy as the best Complete 
Streets policy adopted during 2014 anywhere in the nation. Smart Growth America's 
report specifically praised the Ogdensburg ordinance's language regarding the 
application of Complete Streets to all transportation projects, and subsequently tagged it 
as model policy language for others to follow. 



A copy of the City of Ogdensburg's Complete Streets ordinance has been 
attached for the Council's review as a model policy. While each community should 
develop a policy that makes the most sense in its own local context, this ordinance is a 
benchmark that serves as a starting point from which to work. 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
February 13,2014 
Page 25 

The vote was: 

CARRIED, AYES ALL 

3. Councillor Hosmer moved an ordinance to amend Chapter 189 entitled 
"Streets and Sidewalks" to add Article III entitled "Complete Streets", and 
Councillor Stevenson seconded to wit: 

ORDINANCE #3 OF 2014 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 189 ENTITLED "STREETS AND 
SIDEWALKS" OF THE CITY OF OGDENSBURG MUNICIPAL CODE 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the City Council of the City of 
Ogdensburg, New York, as follows: 

SECTION ONE: That Article III entitled "Complete Streets" is hereby added, as 
follows: 

§ 189-18. Definition. 

ARTICLE III 
Complete Streets 

"Complete Streets" means streets that are designed and operated to enable safe 
access for all users, in that pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists and public 
transportation users of all ages and abilities are able to safely move along and 
across a street. 

§ 189-19. Policy. 

The City shall develop a safe, reliable, efficient, integrated and connected 
multimodal transportation system that will promote access, mobility and health for 
all users, and will ensure that the safety and convenience of all users of the Public 
transit, people of all ages and abilities, motorists, emergency responders, freight 
providers and adjacent land users. 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
February 13,2014 
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§ 189-20. Scope of Applicability. 

A. All City-owned transportation facilities in the public right-of-way including, but 
not limited to, streets, bridges and all other connecting pathways shall be 
designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so that users of all ages and 
abilities can travel safely and independently. 

B. Privately constructed streets and parking lots shall adhere to this policy. 

C. The City shall foster partnerships with the State of New York, St. Lawrence 
County, neighboring communities, business and school districts to develop 
facilities and accommodations that further the City's complete streets policy and 
continue such infrastructure beyond the City's borders. 

D. The City shall approach every transportation improvement and project phase as 
an opportunity to create safer, more accessible streets for all users. These 
phases include, but are not limited to: planning, programming, design, right-of­
way acquisition, construction, construction engineering, reconstruction, 
operation and maintenance. Other changes to transportation facilities on streets 
and rights-of-way, including capital improvements, re-channelization projects 
and major maintenance, must also be included. 

§ 189-21. Exceptions. 

A. Any exception to this policy, including for private projects, must be reviewed 
and approved by both the Director of Public Works and the Director of 
Planning and Development and be documented with supporting data that 
indicates the basis for the decision. Such documentation shall be publicly 
available. 

B. Exceptions may be considered for approval when: 

(1) An affected roadway prohibits, by law, use by specified users (such as an 
interstate freeways or pedestrian malls), in which case a greater effort shall be 
made to accommodate those specified users elsewhere, including on roadways that 
cross or otherwise intersect with the affected roadway; 
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(2) The activities are ordinary maintenance activities designed to keep assets 
in serviceable condition (e.g. mowing, cleaning, sweeping, spot repair and 
surface treatments such as chip seal or interim measures); 

(3) The Director of Public Works issues a documented exception concluding 
that the application of Complete Streets principles is unnecessary, unduly 
cost prohibitive, or inappropriate because it would be contrary to public 
safety; or 

(4) Other available means or factors indicate an absence of need, including 
future need. 

§ 189-22. Design Standards. 

The City shall follow accepted or adopted design standards and use the best and 
latest design standards available. These standards include, but are not limited to: 
ITE Designing Walkable Urban Thoroughfares: A Context Sensitive Approach; 
and AASHTO Guide for Planning, Designing and Operating Pedestrian Facilities. 

In recognition of context sensitivity, public input and the needs of many users, a 
flexible, innovative and balanced approach that follows other appropriate design 
standards may be considered, provided that a comparable level of safety for all 
users is present. 

§ 189-23. Performance Measures and Reporting. 

A. The City shall measure the success of this Complete Streets policy using, but 
not limited to, the following performance measures: 
(1) Total miles of bike lanes 
(2) Linear feet of new pedestrian accommodation 
(3) Number of new curb ramps installed along city streets 
(4) Crosswalk and intersection improvements 
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B. An annual report will be made by the Complete Streets Active Living Task 
Force to the Ogdensburg City Council showing progress made in implementing 
this policy. The annual report on the annual increase or decrease for each 
performance measure contained in this ordinance compared to the previous 
year(s) shall be posted on-line for each of the above measures. 

§ 189-24. Implementation. 

A. The City of Ogdensburg shall view Complete Streets as integral to everyday 
transportation decision- making practices and processes. To this end: 

(1) The Department of Public Works, the Department Planning and 
Development, and other relevant departments, agencies, or committees will 
incorporate Complete Streets principles into all existing plans, manuals, 
checklists, decision-trees, rules, regulations, and programs as appropriate 
(including, but not limited to the Local Waterfront Revitalization Program, 
the Comprehensive Plan, Transportation Capital Program, and other 
appropriate plans); 

(2) The Department of Public Works, the Department Planning and 
Development, and other relevant departments, agencies, or committees will 
review current design standards, including subdivision regulations which 
apply to new roadway construction, to ensure that they reflect the best 
available design standards and guidelines, and effectively implement 
Complete Streets, where feasible; 

(3) When available, the City shall encourage staff professional development 
and training on non-motorized transportation issues through attending 
conferences, classes, seminars, and workshops; 

(4) City staff shall identify all current and potential future sources of funding 
for street improvements and recommend improvements to the project 
selection criteria to support Complete Streets projects; 
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(5) The City shall promote inter-departmental project coordination among City 
departments with an interest in the activities that occur within the public 
right-of-way in order to better use fiscal resources; 

(6) Every Complete Streets project shall include an educational component to 
ensure that all users of the transportation system understand and can safely 
utilize Complete Streets project elements. 

§ 189-25. Complete Streets Active Living Task Force. 

A. There is hereby created a Complete Streets Active Living Task Force for the 
City of Ogdensburg. 

B. The Task Force shall consist of seven (7) members holding staggered three-year 
terms appointed by the Mayor. 

C. The purpose of the Complete Street Active Living Task Force is to promote 
health through physical activity and active transportation for all users, 
specifically, the most vulnerable - children, older adults, and those with 
disabilities within Ogdensburg. 

SECTION TWO 

This ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after publication of a notice which 
shall give the title and describe same in summary form. 

Councillor Morley asked if it is mandatory that we do this to every street we 
redo. City Manager John Pinkerton said it is mandatory that we review our 
complete streets policy when we do any improvements to a transportation 
byway. Councillor Morley asked if we are under contract for the Paterson Street 
project and if it requires a review of our complete streets policy. Mr. Pinkerton 
said a complete streets review is not necessary because that project was done prior 
to this change. Councillor Morley asked if all future projects will need to 
incorporate these additional walking and bicycling lanes. Mr. Pinkerton said if we 
can incorporate it into the system, we have to consider it. Councillor Morley asked 
if it will cost the City extra money to create these additional lanes. 
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Mr. Pinkerton said yes, but the cost for the complete streets portion would be taken 
into consideration and put before Council for a decision at that time. Councillor 
Hosmer asked if this means we are required to add the extra lanes. Mr. Pinkerton 
said no, we are only required to review it. Councillor Skamperle explained Clause 
189-21 under Exceptions gives us leeway if it becomes too costly. Councillor 
Skamperle asked if the same leeway will be given to private developers because he 
does not want to restrict private developers with housing projects. Mr. Pinkerton 
said there is no intent to restrict private development, and variances are always an 
option. Councillor Stevenson said this requirement will enhance the waterfront 
and marina projects. Mr. Pinkerton explained the intent is to get people out 
moving, walking and biking. 

The vote was: 

CARRIED, AYES ALL 

4. Mayor Nelson moved a resolution calling for a public hearing and public 
notice for the purpose of considering the application of Time Warner Cable 
Northeast LLC, for a franchise renewal to provide cable television services through 
the City of Ogdensburg, and Councillor Morley seconded to wit: 

RESOLUTION OF CITY COUNCIL INTRODUCING A RESOLUTION 
AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC NOTICE AND PUBLIC HEARING 

BE IT RESOLVED, that a public hearing be held by the Ogdensburg City 
Council for the purpose of considering the application of Time Warner Cable 
Northeast LLC, for a franchise renewal to provide cable television services through 
the City of Ogdensburg, be and it hereby is introduced before the City Council of 
the City of Ogdensburg, New York, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council shall hold a public 
hearing in the matter of the approval of the aforesaid to be held at the Council 
Chambers in the City of Ogdensburg, New York, on the 24th day of February, 
2014 at 7:00 p.m., and 



January 13,2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Sharon Addison, City Manager 

Subject: Northern New York Builder's Exchange 

As stated in Parks and Recreation Superintendent Erin Gardner's attached 
report, we have been approached by the Northern New York Builder's Exchange. They 
hold their annual Home Show at our Watertown Municipal Arena each year and have 
asked that they be charged the City Resident fee. 

Superintendent Gardner and I both recommend that City Council consider 
this request. 



January 13,2016 

To: Ms. Sharon Addison, City Manager 

From: Erin E. Gardner, Superintendent of Parks and Recreation 

Subject: Northern New York Builder's Exchange 

Mr. Phil Reed from the Northern New York Builders Exchange has requested that 
the Builders Exchange be charged the City Resident fee for the 2016 Home Show. The majority 
of businesses participating in the Home Show are located within City limits. As Superintendent 
of Parks and Recreation, I recommend that we grant his request. Superintendent Gardner will be 
in attendance at the Council Meeting to answer any questions. 



January 12,2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Sharon Addison, City Manager 

Subject: 2ih Annual Local Government Conference 

The NYS Tug Hill Commission is again offering their Annual Local 
Government Conference. This year it will be held on March 31, 2016 at Jefferson 
Community College. 

Please review the Conference Sessions and let us know if you would like 
to attend, noting the Workshop for each session for which you would like to sign up. So 
that we are able to process the payment, I ask that you return the Registration Information 
page by the next regular Council Meeting. 



NYS TUG HILL COMMISSION 
27TH ANNUAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONFERENCE 

Thursday, March 31,2016, Jefferson Community College 

About the Conference 

The March 31, 2016 Local Government Conference is 
an annual event organized by the staff at the Tug Hill 
Commission held at Jefferson Community College, 
1220 Coffeen Street, Watertown, NY, and attracts 
over 600 local officials from across the North Country. 

Workshops on a variety of topics are geared toward 
town and village board members, clerks, planning 
boards, ZBA's, highway departments, and assessors. 

Registration Information 

Please mail the registration form inside with your 
check or voucher. Refunds will not be granted after 
Wednesday, March 16th. 

Directions to Jefferson Community College 

Take Interstate 81 to Exit 46 (Coffeen Street). Travel 
east on Coffeen Street 0.25 mile. The college entrance 
is on your left. Parking at the college is in the back in 
Lots C & D. Registration is in the Gymnasium. 

Overview of the Day 

7 :30 a.m. - 8:30 a.m. 
Registration & Breakfast wi Exhibitors 

8:30 a.m. - 8:45 a.m. 
Welcoming Remarks 

8:45 a.m. - 10:15 a.m. 
Keynote Address 

10:30 a.m. - Noon 
1st Concurrent Session 

Noon - 1:00 p.m. '" Lunch 

1:15 p.m. - 2:30 p.m. 
2nd Concurrent Session 

2:45 p.m. -, 4:00 p.m. 
3rd Concurrent Session 

4:00 p.m. '" Reception 

Photo by Kathy Hallcilek 



20 16 Conference Sessions 
Town Boards - Village Boards - Clerks - Planning Boards - Zoning Boards - Highway Departments - Assessors 

Assessor Training - 8:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. 
This six hours of certified training will be in the 
computer lab and shown methods to identify 
areas within municipal boundaries where 
inequity may exist using RPSV 4 and Excel. 

Opening Remarks & Keynote 
8:30 - 10:15 a.m. 

"Warm Up The Workplace" 
In a program that is presented around the nation, 
Frank Pastizzo uses a wonderful mix of music, 
comedy, and storytelling from his diverse 
career to capture his audiences and help them 
find ways to warm up their workplaces and be 
more supportive of one another. Exploring the 
dynamics of diverse workplaces, Frank presents 
clear and concise directions on how all of us can 
contribute to making our jobs rich with humor, 
humanity, and joy. 

Session 1: 10:30 a.m. - Noon 
1A. Budgeting for Fire Protection 
This session will discuss various options 
available for providing fire protection as well as 
what issues towns and villages need to be aware 
of when negotiating fire protection contracts. 

In. Municipal Restructuring Fund 
This session will discuss the new Municipal 
Restructuring Fund and how it will assist local 
governments with capital and other expenses 
related to the implementation oflocal government 
and school district shared services, cooperation 
agreements, mergers and other actions that reduce 
operational costs and related property tax burdens 
on a permanent basis. 

1 C. Conservation Subdivision Design 
This session will review the principles and 
benefits of conservation subdivision design. 
Included will be the legal framework for 
cluster subdivisions, municipal implementation, 
and review and design principles to achieve 
environmentally sensitive design. 

!D. ZBA Overview 
This introductory course to the zoning board of 
appeals focuses on the statutory tests boards must 
follow to grant use and area variances. Meeting 
procedures and notice requirements will also be 
discussed, along with the ZBA's relationship with 
enforcement officials and the planning board, 
and the importance of making good findings. 
Code Enforcement Officers may receive 1 hours of In­
Service Credit. 

IE. Computer Software for Highways 
Software used by highway departments to 
keep good records can reduce workload while 
documenting compliance with New York State 
regulations. This session will discuss how a full­
featured, powerful database solution can provide 
increased efficiency, improved time management, 

1 F. Open Meetings Law & Freedom of 
Information Law O&A 
Bob Freeman will be available to answer any 
and all questions related to the Freedom of 
Information Law as well as the Open Meetings 
Law. 

1G. Beneficial Management Practices 
Used By Dairy Farms for Environmental 
Protection 
A brief introduction to dairy farming in NYS, 
the voluntary as well as regulatory framework 
farmers must work in, and the pros and cons of 
various types of practices commonly employed 
by farms will be discussed in this session. 

Lunch: Noon - 1:00 p.m. 
Session 2: 1:15 p.m. - 2:30 p.m. 
2A. Open Ouestion Period with Bob 
Freeman 
Bob Freeman is the world-renowned expert on 
Freedom of Information and Open Meetings 
Law. He is here to answer any questions you 
have regarding this topic so bring your questions 
to this always informative and lively session. 

2n. What Local Officials Need to Know 
About Unmanned Aerial Systems (Drones) 
Small Unmanned Aerial Systems (sUAS), aka 
"drones," will playa growing role in all aspects 
of our lives over the next decade. Learn about 
the current regulatory environment, how sUAS 
are being used today and predictions of the future. 

2C. Reading & Interpreting Subdivisions & 
Site Plans 
This presentation will include the level of detail 
to be expected for concept, preliminary and 
final site plans. Participants will learn how to 
read and review a final set of plans consisting 
of subdivision, utility, grading, erosion control 
and landscaping. 

2D. The Interpretive Power of the ZBA 
This session will explore the little-known, yet 
extremely important, "other" power of the 
ZBA ... the power to decide what the zoning 
code means. Discussion topics will include 
the rules circumscribing the interpretive power, 
procedures to be utilized, the inter-relations of the 
parties, Appellate considerations, and the effect 
of interpretation rulings. 

2E. Let's Make it Clear 
The purpose of street signs is to convey a message 
and provide practical experience to drivers 
that will result in the orderly and predictable 
movement of traffic. This training will review 
the problems associated with obstructions at 
intersections (more than half of all collisions 
occur at intersections); proper sight distance 
(how much is enough?); and assuring clear zones 
(what are they?). 

2F. Addressing Peddlers & Solicitors in Your 
Community 
Door to door solicitors come in many shapes 
and sizes. These solicitors can offer deals on 
magazines, energy audits, opportunities to 
sign petitions, cookies, and much more. Most 
of the time they are what they say they are, 
but homeowners should always be wary when 
strangers come to visit. This session will discuss 
what a municipality can do to address solicitors 

2G. NYS Ag Districts Law & Local Zoning 
Regulations 
Attend this session and learn about the interaction 
between NYS Agricultural Districts Law and 
local zoning regulations; local regulation of 
farming operations; and how farmers can request 
a review of potentially restrictive regulations. 

Session 3: 2:45 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. 
3A. Emergency Management 
There are good reasons for having an emergency 
plan, most importantly to save lives and protect 
property. What is an emergency plan, what is the 
municipality's role in an emergency and is your 
community ready, are just a few of the questions 
that will be answered in this session. 

3B. Justice Court Options for Towns & 
ViIlal!es 
This session will cover options for sharing or 
consolidation of justice court services. It will 
provide the process for court consolidation 
under the Uniform Justice Court Act, as well 
as the process for sharing justice court services 
and expenses under the General Municipal 
Law. Options specific to Villages and alternate 
solutions will also be discussed. 

3C. Rel!ulatinl! Locally Unwanted Land 
Uses 
A quick survey of land uses not everyone wants 
next door to their homes and the extent to which 
local governments may regulate them. Mining, 
adult uses, and billboards are just some of the 
uses to be discussed. Code Enforcement Officers may 
receive 1 hour of In-Service Credit. 

3D. O&A For P&Z 
This is your chance to ask the expert your burning 
legal questions. Back by popular demand, this 
session is an open floor format for questions on 
planning and zoning issues with land use attorney 
Scott Chatfield. 

3E. GIS & Chanl!es to the Local Hil!hway 
Inventory 
A discussion of the local highway inventory 
and the CHIPS program in light of the new GIS 
project at DOT. 

3F. Games of Chance & Binl!o 
What is the clerk's responsibility as the licensing 
agent for gaming in you town or village? 
Presenters will review Articles 9-A and 14-H of 
General Municipal Law (Games of Chance and 
Bingo Licensing Laws). Registration, licensing 
and financial reporting requirements of both the 
clerk and the bona fide non-profit organizations 
conducting bell jars, raffies, Vegas/casino games 
and bingo will be discussed. 

3G. How to Include A2riculture in Land Use 
Planninl! 
Agriculture is a large part of the economy and 
landscape in northern New York. Presenters 
will discuss how communities can address 
agricultural issues in their land use laws and 
comprehensive plans. 

Reception: 4:00 p.m. 

**Sessions subject to change due to speaker 



~ ~ Registration Information ~ ~ 
Please complete and return this registration form with your check or voucher (please do not send cash) payable to: 

!ugllill Comnlissio .. 
I)ulle~ State Offh;e Bllilding 
... 317""ashln~t()1l Street. . ..... 

Wa,tel1own,NewYork. ~~601 

Only one attendee per registration form. You may copy this form for multiple registrations 
or download a copy from our website at www.tut:hill.ort:. Any questions, please call (315)785-2380. 

The Tug Hill Commission will not accept registrations by phone, fax, e-mail or credit card payment. 

Amount Paid: D $50 (postmarked by 3/9/16) D $ 7 5 (postmarked by 3/16/16) D $100 (received after 3/16/16) 

We can not issue refunds after March 16, 2016. 

** Please Print ** 

Name: _________________ Town/Village: ___________ _ 

County: (please check one) D Jefferson D Lewis D Oneida D Oswego D St. Lawrence Other: ______ _ 

Address: ___________________ E-mail: ___________ _ 

City: _________ State: ___ Zip: ___ _ Daytime Phone: wJh ( 

Municipal Position Held: (please check one) 

D Assessor D Attorney D Clerk D Councilman D DPW D Highway D Justice 0 Mayor 

D Planning Board D Supervisor D Trustee D Zoning Board of Appeals D Other: _____ _ 

Note: Registration confirmations and program changes will be done by email in order to save on postage. 

In order for us to provide adequate seating, please check any workshop session(s) you might be interested in attending. 
This is not set in stone. You may choose any session you would like to attend on the day of the conference. 
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New York State Tug Hill Commission 
Dulles State Office Building 
317 Washington Street 
Watertown, New York 13601 

Address Service Requested 

us. Postage 

NYS Tug Hill Commission 
27th Annual Local Government~onference 
March 31, 2016 



       January 14, 2016 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  James E. Mills, City Comptroller 

 

Subject: Sales Tax Revenue – December 2015 

 

 

The City has received the monthly sales tax revenue amount from 

Jefferson County.  In comparison to December 2014, the December 2015 sales tax 

revenue on an actual to actual basis is down $189,164 or 12.28%.  In comparison to the 

original budget projection for the month of December, sales tax is down $229,218 or 

14.50%. 

 

The year-to-date actual receipts are down $457,829 or 4.97% while the 

year-to-date receipts on a budget basis are down $697,320 or 7.38%.  Year-to-date sales 

tax revenue is at $8,754,511. 

 

The attached spreadsheet shows the detail collections for this year and last 

year along with the budgeted amounts.  Collections for the Fiscal Years’ 2011-12, 2012-

13, 2013-14 and 2014-15 have been included for historical perspective. 



Actual 2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Actual 2014-15 Actual 2015-16 Variance

% Inc/(Dec)to 

Prior Year

Quarterly 

Variance

% Inc/(Dec) to 

Prior Quarter

July 1,359,433$       1,361,364$       1,492,579$       1,412,829$       1,509,325$       96,496$            6.83%

August 1,319,714$       1,357,130$       1,463,877$       1,247,954$       1,494,788$       246,834$          19.78%

September 1,886,899$       2,071,785$       1,760,254$       2,206,655$       1,683,486$       (523,169)$         -23.71% (179,839)           -3.69%

October 1,215,879$       1,301,624$       1,584,174$       1,405,774$       1,339,731$       (66,043)$           -4.70%

November 1,207,881$       1,274,589$       1,116,784$       1,398,402$       1,375,619$       (22,783)$           -1.63%

December 1,897,409$       1,714,672$       1,543,425$       1,540,727$       1,351,562$       (189,164)$         -12.28% (277,990)           -6.40%

January 1,195,675$       1,276,483$       1,238,468$       1,261,235$       -$                  

February 1,036,230$       1,160,663$       1,076,005$       1,059,321$       -$                  

March 1,624,451$       1,453,454$       1,471,964$       1,295,074$       -$                  -                    0.00%

April 1,217,913$       1,293,493$       1,271,765$       1,286,204$       -$                  

May 1,224,057$       1,373,513$       1,298,653$       1,288,547$       -$                  

June 2,029,525$       1,609,032$       1,699,052$       1,726,963$       -$                  -                    0.00%

YTD 17,215,066$     17,247,801$     17,017,001$     17,129,685$     8,754,511$       (457,829)$         -4.97%

Original Budget 

2015-16 Actual 2015-16 Variance %

July 1,449,558$       1,509,325$       59,767$            4.12%

August 1,280,396$       1,494,788$       214,392$          16.74%

September 2,264,021$       1,683,486$       (580,535)$         -25.64% (306,376)           -6.13%

October 1,442,320$       1,339,731$       (102,589)$         -7.11%

November 1,434,756$       1,375,619$       (59,137)$           -4.12%

December 1,580,780$       1,351,562$       (229,218)$         -14.50% (390,944)           -8.77%

January 1,294,023$       -$                  

February 1,086,860$       -$                  

March 1,328,741$       -$                  -                    0.00%

April 1,319,641$       -$                  

May 1,322,045$       -$                  

June 1,771,860$       -$                  -                    0.00%

YTD 17,575,000$     8,754,511$       (697,320)$         -7.38%
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